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Chairman’s Statement
FERES

The year 2010 signified the Group’s successful transformation
from a regional player to a formidable national cement
manufacturer in Mainland China. Following years of organic
expansion and merger and acquisition, the Group has achieved
a sizeable scale of operation and an extensive geographical
coverage, enlisting it among the top-tier cement enterprises in

the country.

The Group has been pursuing its strategic goal of building a
wide-spanned business platform capturing a significant share
in some of the most vibrant cement markets in Mainland China.
In doing so, the Group had, in the previous years, committed
enormous management and capital resources in scaling up
its self-developed plants and acquiring hefty operations with

prominent local market presence.

Following its expansion to Jiangsu Province and Guangxi
Autonomous Region through acquisition, the Group completed,
at the end of April 2010, the merger of Upper Value Investments
Limited (“Upper Value”), which was one of the largest take-over in

China’s cement industry.

Carefully structured acquisition enabled the Group to instantly
uplift its annual attributable capacity and extend its market
reach, as well as, to strengthen its earning power through
the incorporation of profitable operations into its consolidated

accounts.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERES

During the course of its corporate expansion, the Group’s
profitability was inevitably hindered by heavy fixed asset
investment and capital outlay. However, such commitments

began to pay off in 2010.

The positive outcome of our calculated expansion was evidenced
in the Group’s significantly enhanced performance in 2010.
Benefiting from a substantially enlarged capacity, the Group was
able to heighten its revenue and earnings on the back of enlarged
sales volume. This along with improved average selling price of
cement and clinker, as well as realisation of economies of scale
had contributed to the Group a respectable gross profit margin
during the year under review. Strengthened operation efficiency,
in addition, had raised the Group’s profit attributable to owners
of the Company by 5.5 times when compared with that of the

previous yeatr.

Our establishment of a widened operation platform with an
annual attributable capacity of over 40 million metric tons just
came in time to greet the opportunities offered by the cement

industry’s consolidation.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERES

The restructuring navigated by the State government, is
aimed at converting an industry filled with excess supply from
predominately low-efficient small players to a high efficient sector
dominating by leading regional and national manufacturers. Over
the years, hundreds of millions metric tons of obsolete capacity
had been phased out. The adding of new capacity has also
been put to a halt under a State Council document promulgated
in September 2009, unless approval for construction has been

granted before that date.

On the other end of the pendulum, demand remained strong.
Progress of massive infrastructure projects and development of
private sector properties continued to drive the consumption of

cement.

Government spending on a range of civil engineering
developments will continue to pour into the market as works of
these multi-regional transportation networks and utility facilities
are expected to last for years. As for the property sector, the
State’s directive of providing 36 million units of social welfare
housing, with 10 million units commencing construction in 2011,
during the twelve-five-year plan, will sustain a healthy demand for

construction materials.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

Our rapid expansion in recent years has extended the Group’s
market reach to nine provinces and one municipality of the
Mainland China, covering many of the hotspots of the State’s
infrastructure and urbanisation investments, such as the Western
and Southwestern regions. Furthermore, Guangdong province,
the stronghold of the Group, is also experiencing expedited

construction development in both the public and private sectors.

To intensify market penetration, we aim to widen our sales by
providing swift response to market demand. This is going to
be achieved through establishing logistic distribution centres
adjacent to our key markets. These facilities, which will act as
a hub between our production plants and the end-users, can
significantly shorten our product delivery time. The first of these
distribution centres is being planned in Dongguan, to support

rapid urbanisation in the Pearl River Delta.

Our output will be further increased in the current year with the
completion of four new production lines in various locations.
Cost-effectiveness can also be improved by accelerating existing

facility output through maintaining an optimum utilisation.

In addition, the Group will continue its effort in lowering unit
costs and strengthening control of operation and administration

expenses.

After building a formidable presence over a broadened
landscape, the Group is entering a new phase of development,
emphasising on qualitative rather than mere quantitative growth.
The Group will capitalise on its economies of scale, and fine-
tune its operation management to elevate efficiency as well as
profitability. We are well aware that only with the improvement
in return to shareholders, can we justify the Group’s heavy

commitment to its operation expansion.

Koo, Cheng-Yun, Leslie
Chairman

Hong Kong

17 March 2011
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

MARKET OVERVIEW

The continued prosperity in the Mainland China economy had
driven the country’s fixed assets investment to leap by 23.8
per cent year-on-year in 2010. Strong capital flow, from both
the public and private sectors, into infrastructure and housing
development not only fuelled the demand for cement, but also
sustained the product average selling price (‘“ASP”) at a healthy

level.

Following a modest adjustment during the traditional low season
in the first quarter, cement price began to pick up in the second
quarter of 2010. Resulting from the enforcement of the State’s
policy to restrict energy consumption and pollution emission in
the second half of the year, the supply of cement in most parts
of Mainland China retreated significantly, particularly from those
obsolete facilities. The measure had pushed cement price further

in the last quarter of 2010.

Benefiting from trimmed output and a strong ASP, large-scale
cement manufacturers with prominent regional presence were
able to enjoy broader profit margins, and to enlarge their market
share through replacing the capacity from low-efficient smaller

players.

Although there were about 190 million metric tons of additional
clinker capacity put into operation in 2010, their impact on supply
was largely offset by the elimination of obsolete facilities enforced
by the State’s stringent measures. A more balanced market

situation had paved the way for a healthy industry development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the year under review, the Group maintained its expansion
strategy of enlarging its scale of operation and market coverage
through merger and acquisition. The incorporation of Upper
Value Investments Limited (“Upper Value”) into the Group served
to further enhance its capacity and sales volume, in addition to
the extension of the Group’s market reach to the Northeastern,

Western and Southwestern regions of Mainland China.

With an escalated attributable capacity of approximately 40.4
million metric tons by the end of 2010, the Group achieved an
aggregate sales volume of 28.5 million metric tons (excluding
attributable sales volume from associated companies) during the
year, with cement and clinker accounting for 59.1 per cent and
35.6 per cent of the total sales volume respectively, the balance

being sales of slag powder.

Although only eight months of the Upper Value’s accounts were
booked to the Group’s statement, their contribution to revenue

and operating profit had been significant.

The Group reported a 105.5 per cent year-on-year surge in
revenue, which amounted to HK$8,125.9 million, riding on the
back of improved sales volume and ASP. Gross profit margin had
risen by about six percentage points to 18.8 per cent and lifted
the Group’s gross profit to HK$1,529.5 million, demonstrating an
upsurge of 203.4 per cent from that of the previous year. Profit
attributable to owners of the Company leaped by 5.5 times to
HK$784.1 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

Upper Value
The Group’s attributable capacity had been raised by 13.6 million
metric tons following the consolidation of Upper Value into its
portfolio in May 2010.

various cement plants in Guangdong served to further cement

In addition, Upper Value’s interests in

the Group’s dominant market presence in the province.

A total of 5.6 million metric tons (excluding sales volume from
associated companies) of sales volume was booked from Upper

Value during the year.

Yingde Dragon Mountain Cement Co., Ltd. (“YDM”), the largest
existing facility wholly owned by Upper Value, generated a sales
volume of 4.2 million metric tons for the eight months under
review. The strong ASP of cement in Southern China, and
efficient operation management had translated into satisfactory
profit contribution from YDM.

Liaoning Changqging Cement Co., Ltd. (“Liaoning Changging”),
in which Upper Value had a 75 per cent interest, was situated in
an area suffering from low product ASP. However, the operations
managed to achieve a modest operating profit, leveraging on
its unique strategic location and relatively lower production
cost. Liaoning Changqing’s effort in market development in the
Northeastern region is expected to pay off in the year 2011.
Chongging Changxing Cement Co., Ltd. (“Chongging
Changxing”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Upper Value, only
commenced mass production in November 2010. Chongging
Changxing reported an operating profit for the two months under
operation. The facility was in the process of establishing its
sales platform, in a market with heavy demand from both private

housing and public infrastructure development.

Upper Value’s non-controlling interests in three other facilities
in Guangdong Province and Yunnan Province also generated

significant results for the Group during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

Yingde

TCC Yingde Cement Company Limited (“TCC Yingde”)’s four
production lines had been running at over 90 per cent of its rated
capacity throughout 2010. Close to optimum utilisation and an
improved product ASP had contributed to favourable results for
TCC Yingde.

8.3 million metric tons of output from TCC Yingde were sold
during the year. Despite the suspension of construction work for
three months in Guangzhou during the Asian Game, there was
little impact on cement consumption in the Guangdong area.
Rapid urbanisation and enormous infrastructure development,
in particular in the Pearl River Delta region, continued to drive
demand for cement. The significantly higher ASP enabled TCC
Yingde to offset the impact of surged production costs and to

enjoy a favourable gross profit margin.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

14

Guigang

The Group completed the acquisition of TCC (Guigang) Cement
Limited (“TCC (Guigang)”) in the last quarter of 2009. This was
the first financial year that TCC (Guigang)’s full year performance

was booked to the Group’s accounts.

TCC (Guigang) generated a sales volume of approximately
7.7 million metric tons of cement and clinker during the year.
Its utilisation was affected by the low water level, during the
first quarter of the year, of Xijiang, which was the plant’s main
transportation route to the Guangdong market. TCC (Guigang)
resumed its average utilisation when the Xijiang water level

returned to its normal level in the second quarter.

Guangxi Autonomous Region was subject to the State’s control
of power supply over high energy consumption industries. TCC
(Guigang) managed to maintain its operational efficiency through

the full application of its residual heat generation units.
Reduced output from the Region enabled TCC (Guigang) to enjoy

a higher ASP. This along with enhanced cost-effectiveness, TCC

(Guigang) reported a satisfactory profit during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

Fuzhou

TCC Fuzhou Cement Company Limited (“TCC Fuzhou”)’s
grinding plant reported a sales volume of 1.5 million metric tons.
Following the completion of its facility overhaul in the first half of
the year, TCC Fuzhou enjoyed a significant increase in output and
sales volume in the last two quarters of the year. Furthermore,
TCC Fuzhou began to consume clinker supplied by the Group’s

Jurong plant, during the year, to realise further synergetic effect.

As a result, TCC Fuzhou managed to return to the black in 2010.

Jurong

The second production line of Jurong TCC Cement Company
Limited (“Jurong TCC”) commenced operation in the first
quarter of 2010. The inauguration of an additional production
line had enhanced Jurong TCC'’s output, as well as its overall
operational efficiency due to economies of scale. In 2010, Jurong
TCC'’s sales volume increased by over 70 per cent from that of
the previous year and amounted to 4.1 million metric tons. A
substantially higher sales volume, compounded by inflated ASP in
Eastern China, led to Jurong TCC’s resumption to a healthy profit

in the year under review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

Liuzhou

TCC Liuzhou Construction Materials Company Limited (“TCC
Liuzhou”), the Group’s 60 per cent owned joint venture in
Guangxi, sold a total of 1.0 million metric tons of slag powder.
Strong demand for and higher ASP of cement in Southern China
led to a surge in slag powder prices and significantly improved

earnings of TCC Liuzhou.

Hong Kong

The Hong Kong operations’ profitability had been strengthened
by promising local market condition. The Group’s trading
operations in Hong Kong reported a sales volume of 410,000
metric tons of cement during the year. The booming property
market and implementation of various infrastructure projects
had elevated the demand for, as well as prices of cement and

concrete in Hong Kong.

OTHER SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

A net increase in fair value of HK$59.2 million was recognized for
held-for-trading investments upon stating them at market prices
as at 31 December 2010 (31 December 2009: HK$17.5 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES,
CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND GEARING RATIO

The Group adopts prudent treasury policies in managing cash

resources and bank borrowings.

The current ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2010 and

RBES MBER BEXARBRE
ERELR
AEERABRAZBEERENERREERR

RITIEE -

R-F-TER-FTTAF+-A=+-8"

2009 as follows: AEEBZREELERINT
31.12.2010 31.12.2009
—E-EF —ETRF
+=—A=+—8H +—A=+—8
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
(Restated)
(&)
Current assets mEEE 7,263,395 3,017,279
Current liabilities mEaE 6,325,390 6,804,239
Current ratio mEN = 1.15 0.44

The Group’s current ratio as at 31 December 2010 was 1.15 (31
December 2009: 0.44). The significant improvement of current
ratio in 2010 and the strong liquidity position was attributable to

the effective financial management of the Group.

R-ZE—TF+_A=+—B FA&EEZHK
BHER/AS(ZEZANFT_A=+T—8:
0.44) R_ZE—ZF I RBLEEZENERIE
Bz RBESMRATTEHRAERZ ERITBE
AT
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Total cash and bank balances of the Group as at 31 December
2010 amounted to HK$3,377.3 million (31 December 2009:
HK$1,090.7 million), of which HK$29.5 million (31 December
2009: HK$36.9 million) was pledged for general banking

facilities or as performance guarantee in relation to certain sales

contracts. Highly liquid short term investments, classified as

held-for-trading investments, with a market value of HK$327.1
million (31 December 2009: HK$267.9 million) as at 31

December 2010, were also held by the Group.

R-Z—TE+-_A=+—B AEEZHS
NMARTT#: #4248 %853,377,300,000 L (=T =
AF+=A=+—H:1,090,700,000% L) * &
#129,500,0008 L (ZETNF+_A=+—
H : 36,900,000/ 7T) B & — R R1TRLE 1EK
HAEARE THEGNZBONRF - R_F
—ZEF+ZA=+—RB AEENFETES
327,100,000 T (ZEZ N F+ A=+ —
H :267,900,0008T) 2 D AIFIEX SR B
REZBSRBEREHRE -

The maturity profile of the Group's bank borrowings as at 31 RZE—ZEFRZZFTZNF+ZA=+—8"
December 2010 and 2009 as follows: AEBRITEEZHMABET
31.12.2010 31.12.2009
—E-2F —EENF
+=—A=+—-8 +ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHET
(Restated)
(s=5)
Amount repayable: BERUTHEERSHE:
Within one year —FR 3,529,456 1,409,925
More than one year but not exceeding BB FEENBEWE
two years 4,293,609 1,118,434
More than two years but not exceeding  HBBMFEERTBBRF
five years 3,427,959 441,247
Over five years AFEE 768,000 1,186
Carrying amount of bank loans that are HiERERZLMEZEK
repayable on demand due to breach EEZRTENRERE
of loan covenants (shown under (IR RBEFEET)
current liabilities) - 3,742,655
Carrying amount of bank loans that are BEAREHERBE—FA
not repayable within one year from the BER %ZEBZEZHE 334
end of the reporting period but contain ZIRITEFEREE
a repayment on demand clause (B @JE’J HT)
(shown under current liabilities) - 96,500
Total bank loans RITEREF 12,019,024 6,809,947

TCC International Holdings Limited
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There was no material effect of seasonality on the Group’s
borrowing requirement. As at 31 December 2010, HK$3,822.2
million of the bank loans was denominated in HK$, HK$3,440.1
million in US$ and HK$4,756.7 million in RMB. All of the bank

loans are of floating rate structures.

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2010 and

2009 are as follows:

AEBZIEEFTFEITAIINERNZTH LR
2 N -_T-FTE+_A=+—H HBTE
X H3,822,200,0007% 7T LA B T B E B B A7 -
3,440,100,0008 T A ETL A EMEMN K
4,756,700,000 TAARE REKEL - FTE
RITERERZHAEER -

R-E-—ZFER-_TTNAF+_A=+—8"
ZN-S Zﬁ%%%tt%m?:

31.12.2010 31.12.2009

—E-FEF —ETNF

+=ZA=+—H +=-—A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

(Restated)

(g&E75)

Total bank loans RITE R 12,019,024 6,809,947

Senior notes BRER 139,396 -
Amount due to immediate holding FET E BRI A R B

company 932,400 405,500

Total borrowings fE B4 13,090,820 7,215,447

Total assets EE®EAE 27,029,512 15,079,932

Gearing ratio EEAGBILE 48.4% 47.8%

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s gearing ratio, expressed
as the ratio of total borrowings (including total bank loans, senior
notes and amount due to immediate holding company) divided by
total assets, was 48.4% (31 December 2009: 47.8%). The slight
increase in the Group’s gearing ratio was mainly due to the new
bank loans raised by the Group for the capital expenditure during
the year. Although the gearing ratio increased, it is still maintained

at a healthy level.

775

—EF+_A=t—HB AEEZERE
%tt? (ANEERR (BRRITEREE &
ERBERENEBIERARFIA)BRAEERE
RN RA84A% (—EENF+-_HA=1+—8:
47.8%) MNFR AEBEZEERABHERZE
MEADEEARAEEAREATHMEE 2
HITERAB -BEEEARBLER LT HD
MR EREAKE-
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$4,093.9 million, of which
HK$2,269.2 million was arising from the acquisition of Upper

Value.

On 18 December 2009, the Company announced that on 11
December 2009 the Company had entered into a conditional
acquisition agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”) with Pro-
Rise Business Limited, an independent third party to the Group,
for the acquisition of the entire interest of Upper Value from the
vendor and the assignment of certain shareholder loan as at
30 September 2009 to the Company (the “Acquisition”). Upper
Value and its subsidiaries principally engaged in the business of
manufacture and sale of clinker and cement in Mainland China.
The acquisition price was HK$3,800 million, which shall be
satisfied by cash in accordance with the Acquisition Agreement.

The Acquisition has completed on 30 April 2010.

Save for aforesaid, the Group had no significant investment,

material acquisitions or disposals.

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES
On 14 January 2010, the controlling shareholder of the Company

entered into a placing agreement with a placing agent and
the Company entered into a subscription agreement with its
controlling shareholder in relation to a top-up placing, on a best
effort basis, of 256,568,000 ordinary shares of the Company with
independent investors at the placing price of HK$3.30 per share
(the “Top-up Placing”). The Top-up Placing was completed on 22
January 2010 and the total net proceeds raised from the Top-up
Placing of approximately HK$825.4 million, were applied towards
funding the Acquisition of Upper Value, which was in accordance

with the proposed application as stated in the announcement.

TCC International Holdings Limited &k B &£ B B R A A

EXRE - EARBIHESE

FR AEBUWEDE BEERXEBEY
4,093,900,0007% Jt * H #2,269,200,000/% 7T
E 4 B W EE Upper Value °

RARRZZBEZENFT_A+N\BEM RZZE
TNF+ZA+—B ARAREAEEZBIE
=77 Pro-Rise Business Limited&] 37 A 1§ {F U B8
sk ([ WD) - PAME 75 W8 Upper Value
ZEIER  RARNRBEER-_ZTNFNA
=t+BEZETREER([WEEE]) - Upper
Value R HIB AR T ERPREAREREEER
5 PR R KO 2 7% - W R (B /33,800,000,000
BT BRBEREGEUARS AN - WEE
BHERZZ—ZFMNA=THREK

B EXFraESN AEEMBEEGEARE &
RWESHEER

SEEH

RZZE—FTF—HA+MEAB AQ AR R
ReERIBEI R E HEE MAR G HEEFRR
R UREHRZE NEERRIHNELEURE
BEERIIOBTLAEAEETAARERRAZ
256,568,000k @K T HELIREH ([LEER
M EFE]) AERFEEFEER T —
TE-—AZTZHEK MEXERFTEESE
SEFTFHIEF RS $49723825,400,000/% 7T, -
ZARIBTREE A AT 2 R AR T A E R I
B Upper Valuei2ft & ¢ -
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On 17 May 2010, the Company announced a fully underwritten
one-for-two rights issue of 1,098,544,023 ordinary shares
at the issue price of HK$2.10 per share. The rights issue
became unconditional on 23 June 2010 and net proceeds of
approximately HK$2,286.0 million were raised by the Company,
were applied towards repayment of the debt financing incurred
by the Group to fund the Acquisition of Upper Value, which was
in accordance with the proposed application as stated in the

announcement.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2010, bank deposits amounting to HK$29.5
million have been pledged by the Group as security for the
letters of credit and similar obligations provided by banks in
regard to the Group’s purchase of plant equipments or as

performance guarantee in relation to certain sales contracts.

As at 31 December 2010, certain property, plant and equipment
and prepaid lease payments have been pledged to secure bank
borrowings of the Group with the carrying amount of HK$3,754.0
million and HK$1,001.3 million respectively.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURES

The Group utilized various methods to mitigate foreign currency
exposures arising from the currency mismatch of construction
material purchases and sales. To protect the benefits of
shareholders, cost-efficient hedging methods will be considered

in future foreign currency transactions.

No foreign exchange contracts were outstanding as at 31
December 2010.

RZZ—ZFRAA+TERA ARAIEM UE
BRHEERFETETR210E T WIZEHF
B IR IR 0 1 B — AR AR AR AR 1 3 7T AR AR T B 1T
1,098,544,023 T @R - BN T —FTF
NAZT=ZBRREGRE MARTEREME
SRIEFEEH) A2,286,000,000/% T - 2B R
BAmA s 2ZAemAEERERAEE A
FEUpper ValuelRtt & e MEEL Z BB A

EREE

RZE—ZFF+ZH=+—H" 29,500,000/
TZRITEFFEHAREERRERRBERE
REZERABELRTRHEBUEBEZERSAIE
RUETHERNZIBENRE -

RZZ—TFE+-_A=Z+—B AEAEERE
TEFRERRZETYE BERZXEUARE
R EFIEREES B A3,754,000,000/% 7T &
1,001,300,000/%& 7T °

S L B
AEEERTRTEAREAEERY 2 5%
$A T A 2 2 NS B » IR PE IR A28 - O F
BAETTINGE X 516 % BB PR JaE 2 $
7k
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MAJOR CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s capital expenditure in
respect to the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
contracted but not provided for in the financial statements
amounted to approximately HK$1,903.0 million. The Group
anticipates funding those commitments from its internal

resources and bank borrowings.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had 4,778 full-time
employees. Total expenses in wages and salaries of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2010 amounted to HK$232.8
million. Discretionary bonuses, recommended by management
and reviewed by the remuneration committee, are payable to
employees in Hong Kong and senior management of overseas
subsidiaries based on performance. In addition, the Directors
may invite employees, including executive Directors (in which
case approval of independent non-executive Directors is
required), of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
associates to take up options to subscribe for shares of the

Company. During the year, no share options were granted to

Directors or employees.

TCC International Holdings Limited & EE R £ B G R 2 7

FTEEREAE
R-Z-2FE+-A=+—B AKEZEH
WERRBBRRERZBEDE B RR
1 2 B 78 37 H 49 41,903,000,00078 7T © AN & [#
BHNEAHERRRTEEAREAERY
B

R-E-—ZF+-_A=+—H KEEHF
47TT8R EHEE - AKBRBE_T—FF
TA=t-RALEEZIERFSEHEE
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Prospects and Future Plans

BB K AR REE

In Mainland China, consolidation of the cement industry steered
by the State government is expected to drive the domestic
cement industry towards a market equilibrium. The State’s
stringent control on the development of new production facility
and the enforced elimination of obsolete capacity, which will
amount to 300 million metric tons during the 12th five-year plan,

will be able to effectively reduce excessive supply.

On the other hand, cement consumption is projected to rise
on accelerated urbanisation, rural development and social
welfare housing construction. In addition, the State’s aggressive
extension of its high-speed railway network and intensified
infrastructure investment, including massive hydraulic engineering

works, will widen cement demand from the public sector.

The cement industry’s consolidation has given rise to
opportunities for large scale cement manufacturers to broaden
their operation scale and market share through taking over
of smaller players, which are quickly losing their edges in the

market.

The Group will continue its strategy of expansion through merger
and acquisition, to maintain, as well as to uplift its nation-
wide market position. The Group is seeking to consolidate or
strengthen its market influence through further acquisition in

areas where it has already had a presence.

Organically, the Group’s continued expansion of its existing
facilities will provide further capacity to support its intensified
market penetration. In 2011, the Group will add 8 million metric
tons of cement and clinker capacity with the completion of four
new production lines in Chongging, Sichuan and Guizhou. To
enhance logistic support to the Group’s sales to the Peal River
Delta market, the first phase of a distribution centre is being
planned in Dongguan. The facility is expected to be completed
by the first half of 2012, and will enable the Group to react
more flexibly to market demand in the affluent districts of the

Guandong Province.
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Prospects and Future Plans

& B K R R ET &

With facilities in Guangdong Province, Guangxi Autonomous
Region, Fujian Province, Jiangsu Province, Yunnan Province,
Sichuan Province, Liaoning Province, Guizhou Province, Anhui
Province and Chongging municipality, the Group’s operations

span over 10 provinces in Mainland China.

Given a significantly enlarged operating platform, the Group
is expected to benefit further from economies of scale in the
current year. The completion of residual heat generation units
in Chongging and Liaoning facilities will contribute to better
operational efficiency due to energy cost saving. In addition,
the Jurong plant’s residual heat generation unit will be in full

operation in 2011.

The Mainland China’s cement industry is undergoing a dramatic
transition. The State government is determined to elevate the
industry’s efficiency by limiting excessive capacity and enforcing
the application of advanced technology. By the year 2012, it is
estimated that 84 per cent of Mainland China’s cement capacity
will be made up by modern dry process facilities. It is also
expected that the total number of cement manufacturers will be

significantly reduced, facilitating a more regulated competition.

Under such a backdrop, the Group is committed to maintain its
growth momentum through both external merger and acquisition
and organic expansion. The Group will further entrench its
regional leading market position, while continuing its extension
of geographical coverage. The Group aims to achieve a total
attributable capacity of over 50 million metric tons by the end
of 2011. It is the Group’s belief that only with a formidable size
of operation and a wide-spanned market reach will it be able
to stay in the forefront of the market and survive the industry’s

consolidation.

TCC International Holdings Limited & JE Bl B &£ B B R 2 &
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEERQE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Koo, Cheng-Yun, Leslie

Mr. Koo, aged 56, is the Chairman and an executive Director of
the Company. Mr. Koo is responsible for the overall policy and
direction of the Group. He became a Director of Hong Kong
Cement Manufacturing Company Limited (which carried on the
Group’s cement business in Hong Kong prior to the Group’s re-
organisation in September 1997) in July 1991. He is also the
vice-chairman of Quon Hing Concrete Company Limited (“Quon
Hing”) and Director of Hong Kong Concrete Company Limited
(*Hong Kong Concrete”), both being associated companies of
the Group. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Accounting from
the University of Washington and a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the Wharton School of the University of
Pennsylvania, USA. He is currently the Chairman and president
of Taiwan Cement Corporation (“T’Cement”), the ultimate holding
company of the Company. Mr. Koo also serves as the Chairman
of China Synthetic Rubber Corporation, Chairman of Taiwan
Prosperity Chemical Corporation, a Director of China Steel
Chemical Co., Ltd., a Director of CTCI Corporation, the Chairman
of Synpac (N.C.) Limited, USA and the Chairman of Continental
Carbon Company, USA. T'Cement, China Synthetic Rubber
Corporation, Taiwan Prosperity Chemical Corporation, CTCI
Corporation and China Steel Chemical Co., Ltd. are companies

listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wu Yih Chin

Mr. Wu, aged 56, is the Managing Director and executive
Director of the Company, the deputy managing Director of
Hong Kong Concrete and a Director of Quon Hing and Yargoon
Company Limited. He joined the Group in November 1993.
Mr. Wu is responsible for the overall management, strategic
planning and business development for the Group. He holds
a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration from National
Cheng Chi University, Taiwan and a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the Wharton School of the University of
Pennsylvania, USA. He has more than 30 years of experience in

cement-related businesses.
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Non-executive Directors

Dr. Shan Weijian

Dr. Shan, aged 57, chairman and chief executive officer of
PAG, an investment firm. He is also a director of a number of
companies including T'Cement, Bank of China (Hong Kong)
Limited, BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited, Changhwa
Commercial Bank, Ltd and Taishin Financial Holdings Co.,
Ltd. He was a senior partner of TPG, co-managing partner
of Newbridge Capital, managing director of J.P. Morgan, an
assistant professor at the Wharton School of the University of
Pennsylvania and an investment officer at the World Bank in
Washington DC. Dr. Shan graduated from the Beijing Institute
of Foreign Trade with a major in English in 1979. He obtained
a Master Degree in Business Administration from the University
of San Francisco in 1981, and received a Masters of Arts
in Economics and a PhD Degree in Business Administration
from the University of California at Berkeley in 1984 and 1987

respectively.

Mr. Chang, An-Ping, Nelson

Mr. Chang, aged 58, is the brother-in-law of Mr. Koo, Cheng-
Yun, Leslie who is the Chairman and an executive Director of
the Company. Mr. Nelson Chang is also the uncle of two non-
executive Directors of the Company, Mr. Chang, Kang-Lung,
Jason and Ms. Wang, Lishin, Elizabeth. Mr. Nelson Chang
graduated from New York University with a Master Degree
in Business Administration. Mr. Nelson Chang is Directors
of T'Cement and Chia Hsin Cement Corporation (“Chia Hsin
Cement”), the parent company of a substantial shareholder of the
Company named Chia Hsin Pacific Limited (“CHPL”). Mr. Nelson
Chang is also a Director of CHPL. In addition, Mr. Nelson Chang
is Directors of China Synthetic Rubber Corporation and Taiwan
Prosperity Chemical Corporation. T'Cement, Chia Hsin Cement,
China Synthetic Rubber Corporation and Taiwan Prosperity
Chemical Corporation are companies listed on the Taiwan Stock

Exchange.
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Mr. Chang, Kang-Lung, Jason

Mr. Chang, aged 39, is the nephew of Mr. Chang, An-Ping,
Nelson, a non-executive Director of the Company and the
cousin of Ms. Wang, Lishin, Elizabeth, also a non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Jason Chang graduated from the
Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Boston, U.S.A. with a
Master Degree in Management of Technology. He also holds a
Bachelor Degree of Arts from Carroll College, Helena, U.S.A. Mr.
Jason Chang is a Director of Chia Hsin Cement, a company listed

on the Taiwan Stock Exchange.

Ms. Wang, Lishin, Elizabeth

Ms. Wang, aged 37, is the niece of Mr. Chang, An-Ping, Nelson,
a non-executive Director of the Company and the cousin of Mr.
Chang, Kang-Lung, Jason, also a non-executive Director of the
Company. Ms. Wang graduated from the Waseda University,
Tokyo, Japan with a Master Degree in Organization Restructuring.
She also holds a Bachelor Degree of Science in Finance from
Boston College, Boston, U.S.A. Ms. Wang is a Director of Chia

Hsin Cement, a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Liao Poon Huai, Donald C.B.E., J.P.

Mr. Liao, aged 81, has been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company since August 1997. He was educated
at The University of Hong Kong and the University of Durham,
the United Kingdom. He is a senior advisor to Mitsui & Co (HK)
Limited. He retired from the Hong Kong civil service in 1989
and was the former Secretary for District Administration and
the Secretary for Home Affairs. He served as a non-executive
Director for The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited and The HSBC China Fund Limited. He has served on
the Council of the Stock Exchange between 1991 and 1995. Mr.
Liao was also appointed as an Official Member of the Hong Kong
Legislative Council in 1980 and of the Hong Kong Executive
Council in 1985.
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Dr. Chih Ching Kang, Kenneth

Dr. Chih, aged 56, has been a Chief Architect Global Purchasing
and Supply Chain of General Motors Corporation (“GM”) in
Detroit US from 2007 to 2009. Before joining GM in 2007, Dr.
Chih was the Director and Chief Information Officer of Orient
Overseas Container Line Ltd., a subsidiary of Orient Overseas
(International) Limited (“OOCL”) which is a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He also served as executive
committee member of the Board of OOCL and was globally
responsible for IT strategy, information systems development,
information technology infrastructure, business process and
ISO9000 facilitation. Dr. Chih also served as Directors of several
OOCL subsidiary companies such as Cargo Smart Limited and
IRIS Systems Limited. Before joining OOCL in 1993, Dr. Chih was
the Senior Principal at American Airlines Decision Technologies.
Dr. Chih also had extensive consulting experience in the US
railroad transportation industry. Dr. Chih received an M.A. and a
Ph.D. from Princeton University, an M.S. from the University of

Texas at Austin and a B.S. from National Taiwan University.

Mr. Shieh, Jen-Chung, Roger

Mr. Shieh, aged 53, started his career with Ogilvy & Mather
Advertising Taiwan since 1982. In 1999, he became managing
Director of Enterprise IG, a consultancy company and a
subsidiary of one of the world’s largest communications groups,
WPP Group plc. In 2001, Mr. Shieh was relocated to Shanghai
to set up Enterprise IG China and further develop its business
and operations in the Greater China Region. He retired from WPP
Group plc in 2005. Mr. Shieh has over 20 years of experience
in advertising, public relations, corporate image and identity

management.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lu, Ker-Fu

President of TCC Yingde Cement Co., Limited

Mr. Lu, aged 57, holds a Bachelor Degree in Mechanical
Engineering from Tamkang University, Taiwan and joined
T'Cement in 1977. He has more than 30 years of experience in
cement and engineering businesses, and had worked in head
office and cement plants of T'Cement before joining the Group in
April 2007.

Mr. Wang, Chien-Chuan

President of TCC (Guigang) Cement Limited

Mr. Wang, aged 50, holds a Bachelor Degree in Mechanical
Engineering from Feng Chia University in Taiwan, and joined
T’Cement in 1985. He has over 25 years of experience in cement
and engineering businesses. Between 2003 and January 2008,
he joined the Group as Chief Engineer in TCC Yingde Cement
Co., Limited and was responsible for the construction planning
and initial operation management of that plant. Mr. Wang joined
TCC (Guigang) Cement Limited in April 2009.

Mr. Chen, Chi-Ching

President of TCC Fuzhou Cement Company Limited

Mr. Chen, aged 40, holds a Master Degree in the Department of
Chemistry from National Taiwan University, and joined T'Cement
in 1998. He has more than 10 years of relevant experience in

cement manufacturing. He joined the Group in April 2007.

Mr. Chen, Chen-Yuan

President of Jurong TCC Cement Co., Limited

Mr. Chen, aged 47, holds a Bachelor Degree in the Department
of Engineering from Feng Chia University in Taiwan, and joined
T’Cement in 1992. He has more than 20 years of experience in

cement-related engineering. He joined the Group in April 2007.
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Mr. Lin, Chun-Ting

President of Anhui King Bridge Cement Company Limited
Mr. Lin, aged 48, holds a Bachelor Degree in Chemical
Engineering from Feng Chia University in Taiwan, and joined
T’Cement in 1990. He has more than 20 years of experience in
cement manufacturing and production management. He joined
the Group in June 2010.

Mr. Wu, Chih-Feng

President of TCC Liuzhou Construction Materials Company
Limited

Mr. Wu, aged 52, graduated in Marine Engineering from National
Taiwan Ocean University. Mr. Wu has joined T'Cement since
1988. He has acquired practical experience through holding
various posts responsible for plant construction planning,
product dispatching management, storage and transportation
management, standardized plant operation and advanced plant

management. He joined the Group in October 2007.

Mr. Wu Jianping

President of Yingde Dragon Mountain Cement Co., Ltd

Mr. Wu, aged 45, graduated from Shanghai Tongji University and
joined a large-scale cement group since 1988. He is now the
chairman and president of several cement companies in the PRC.
Mr. Wu has more than 20 years of experience in the production,
operation and management of the cement industry. He joined the
Group in April 2010.

Mr. Wu Likang

President of Prosperity Minerals (China) Limited Hangzhou
Representative Office

Mr. Wu, aged 44, graduated in Silicate from Wuhan Industrial
University. Mr. Wu is a senior cement expert of China’s cement
industry. He has held senior management positions in a large-
scale cement group in the PRC. He has more than 20 years of
experience in corporate strategic planning, plant design and
planning, engineering construction, cement manufacturing and

operational management. He joined the Group in April 2010.
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Mr. Zhang Mulin

President of Liaoning Changqging Cement Co., Ltd and
President of TCC Chongqing Cement Company Ltd

Mr. Zhang, aged 43, graduated in Business Administration from
Wuhan Institute of Urban Construction. Mr. Zhang has held senior
management positions in a large-scale cement group in the PRC.
He has more than 20 years of experience in human resources
management, corporate management, cement manufacturing

and production operation. He joined the Group in April 2010.

Mr. Yao Chengfu

President of Guangan Changxing Cement Co., Ltd

Mr. Yao, aged 40, graduated in Mining Engineering from Hunan
Xiangtan Mining Institute. Mr. Yao was the Deputy General
Manager in a large-scale cement company in the PRC. He
has more than 10 years of experience in mine management,
cement manufacturing, production operation and engineering

construction. He joined the Group in April 2010.

Mr. Yu Chunhua

President of Guizhou Anshun Changxing Cement Co., Ltd

Mr. Yu, aged 54, graduated in Cement Technology from Anhui
University of Architecture. Mr. Yu has held senior management
positions in several large-scale cement companies in the
PRC, and has more than 20 years of experience in cement
manufacturing, production operation and engineering

construction. He joined the Group in April 2010.

RAMEE
HEEFKEERATBEEREE (EF) K
TEE R 2 aj AR
REERFAm RERREUREREXE
BEX - RAELGETREARKEEREEEIS
MEERE EANERERE ©EEE KR
E LEKEENTERBE - T2FNER K
RZFB-—ZTFNAMAREH-

B EL T S

BEZEHAKEERL aJARE

R ERFI05 RERNABEEMEBREZS R
REIREX - EETETRRIKERA
EERIAKE ERLER KERE LEK
LTITRERFHNEREA TZFNER KRR
E-TFEMAMAREE -

THEEXE

BEMLIEE ZEAEERE ML AJHBAE

TRAERFLAR EXERNLTHEETESEMRK

RIZ2EX - TRAEBESZRKPRERIKER

AEESREERS EXORRE LELE.

TRERFITARE-_T2FNER-FR=
E-TFEMAMAREE -

Annual Report 2010 F 3§

31



32

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEERE

Mr. Cheung Chi Wah, Patrick

Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the Group

Mr. Cheung, aged 40, joined the Group in September 2010
and is mainly responsible for the accounting and financial
management and company secretarial matters of the Group.
He holds an Honours Degree in Accountancy from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and a Master Degree in Information
Technology Management from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He is an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Prior to joining the Group, he had worked
at a leading international accounting firm for about 5 years and
had served senior management position in a listed company for
over 10 years. He has over 15 years of professional experience
in corporate finance, financial management, accounting and

auditing.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the provisions of the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) set out
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) throughout the accounting year ended 31 December
2010, save for the exceptions that the Company has not fixed
the terms of appointment for the non-executive Directors which
deviates from the provision of A.4.1 of the CG Code. However,
they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
provision to the Company’s Articles of Association, and their
appointment will be reviewed when they are due for re-election.
As such, in the opinion of the Directors, the principle of CG Code
A.4 that all Directors should be subject to re-election at regular
intervals has been up held.

CODES OF CONDUCT ON DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for securities
transactions and dealings (the “Code of Conduct”) based on the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules. The terms of the Code of Conduct are no less exacting
than the standards in the Model Code, and the Code of Conduct
applies to all the relevant persons as defined in the Model
Code,
of the Company, or a Director or employee of a subsidiary or

including the Directors of the Company, any employee

holding company of the Company who, because of such office
or employment, are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price sensitive information in relation to the Company or its
securities. Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year of 2010, save that, as his written notices
of intended dealings, and the written clearances, have not been
located amongst his own records or the Company’s records,
one of the Directors cannot confirm that he fully complied with
the requirements regarding such notices and clearances under
Rule B8 of the Model Code in relation to certain of his share
acquisitions made during the year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year, the Board comprised two executive and seven
non-executive Directors of whom three are independent as
defined by the Stock Exchange. The number of independent
non-executive Directors and the non-executive Directors
represents 33% and 44% of the Board respectively. To enhance
independence and accountability, the role and responsibility
of the Group Chairman, Mr. Koo, Cheng-Yun, Leslie and the
Group Managing Director, Mr. Wu Yih Chin, is separated (the
biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 25 to

28).

In accordance with the Articles, all Directors appointed to fill a
causal vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at
the first general meeting after their appointment. At every annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or,
if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third shall retire from office by

rotation.

The Board meets in person or through other electronic means
of communication at least four times every year. The Board
is responsible for overseeing the Group’s businesses and
development, formulating long term strategies and policies.
The Board also monitors and controls operating and financial
performance in pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. All
Directors and Board committees have recourse to external legal
counsel and other professionals for independent advice at the
Group’s expense if they require it. The Board has delegated
the day-to-day management and operation of the Group’s

businesses to management.

Pursuant to the requirements of the CG Code, two Board
committees, namely, the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee were established to oversee particular aspects of the

Group'’s affairs.
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Details of the attendance of individual Directors at the Board
meetings and the two Committees meetings during the year are

set out in the table below:

BFEENFAREFEERAMEZES SR
ZHEXRFBERTXR:

Meetings Attended/Held
HEBITEER
Audit Remuneration

Board Committee Committee

EEg EREES yFMzES
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Koo, Cheng-Yun, Leslie ZRAEE 5/5 N/AT i A 1/1
Mr. Wu Yih Chin REREE 5/5 2/2* 11
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Dr. Shan Weijian BREEEL 3/5 N/A i A N/ATNE A
Mr. Chang, An-Ping, Nelson REFHEE 3/5 N/AZ 3 B N/AT i F
Mr. Chang, Kang-Lung, Jason oR Ml 4 % 4/5 N/AF i F N/AZ i# F
Ms. Wang, Lishin, Elizabeth FuLZL 4/5 2/2 N/A/ i A
Independent non-executive Directors B EHITES
Mr. Liao Poon Huai, Donald BARERE 3/5 2/2 1/1
Dr. Chih Ching Kang, Kenneth B RE LT 5/5 2/2 1/1
Mr. Shieh, Jen-Chung, Roger WEBEE 5/5 2/2 11

* The Director is not a member of the committee at the relevant time

but attended the meetings by invitation.

Y REBEERNEEBRYIZEENEERBLE
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

According to the Articles of the Company, the Board has the
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as
a Director either to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the
Board. The nomination should be taken into consideration of the
nominee’s qualification, ability and potential contributions to the

Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee was established in 1999 and its members
comprise three independent non-executive Directors and a non-

executive Director:

Mr. Liao Poon Huai, Donald
Dr. Chih Ching Kang, Kenneth
Mr. Shieh, Jen-Chung, Roger
Ms. Wang, Lishin, Elizabeth

(Chairman of the Committee)

All members possess diversified industry experiences and
appropriate professional qualifications as required under the

Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year. Their
major duties and responsibilities are set out in the terms of
reference and the work conducted by the Audit Committee

included the following matters:

1. Reviewed the Group’s 2009 annual and 2010 interim
reports, internal controls and corporate governance issues,
financial and accounting policies and practices and made

recommendations to the Board;

2. Recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor and to develop policy
on the engagement of an external auditor to supply non-

audit services;
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3. Discussed with the external auditor their independence and

the nature and scope of the audit; and

4. Discussed with the external auditor any material queries
raised by the auditor to management in respect of the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control

and management’s response.

The Committee reviewed the Group’s internal control based
on the information obtained from the external auditor and
Company’s management and was of the opinion that there are

adequate internal controls in place in the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors and two executive Directors:

Mr. Liao Poon Huai, Donald (Chairman of the Committee)
Mr. Koo, Cheng-Yun, Leslie

Mr. Wu Yih Chin

Dr. Chih Ching Kang, Kenneth

Mr. Shieh, Jen-Chung, Roger

Its major terms of reference are summarized as follows:

1. To formulate and recommend to the Board the policy for
the remuneration of the executive Directors and other senior

executives as designated by the Board;

2.  To determine the individual remuneration package of each
executive Director including basic salary, annual bonus plans

and allocation of share options;
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3. To consider and recommend to the Board any payment
or compensation commitment to be made to an executive

Director on termination of his contract;

4. In formulating its policy, the Committee shall give due regard
to the contents of the Listing Rules and shall also consider
market forces and compare between different remuneration
packages paid to directors of other companies of a similar
size in comparable industries. The executive Directors may
attend meetings of the Remuneration Committee when
invited to do so, but not when their own remuneration is

being discussed; and

5. To determine any performance related remuneration

schemes and executive share option schemes.

The Remuneration Committee is authorized by the Board to seek
any information it requires from any employee of the Company in

order to perform its duties.

In connection with its duties, the Remuneration Committee is
required by the Board to select, set terms of reference for and
appoint remuneration consultants, at the Company’s expense
as the Remuneration Committee deems necessary in order to

perform its duties.

The Remuneration Committee sets the remuneration policy for
the executive Directors and senior management. Specifically,
the Remuneration Committee agrees their service contracts,
salaries, other benefits, including bonuses and other terms and
conditions of employment. It also agrees terms for their cessation

of employment.

One meeting was held in 2010 with the attendance rate of 100%.
No executive Director takes part in any discussion about his own

remuneration.

TCC International Holdings Limited & JE Bl B &£ B B R 2 &

3. ZRELRAEFSRE

EARIEANANTE
XA Z AR R A E AR

4. EFRIEEBRRE ZERERSERLD

MAIZAT TMEZEETH SN E RLEA
BHBITERUREZHMRARXIN TE
BE2TRFMES ATTEFAIEER
B EHE HER T mEA S
N2 RERSN:

R R
BEEEm

5. BEREMEERIAAZ FHMEE RITHA
BB S -

FHEZESRESERRAARREAREER
RERMAFER ABITHBE -

REBEMS FTHEESENARK/ETH
BEVAREZESTGRERER HIEBERE
NEEHMER BRAAQFAE-

FHZEEHERTESR
1287 R l/wES E%Méé%ﬁ%& EZRBEH
o HMEMN SFEaREMBEZGRK
Rt - EIR R B EF R L RBEZ RK -

BEEE ZFH M

ARRAR-E-TEDEAR—KEH BE
S B100% - BB S SR BILA
2 55 -



Corporate Governance Report
TEERBRSE

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the fees charged to the accounts of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the non-statutory audit services
amounted to HK$3,994,000. The non-statutory audit services
consist of financial due diligence, tax compliance and the interim
review. The cost of statutory audit services provided by external
auditor was HK$4,170,000. The responsibilities of the external
auditor with respect to financial reporting are set out in the

section of “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 55 to 57.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had issued announcement in respect
of a number of “connected transactions”, details of which have
been included in the Report of the Directors on pages 40 to 54

and the related announcements.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board recognizes its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
accounts which give a true and fair view and are in accordance
with generally accepted accounting standards published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;
judgments and estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for
maintaining an adequate internal control system and reviewing
its effectiveness through the Audit Committee. The Company
management maintains and monitors the systems of controls on

an ongoing basis.

Based on the assessment made by the Company’s management
and external auditor during its statutory audit, the Audit
Committee satisfied that the internal control system is sufficient
to provide reasonable assurances that the Group’s assets are
safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition,
transactions are properly authorized and proper accounting
records are maintained. In addition, the Board considered
that the resources, qualifications and experience of the staff
responsible for the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function, their training and budget are adequate. The system
is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in the Group’s operational system.

B E £

FRARAREWBARKEARIEET%
RGNS 2 & A 53,994,000 7T ° IEE F &
YRGB EBEER R EHEM - SNEZEAD
R 2 ETEZE RIS KA H4,170,0007%8 7T © )
S MERMY KRR BTN ES5ETHE

(BB HREE] —£-

FRCARERSEMERS | BHAL #
EHRBAOEAEESRREERBMD

%o

Bt 75 R 3R
ETSHREEGEARBERSSTMASEM
ZAREHENRGHREEQNFT 2 ARAEKR RN
FRBEFECEARE QT HRELERMER:
e Z FIE R ET B BRI -

P 2P B 2
§$A2¥a“f&ﬁyf/ﬁ1ﬁ:£2m%ﬁ%% #
fAYBEREZZREER TEEJMZ RRREHE
?;z SEEEGFRERERRGE-

BERNAFEEERINEZBAIRNETEESR
BREL 2T EZEZESEMAMEER
HENRHEAERE BRASEZEEXY
REE-UTEREREFAIRE  BRZ B
HERREIRTFEE 2GT0E WIN EFE
RE BEARASHEMBREBECET
BERAZER BRI BEBIRER
MR- EERRELRHEAGEAFEBERE
VAR 3R B K $E SR PR sk 1B 2K - I B I 1 3 0H
BRAEEZLEZRIB AR -

Annual Report 2010 F 3§

39



40

Report of the Directors

EEEHRES

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activities of the Group consist of the import and
distribution of cement in Hong Kong, the manufacture and
distribution of cement, clinker and slag powder in other areas
of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

associates, the Group is also engaged in the production and

Through its

distribution of ready-mixed concrete in Hong Kong and the PRC.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s

principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on pages 58 to 59. The Directors now recommend
the payment of a final dividend of HK4.8 cents per share to
the shareholders on the register of members on 27 May 2011,
estimated to be HK$158,190,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the ordinary share
capital and non-redeemable convertible preference shares of the
Company are set out in note 33 and note 34 to the consolidated

financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to existing shareholders.
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RESERVES
Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity on page 62.

At 31 December 2010, the Company’s reserve, including the
share premium and contributed surplus accounts, available
for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie, computed
in accordance with the Companies Law (2004 Revision) of the
Cayman lIslands, amounted to HK$8,157,707,000. Under the
laws of the Cayman Islands, a company may make distributions
to its members from the share premium and contributed surplus

accounts under certain circumstances.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report are:

Executive Directors:
KOO, Cheng-Yun, Leslie (Chairman)
WU Yih Chin (Managing Director)

Non-executive Directors:
SHAN Weijian

CHANG, An-Ping, Nelson
CHANG, Kang-Lung, Jason
WANG, Lishin, Elizabeth

Independent non-executive Directors:
LIAO Poon Huai, Donald

CHIH Ching Kang, Kenneth

SHIEH, Jen-Chung, Roger
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The Company has received annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors as regards their
independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Rules Governing the Listing Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The Company considers that each of the independent non-

executive Directors is independent to the Company.

In accordance with Article 116 of the Articles of Association,
Mr. Wu Yih Chin, Ms. Wang, Lishin, Elizabeth and Mr. Liao Poon
Huai, Donald shall retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the

senior management of the Group are set out on pages 25 to 32.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company,
its holding companies, any of its fellow subsidiaries or
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in

note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

On 283 May 2006, the old share option scheme was cancelled
and a new share option scheme was adopted by the Company.
No option under this new scheme has been granted from its first

adoption to 31 December 2010.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2010, the Directors, Chief Executive or their
associates had interests in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company and its associated corporations as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”) as follows:

(i) Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

i A2 St 8l
AR7A 2 BRAES B BHR GRS M HRM
i35 °

ERREASR _ETENFRAA_t=ZHDE
BUH - MARBIRE B RS — BB R g
Z-BHARRMZAEE_T-—TF+_H
=+ HLEHRE ARAMEREZNTEE
i fr BB A A

EERTHRASNEF 2ER

RZE-—ZEF+-_A=+—H REARFR
& MGG ([F 5 KB %D ) %3524
BEFZELMATR ARBZEE - THEAEK
HE B ALTRARE REREEE 2 i) M
FAR (D < s B HI N T -

) REXFEERZHFR

Percentage of
the Company’s

Capacity and Number of issued

Name of Directors nature of interest shares held share capital

HERDBEEIT

EspgR BEEBZZHORMEE Fris iR 0 BB REZBD L

KOO, Cheng-Yun, Leslie Directly beneficially owned 52,327,019 1.59%
ES o BEEERESR

WU Yih Chin Directly beneficially owned 5,650,000 0.17%
RERK EEERHEE

CHANG, Kang-Lung, Jason Directly beneficially owned 3,000,000 0.09%
5 [l 4 BEEERHER

60,977,019 1.85%
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(i) Long positions in shares and underlying shares of (i) AHEBZIERAREBROZEFR
associated corporations
Taiwan Cement Corporation (“T’Cement”)* BEKERGBERAL T ([T'Cement ]) *

Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

FEZROBE SHRERME

Directly Through Through Approximately
beneficially spouse or controlled percentage of
owned  minor children corporation Total shareholding
BBEAR BB HAERAE
Name of Directors EEME ERERER AREFZ RS @t Bak
KOO, Cheng-Yun, Leslie =59 46,827,543 91 372,423,838 419,251,472 11.36%
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(FizE1) (Kisk2)
WU Yih Chin REHN 121,944 - - 121,944 0.01%
CHANG, An-Ping, Nelson KR2YT 156,573 3,059,817 7,155,821 10,372,211 0.28%
(Note 1)
(FizE1)
LIAO Poon Huai, Donald BARE 12,616 789,293 - 801,909 0.02%
(Note 1)
(FizE1)
CHIH Ching Kang, Kenneth hE R 50,000 - - 50,000 0.01%
* The ultimate holding company of the Company. Y ARB]ZEREFERDA]
Notes: Kt it -
(1) The shares are held by the respective Directors’ spouses as (1) BBESEFIRBEAZLERERRE
the registered and beneficial shareholders. Ao
(2) Koo, Cheng-Yun, Lesile, together with his spouse, are 2 EXARERBREESHES 2AGH
interested in companies controlled by them, which holds HmEREZ MABAREHLFEAET Cement
372,423,838 shares of T'Cement. 372,423,838/ A& 17 ©

44 TCC International Holdings Limited & E B MR E B E R 2 7
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, the
Company has not been notified of any interests or short positions
were held or deemed to be held under Part XV of the SFO by any
Director or Chief Executive of the Company or their respective
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to the Model
Code or which were required pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO to be recorded in the register referred to therein. Nor any
of the Directors and the Chief Executive (including their spouses
and children under the age of 18) had, as at 31 December 2010,
any interest in, or had been granted any right to subscribe for
the securities and options of the Company and its associated
corporations within the meaning of the SFO, or had exercised any

such rights.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year, there were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Director or their respective spouses
or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by the
Directors; or was the Company, or any of its holding companies,
fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body

corporate.
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SHAREHOLDERS WITH NOTIFIABLE

INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2010, the register of substantial shareholders

maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO

shows that the following shareholders had notified the Company

of the relevant interests in the issued share capital of the

BREARREZ ZRR

RZE-TFE+-_A=+—0 REAQFK
EREBAEROIFEIBHKREFTCETERRERL
AR THRREMEARARE  BERBEAR
AEBITRAZE@ERER-

Company.
Percentage of
the Company’s
Capacity and Number of issued
Name nature of interest ordinary shares held share capital
EARBE#RLT
=X FEREZBHRME FREEBERHE RAEZBEDHL
TCC International Limited Directly beneficially owned 1,861,802,000 56.49%
ERERER
T'Cement (Note 1) Through a controlled corporation 1,861,802,000 56.49%
T'Cement (#73£1) FHRZIEGEE
Chia Hsin Pacific Limited (“CHPL”) Directly beneficially owned 525,199,500 15.94%
EEREEER
Chia Hsin Cement Corporation Through a controlled corporation 525,199,500 15.94%

(“Chia Hsin Cement”) (Note 2)
2HKERMDAERAA
(IR (HiE2)

Notes:

BB EGEE

(1)  T’'Cement is interested in the shares of the Company by virtue of

its beneficial ownership of the entire issued share capital of TCC

International Limited.

(2) Chia Hsin Cement is interested in the shares of the Company held

by its subsidiary, CHPL.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, no other
person had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
disclosed to the Company or the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
sales revenue. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers

accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital,
had any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers and

suppliers during the year.

RELATED PARTIES AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions, which fall within the definition
stipulated in the Hong Kong Accounting Standard 24 “Related
Party Disclosures”, undertaken by the Group during the year
are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.
The transactions included in note 44 items (i) to (vi) to the
consolidated financial statements also constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined under Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange.

R P BEEIN RZE—TF+_A=+—
B #BEEMALTRARRZRG REERK
FARGIAR MARBIESFRBEKOIE
XVEBEE2 K35 80 2 #1 7E A& 2N 1 7] B Bk 22 P -
HARERARAIREEF KA EKHI£336
GEEzERMA-

FEEFRMER

REREEERN AAEEEAEREL 2 #E
58 A S B9 U A 0% A T - AR B T
A A2 B 7 1 M 2 BRI 5 7 2 B 48 SR8 530%
AT -

REERN ARBEFLAREZEMBEAL
HIBEFPTAGEE AR BIIRAE% A L2 E A
RBERAEEEMAEATP RHEF
B
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EECHE TV SEFERERSEEEZ %
connected transactions under which a conditional waiver from EREEBRIOEEEERREREST LT
MBI EUAZEMBEEBEFERER S ZHE:

The Directors have reviewed the following continuing

strict compliance with the continuing connected transaction
requirements as set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules has

been obtained:

Annual cap
under the waiver

granted by the

Amount Stock Exchange Notes
RIBH R AT
28 FRBRZEELR Mz
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHT THT
Leasing of a site on Tsing Yi Island, mARA—RHRZHBA A
Hong Kong, from a fellow subsidiary of HEREFTKE —RIK
the Company 4,320 4,320 1
Leasing of a site in Tondo, Manila, MARE L ZEERRAZ
the Philippines, from an associate of —HBEARHEFRAESE
the Company’s ultimate holding company 5 E i Tondo— S0 7 1,115 1,115 1
Purchase of cement in Hong Kong fromthe  RIZAQ Bl 2 &K A A K
Company's ultimate holding company and EMNBARERBEAKE
its subsidiaries 23,727 152,000 2
Purchase of cement and/or clinker in the MADRZ ZEERRAR
PRC from the Company'’s ultimate holding HINBAREHREBA
company and its subsidiaries US N YE % 58,408 82,000 2
Supply of cement to a substantial shareholder 7 — & F B E R EM B L Al
and its subsidiaries SRR 5,611 112,000 2

TCC International Holdings Limited &k B &£ B B R A A
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Annual cap
under the waiver

granted by the

Amount Stock Exchange Notes
BB H R AT
¢E FRBEZEELR i3
HK$'000 HK$’000
THET TET
Receive of transportation and management BARAZAZNBA RS
services from fellow subsidiaries of BHREERRY
the Company 173,593 389,700 2
Supply of limestone to a subsidiary of A—EXERRZ—H
a substantial shareholder MBLRMEARA - 8,900 3
Purchase of slag from a subsidiary of W— &I EERR R 2 —
a non-controlling shareholder MHEARBARE - 63,000 3
Receive of logistic and unloading services BALE—FHEZMEBELDH
from a fellow subsidiary of the Company REMRRHE RS - 20,000 3
Purchase of clinker from a subsidiary of M—2ETERR—HNBAR
a substantial shareholder BEARE - 350,000 3
Use of jetting service by a subsidiary of —ZFERRz-RHBLAE
a substantial shareholder FRERARMLEER% - 4,100 3
Supply of slag powder to a substantial M- T ERRRENBAR
shareholder and its subsidiaries HEEED - 19,000 4
Receive of maintenance services of AARRZARNBAR
a computer software system from RUEEREHZREERE
fellow subsidiaries of the Company 5,473 6,552 4
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Notes:

(1) The basis of the pricing policies for the above continuing connected
transaction is set out in greater details in the prospectus of the

Company dated 23 September 1997.

(2) The basis of the price determination for the above continuing
connected transactions is set out in greater details in circular to the

shareholders of the Company dated 5 January 2010.

(3) The basis of the price determination for the above continuing
connected transaction is set out in greater details in circular to the

shareholders of the Company dated 11 January 2008.

(4) The basis of the price determination for the above continuing
connected transaction is set out in greater details in the
announcement to the shareholders of the Company dated 16

December 2009.

The Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions have
been approved by the board of Directors and, in their opinion,

were:

(@) conducted on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary

and usual course of business of the Group;

(b) fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the

Company are concerned;

(c) entered into either in accordance with the terms of the
agreements governing such transactions or, where there are
no such agreements, on terms that are no less favourable
than those available to or from independent third parties;

and

(d) within the annual cap under the waiver granted by the Stock

Exchange.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter
containing the auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule
14A.38. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

All independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions and the report of the auditor
and confirmed that the transactions have been entered into
by the Company in the ordinary course of its business, on
normal commercial terms, and in accordance with the terms
of the agreement governing such transactions that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the

Company as a whole.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the

year.

BIE ETRAIE14A3806 AR R B A EZ
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¥ BRI B #F 1 ([ Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules | ) " iR EBHEBERIHELIE
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of Rule 13.21
of the Listing Rules, the following disclosures are included in
respect of the Company’s loan agreements, which contain
covenants requiring performance obligations of the controlling

shareholder of the Company.

Pursuant to a loan agreement and an amendment to loan
agreement dated 23 October 2008 and 30 June 2010,
respectively, between the Company and certain banks relating
to three-year term loan facility of HK$500,000,000, a loan
agreement and an amendment to loan agreement dated 30 July
2009 and 30 June 2010, respectively, between the Company
and certain banks relating to a three-year term loan facility of
HK$750,000,000, and a loan agreement dated 3 September
2010 between the Company and certain banks relating to a
three-year term loan facility of HK$1,920,000,000 a termination
event would arise if () T'Cement ceases to own legally and
beneficially, at least 30% of the shares in the Company’s capital
or (ii) the Group fails to meet the financial covenants stipulated in

the loan facility.

Pursuant to a loan agreement dated 16 May 2008 between
the Company and a bank relating to a two-year loan facility of
HK$150,000,000 with final maturity date on 4 May 2011, a loan
agreement dated 6 December 2010 between the Company and
a bank relating to a two-year loan facility of HK$128,000,000,
a termination event would arise if (i) T'Cement ceases to
own legally and beneficially, at least 30% of the shares in the
Company’s capital or (i) the Group fails to meet the financial

covenants stipulated in the loan facility.
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Pursuant to a loan agreement dated 19 May 2010 between
the Company and a bank relating to a two-year loan facility of
HK$50,000,000, a termination event would arise if T'Cement
ceases to own legally and beneficially, at least 30% of the shares

in the Company’s capital.

Pursuant to a loan agreement dated 14 April 2010 between
the Company and a bank relating to a one-year loan facility of
HK$40,000,000, a loan agreement dated 15 June 2010 between
the Company and a bank relating to a one-year loan facility of
HK$20,000,000, a termination event would arise if T'Cement
ceases to own legally and beneficially, at least 30% of the shares

in the Company’s capital.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on

pages 33 to 39.

EMOLUMENT POLICY
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,

qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market

statistics.
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Report of the Directors
EEEREE

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Details of the Company’s Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on

pages 33 to 39.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, there is
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules throughout the

year ended 31 December 2010.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results and its assets and liabilities for

the past five years is set out on page 184.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as

auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

KOO, Cheng-Yun, Leslie
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong
17 March 2011
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZHEBRES

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF
TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
TCC International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 58 to 183, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2010, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

BeREREEARARATRR
(RESEHEZMHALZHRLA])

FECERIIHENESSE18A SRR EEAR
RAR([ERAR REMEAR (REIE%
Bz BRR - SBAMBRREER =
E-TFE+_A=t+—HZHEaUBRREK"
NEBEZRALFEZEAEEZENRER KA
REZHRMGARERERER T ERFH
RMBREAMM TR

EENRAUBHRR2ER

EAFCERBRELEBRHALLBM
BB BREEARE SR G 2 HBERE
RUEERATZGANBRE T AEER
EERAUEAMNBER UERSES
B R T B A K B I (i R E I
SR EH) -

Annual Report 2010 F 3§

55




56

Independent Auditor’s Report
B B A RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A RS

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

17 March 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEHEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=F—FF+=-FA=+—HIFE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —EThF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 FERT FET
Revenue W 7= 6 8,125,854 3,953,940
Cost of sales 5 & A AR (6,596,337) (3,449,871)
Gross profit EF 1,529,517 504,069
Investment income TEWA 7 33,688 32,286
Other income, gains and losses EaUg A - Wz K EiE 8 148,790 84,572
Selling and distribution expenses  $H%& k7 $HFA X (319,756) (173,606)
General and administrative — B RITHRAX
expenses (342,496) (151,772)
Finance costs A& AR 9 (318,028) (148,859)
731,715 146,690
Share of results of associates BEBERNA 2 EE 224,086 25,052
Profit before tax B 253 A i A1) 10 955,801 171,742
Income tax expense PGB i 12 (116,774) (16,922)
Profit for the year R JZ 5 A 839,027 154,820
Other comprehensive income HEn2mE K=
Exchange differences arising MEREINEKEEZ
on translation to presentation PEH =58
currency 408,175 109,262
Gain on revaluation of property FEEYERE 4,758 16,700
Income tax relating to BREGMEZFER
revaluation of property (795) (2,862)
Share of other comprehensive FEREEE AR 2 H A
income (loss) of associates Fmdz (5E) 40,515 (1,929)
Other comprehensive income RFEEM 2R
for the year 452,653 121,171
Total comprehensive income rEEEEWERTE
for the year 1,291,680 275,991
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
ReEEEWRER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=F—FTF+=-FA=+—HIFE

2010 2009
—E-E5F —ETAF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k23 FBT FET
Profit for the year attributable to:  [&1h A& & [Z5 5 :
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE7F =N 784,053 120,254
Non-controlling interests IR = 54,974 34,566
839,027 154,820
Total comprehensive income G2 E WS BEE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company VN/NEIEZ RSN 1,224,382 238,257
Non-controlling interests JEIE R HE = 67,298 37,734
1,291,680 275,991
2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNF
(Restated)
(&=5))
Earnings per share stz 14
- Basic —HAK HK28.4 centsi& 1l HK8.0 centsi& Il
- Diluted — 8 HK28.4 centsi& 1l HK8.0 cents/& Il
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At 31 December 2010 R=F—FF+=H=+—H

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
—E-2% ZTENE ZTENE
+=ZA=+-8 +-A=+-8 —B—8
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
st THT THL FEL
(Restated) (Restated)
(BEF) (BE7)
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BERSE 15 12,816,206 8,815,063 5,053,368
Prepaid lease payments BHHERE 16 1,599,818 907,934 702,429
Intangible assets BVEE 17 2,648,561 812,578 7,839
Mining rights REBE 18 398,562 205,512 55,990
Interests in associates BEARER 20 1,414,776 116,808 116,285
Loan to an associate BELRER 20 2,200 14,400 16,800
Long term deposits REZ® 720 720 720
Loan receivables JERE R 21 109,740 84,750 -
Deposits for acquisition of property, WENE BEREER
plant and equipment and other assets HEEZ & 712,127 245,969 302,561
Deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries WENBARZFT S - 804,410 -
Available-for-sale investments AfHERE 22 59,772 54,509 58,713
Deferred tax assets ERFEEE 31 1,275 33
Pledged bank deposits BEABITER 25 2,360 - -
19,766,117 12,062,653 6,314,738
Current assets MEEE
Inventories BE 23 895,105 671,108 410,283
Prepaid lease payments BHHERE 16 40,695 24,881 20,019
Prepayments, deposits and BARE ek
other receivables H iR RIE 792,268 395,390 123,048
Loan receivables R E X 21 21,240 12,121 49,309
Trade receivables MR E SRR 24 1,811,954 553,872 210,435
Tax recoverables A EFIE 77 1,303 -
Held-for-trading investments FEXHRABZRE 22 327,100 267,943 257,810
Pledged bank deposits EEBRBRIER 25 27,094 36,913 452
Time deposits THER 25 24,780 85,137 111,703
Cash and bank balances ReRBRTEHS 25 3,323,082 968,611 921,882
7,263,395 3,017,279 2,104,941
Current liabilities e E
Trade payables ERESER 26 1,623,329 681,993 311,572
Other payables and accrued liabilities HtERFREREFAE 892,360 428,455 264,501
Tax payables FER IR 47,064 24,592 4,756
Bank loans fﬁﬁ%ﬁ)\ 27 3,529,456 5,249,080 1,590,520
Senior notes BEER 28 139,396 - -
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders & {7 FF % i i B 708 29 93,785 14,619 17,619
Amount due to immediate holding company ~ JEN EEBIEK A A fXIE 30 - 405,500 -
6,325,390 6,804,239 2,188,968
Net current assets (iabilities) REEE (BE)FE 938,005 (3,786,960) (84,027)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERAHEE 20,704,122 8,275,693 6,230,711
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BRI R

At 31 December 2010 R=F—FF+=-H=+—H

31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
—E-Ef “ETNE ZTENE
+=A=+-8 +-A=+-8 —-B—8
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Hrsz THT TET FTEL
(Restated) (Restated)
(BEF) (BE7)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank loans BITER 27 8,489,568 1,560,867 1,959,999
Amount due to immediate holding company ~ JE & B A 7)50A 30 932,400 - 265,500
Long term payable REERFE 9,133 - -
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE 31 364,091 202,634 143,748
9,795,192 1,763,501 2,369,247
10,908,930 6,512,192 3,861,464
Capital and reserves R R G4
Share capital - ordinary shares AR 2R — 3 A% 33 329,563 128,905 128,245
Share capital - non-redeemable convertible %7K — 7~ A i [e] AT 85 #4/8 S % 34
preference shares - 65,117 -
Reserves f#E 10,282,817 6,126,214 3,562,096
Equity attributable to owners of ARRHEBANELER
the Company 10,612,380 6,320,236 3,690,341
Non-controlling interests RS 296,550 191,956 171,123
10,908,930 6,512,192 3,861,464

FEBEI1BBAZHFRAMBHEACN T ——F
ZATLERESSRBRREHRR AAMN

The consolidated financial statements on pages 58 to 183 were

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

17 March 2011 and are signed on its behalf by: TATRAEEZEE:
KOO, CHENG-YUN, LESLIE WU YIH CHIN
EZ/R A REK
CHAIRMAN MANAGING DIRECTOR
B EE o Fg

Annual Report 2010 F 3§



>
&=
=)
(on
Ll
=
7
v
(o)}
=
©
<
9
Y
o
hd
c
[}
S
(]
hd
©
whd
(%)
©
()
whd
©
o
o
n
c
(®)
9

X2 &
fm &

B

For the year ended 31 December 2010

A=1—HIFE

=Sy

— ==
it

&=

0€6'806'0}  095'96C 088'749'0L  268'SY9 e0r'e y08'eL 280'G€8 £9¢6'Ly 0gL's 9.0 £92'80¢ - 7Or'e9r's - £95'628 H—+=H-4+H&-&"% 010¢ equisdeq 1g
- - - (990'gt) - 990Gy - - - - - - - - - TEYHIUTEE punj ensasal AIOJIESS 0 JajsUel|
18219 18219 - - - - - - - - - - - =R 1R
(166'62) (166'¢2) - - - - - - - - - - - - - slepjoyaleys
SYE TN Bujj013u00-uou o} pred spus)
(ev6'er) - (ev6'er) (eve'eh) - - - - - - - - - - - Rt SPUBPIAID 10 UBWAEY
(e62'2%) - (c62'2h) - - - - - - - - - (e6z'2r) - - S0IBYS MOU
YHLYH LWL E  108nss| 0] 9[GRINGUIE SIS0 UONIRSURIL
ore'e0e’c - Tr6'0e'c - - - - - - - - 880261 - 98'60} [abieTadE Suitv 4 anss| syl Japun saleys mau Jo anss|
088 - 08¢ - - - - - - - - (69) 657 - 08 WYHYLL suofdo aleys Jo esiolexg
- - - - - - - - - - - - - (L11'59) LHH'S9 Saleys souasejaid 8[gIUeAL0D
pipie-vs e NG 9|(BWaBPBI-UOU JO UOISIBAUOD)
719'9t8 - 719'9%8 - - - - - - - - - 110'128 - 169'62 OB EHESRYY Buioeld Japun seseys meu Jo anss|
089'162' 86¢'29 288722’ £90'78. 80r'e (ger) L0v'vEy £96'c - - - - - - - Xe} J0 j8u
EHU BHEWETE Sy Yeak oy} Joj SW00Ul BNSUSYBIdWOD [elo)
€992 e 62€ 07y - £07' (8ev) Lor'ver £96' - - - - - - - OHETHEE Sy Jeak 8y} 10} sWOOU! GNSUBYRIALIOD JBUIQ
120'668 v16'v8 £90'78. £90'78. - - - - - - - - - - - YBE LY 1eak au} Joj 10id
2642199 996'16} 9620269 (eSK'eh) - 9/5'8¢ 189'007 007'ey 0gL's 9.0 £92'80¢ 68 °61187'S Lh'eg 06'82} B—4+=HT+3YEE— 600 J8quisdsq e 1Y
- - - (egr'e) - 29k'e - - - - - - - - - TEYHIUTEE punj ensasal AIOJNIESS 0 JajsUel|
(106'9}) (106'91) - - - - - - - - - - - - - EIEET
TR HEY W Buyjosuoo-uou o} pred spusping
996’8 - 9568 - - - - - - - - (156'1) 199'6 - 099 YL suodo eieys Jo esioixg
82'€86'C - 82686 - - - - - - - - - 691'81€'C LS9 - 9252 [} aJeys Jo anss|
166'GL0 veL'LE 152'8E0 5202} - (6') rHo0k 8e8'ch - - - - - - - Xe} J0 Jou
EHH EHEWETE Sy Yesk oy} Joj sWOOU| BNSUSYBIdWOD [elo)
AT 89L'e £00'81H 1 - - (L26') ri'ol 868'cl - - - - - - - TREIHEE LY Jeok ay) o) aLI0oul aNSUBLRIAWO JLIQ
02875+ 99576 ¥52'0c+ v52'0el - - - - - - - - - - - VBE LY Jeok 8} 1o} 10Id
v9v'198' geHhL 176'069'6  (9v2'99H) - 166'22 665760 295'6¢ 0EL's 9.0 £€92'800 0r0' 0vE'651'¢ - Sre'8el B-H-HY&ETH 6007 Aienuer | 1y
(962 H) (%€ZH)
9¢ o100 9¢ a10n)
Lgd Yyt Yyt Yyt Yyt Yyt Lgt Lyt L Lgt Y+ Y+ Ygt Yyt Yyt
000.$1H 000.$H 000.$%H 000,$%H 000.$%H 000.$%H 000.$%H 000.$%H 000.$%H 000$%H 000,$3H 000,$3H 000,$3H 000,$%H 000.8MH
23 e 355 S HEBY Y8RE TEYY YBER YHYE YHOHYE $EvE BEYE YHENE  EROW W¥BHEL- WER-
(HH4E) E£S Y ERAWT p:] p4:]
Kynba sisalalul [eloL syyod anesal puny EIVERL)] anasal EIVERL)] anasal snjdins aniesal wniwaid saleys Saleys
[ejoL Bujonuod paulejal 1y aMasal | | I [eyden panquuoy  uondo aleyg souaiajaid  Areuipio -
-UoN (sass0] fioinjeis abueyoxg Buipying leyden aleys 9|qIueAu0d -  [eyded
pajenWNoaYy) pue pueq aleys

FHYEHETY

fuedwog ayj Jo SIOUMO 0} BIGBINGURY

¥
«
=
T
k)
&

e

i

TCC International Holdings Limited &

62



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/—ﬁ Eﬁ: % I E ’13—%

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=F—FTF+=-FA=+—HIFE

2010 2009
—E-2F —ZETAF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ks FTER FHET
Cash flows from operating activities KEEBSzReRE
Profit before tax B B AT & A 955,801 171,742
Adjustments for: BLAT %
Interest expenses FERAX 318,028 148,859
Interest income B WA (19,074) (17,989)
Dividend income from investments REREWA (14,614) (14,297)
Depreciation of property, ME BELREITE
plant and equipment 609,569 330,791
Amortisation of prepaid lease T A & R85
payments 35,184 21,382
Amortisation of intangible assets M EE#E 15,064 2,062
Amortisation of mining rights PR 5 15,055 3,481
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BERREZ
plant and equipment E518 1,376 958
Share of results of associates iR ERRCEE (224,086) (25,052)
Exchange adjustments R 2,362 4,498
Operating cash flows before LEESEFHA 2
movements in working capital KERERE 1,694,665 626,435
Increase in inventories FEEM (142,500) (117,832)
Increase in prepayments, HEEER
deposits and other receivables ﬁfﬁzﬁéuﬁzwﬁi pill (279,139) (218,322)
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables JEUE ZBRFR (1 h0) ) (761,038) 87,762
Increase in held-for-trading investments #1Ex2 5 F ik 2 & B &0 (59,157) (10,133)
Increase in trade payables FETE 5 BR 538 N 620,775 358,829
Decrease in other payables and H b JE T RIE K&
accrued liabilities et & B (310,717) (201,315)
Cash generated from operations KEFTBIR G 762,889 525,424
Income taxes paid BRATER (103,679) (10,469)
Net cash generated from operating KEEBME2E S5
activities 659,210 514,955
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n"—ﬁ Iﬁ: ﬁ AL E ’13—%

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z_—Z

—ZEFEF =1 HIFE

TCC International Holdings Limited

EREBREEERLF

2010 2009
—E-2F —ETAF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
HaF FERT FHET
Cash flows from investing activities WEEFHZRERE
Interest received B U F B 19,074 17,989
Dividend received from associates B SNGI 54,111 22,600
Dividend received from investments B R B A 14,614 14,297
Purchase of property, BEWE BENMEE
plant and equipment (1,852,105) (848,159)
Increase in prepaid lease payments TEAT R & FRIBIE N (50,887) (6,968)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEFEAE (676) (8,378)
Purchase of mining rights i B IR (67,495) (1,679)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BERKRE
plant and equipment ZFT1S 338 322 401
Proceeds from disposal of HEBEFEE S HE
intangible assets - 2
Proceeds from disposal of HEMHEERE
available-for-sale investments Z P RIA - 5,713
Deposits paid for acquisition of WENB AR ZEMET£
subsidiaries - (804,410)
Repayment of advance to an associate — BB & A AIEE 2R 12,200 2,400
Advance to loan receivables B EWE R (41,400) -
Repayment of loan receivables EERKER 12,336 82,388
Repayment of advance to non- FEFERRAR R EE B
controlling shareholders 16,179 -
Increase in pledged bank deposits B MIR 1T L 0 (12,505) (36,856)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BEHEMBITFIORLD 24,437 395
Decrease in time deposits EHFEOR 60,357 26,566
Net cash (outflow) inflow from WENBLARZHE 32
acquisition of subsidiaries (md) mAFE (2,842,868) 166,943
Net cash used in investing activities REEEFARE FHE (4,654,306) (1,366,756)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEBEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=F—FTF+=-FA=+—HIFE

2010 2009
—E-2F —ETAF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k3 FTER FHET
Cash flows from financing activities BEEDCRSRE
Interest paid BRI E (877,716) (174,877)
New bank loans raised FIBIRITE R 9,960,538 2,285,092
Repayment of bank loans EBEETER (6,168,105) (1,345,956)
Purchase of senior notes BEELERE (566,932) -
Redemption of senior notes EEME LRI (94,704) -
Repayment to non-controlling M) FEVE AR A% R
shareholders (14,360) (3,000)
Advance from immediate holding BEEERRARIER
company 526,900 118,160
Net proceeds from issue of shares BT D TS SR F 58 3,111,324 -
Proceeds from exercise of TR RS A
share options 380 8,356
Dividends paid to owners of BERNAQAEHEEARE
the Company (43,942) -
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT IEIE R AR R AR B
shareholders (23,991) (16,901)
Net cash generated from financing BB EEFER T
activities 6,309,392 870,874
Net increase in cash and cash FRREEREHFE
equivalents for the year SRS N 2,314,296 19,073
Cash and cash equivalents FMzBAEEkBReEE
at beginning of year 968,611 921,882
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes M [ & & &) » 52 & 40,175 27,656
Cash and cash equivalents FRZBASAKBSEE
at end of year, represented by B3R & MR 1T 45 84
Cash and bank balances 3,323,082 968,611
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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TCC International Holdings Limited

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=F—FF+=-FA=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a public listed company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) consisted of the import and distribution of
cement in Hong Kong, the manufacture and distribution
of cement, clinker and slag powder in other areas of
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). Through its
associates, the Group is also engaged in the production and
distribution of ready-mixed concrete in Hong Kong and the
PRC. There were no significant changes in the nature of the

Group’s principal activities during the year.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate

Information and Key Dates” section to the Annual Report.

The parent company of the Company is TCC International
Limited (incorporated in the British Virgin Islands). In the
opinion of the Directors, Taiwan Cement Corporation
(“T’Cement”), a company incorporated and whose shares
are listed in Taiwan, is the Company’s ultimate holding

company.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong

Kong dollars (“HKD”) whereas the functional currency of the

Company is Renminbi (“RMB”).
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ARTA—RRBSHEEMRLZ AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=F—FTF+=-FA=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new

and revised standards, amendments and interpretations

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants (“HKICPA”).

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

Group cash-settled share-

2.

FERFET RGBT ERUBRE
ZR ([BREMBREEA])

RAFEE ARECEAHE LA
g ([BREEAE]) B ZATHE &
RISFTER BFT K-

BAYBREERN SR

SENURSEEARD

based payment transactions (BFTA) 2R 5
HKFRS 3 Business combinations ERVBREEUEIR  EBAH
(as revised in 2008) (RZZZENEFELEL])
HKAS 27 Consolidated and separate BB Q R B27H BERBLNBRE
(as revised in 2008) financial statements (RZZZNFEEBFT)
HKAS 32 (Amendments) Classification of rights issues BB G RRIE2%R HRBETINE
S-HEN)
HKAS 39 (Amendments) Eligible hedged items BR G LR E395 REREMIER

CHES

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs BB BREER RZZEZNERBLE
issued in 2009 (BFTA) BHBREEA 2N
iid
HKFRSs (Amendments) Amendments to HKFRS 5 as BRWBREEL BBV BREENES
part of Improvements to SEHEN) RZBERARERR
HKFRSs issued “ETN\FRHZE
in 2008 BHBERE LA 2R
2 -
HK(IFRIC) - INT 17 Distributions of non-cash E5 (BRI BHRERE RMEBADREREE
assets to owners ZEE)RBET 3
HK Interpretation 5 Presentation of financial BBREET BBmE 27— ER
statements — Classification AHHERERER
by the borrower of a term BERZERHERZ D
loan that contains a B

repayment on demand clause

WS XCRTIRBR SN - AR R B R T AT R A8
BAERMBREENEGEE P B RRAL
BEAXE-

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material

effect on the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=F—FF+=-FA=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. EAFHITREETESBMKER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING SR ([FEEMBHREER])
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) (%)

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) “Business combinations” ERAUKREEAEIR (R-SENEFEL
CHPNES' =X

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) has been applied in the BV HRELENEIR (R NFL

current year prospectively to business combinations of 1E5T) B RN A F E R BB E 15X 5 I

which the acquisition date is on or after 1 January 2010 BERA T TF-—H BB 2HE

in accordance with the relevant transitional provisions. BEMELEEER EERCFEARF

lts application has affected the accounting for business E2EBED-

combinations in the current year.

68

e HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) allows a choice on a
transaction-by-transaction basis for the measurement
of non-controlling interests (previously referred to as
‘minority’ interests) at the date of acquisition either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ share of
recognised identifiable net assets of the acquiree. In the
current year, in accounting for the acquisition of Upper
Value Investments Limited (“‘Upper Value”), the Group
has elected to measure the non-controlling interests
at the non-controlling interests’ share of recognised
identifiable net assets of the acquiree at the date of

acquisition.

TCC International Holdings Limited & E Bl £ BB R A 7

EEPBmEEER (R_FTF)N
FRIEFT) A RERNRZ HEAEER
VAN B 38 UA FE 43 AR 2 93 115 1% W B
FZEERABRNEEFEFENRK
BEBZ R (AT [ D&
R ) - RAARFE £ U EE Upper
Value Investments Limited ([Upper
Value | ) ABREY - REBEZRNKE
HHISEIE IR 0 16 B BB 77 B FERR
A BRI EEREE IR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z—%
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) “Business combinations”
(Continued)

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) changes the recognition
and subsequent accounting requirements for contingent
consideration. Previously contingent consideration was
recognised at the acquisition date only if payment of
the contingent consideration was probable and it could
be measured reliably; any subsequent adjustments
to the contingent consideration were always made
against the cost of the acquisition. Under the revised
Standard, contingent consideration is measured at fair
value at the acquisition date; subsequent adjustments
to the consideration are recognised against the cost of
acquisition only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement period
(a maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date)
about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in

profit or loss.

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) requires the recognition
of a settlement gain or loss when the business
combination in effect settles a pre-existing relationship

between the Group and the acquiree.

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) requires acquisition-
related costs to be accounted for separately from
the business combination. As a result, the Group has
recognised approximately HK$12,414,000 of such
costs as an expense in profit or loss and included
in general and administrative expenses, whereas
previously they would have been accounted for as part

of the cost of the acquisition.

2.

FERMAT REIETEBY B R
EEA((FEMBHREEL])

(&)

EREIR (R=-FFNEFL

185T) T¥Ba6t] (&)

BBV BRELAESR (RZFEEN
FRASET) ME KA RE 2 R R
BEFTRIEAT - BT AAREBER
HAR e BHE SRR ] S thaT
ERFERKEBHRER KARE
ZE@E?&%@**TJ*EEWE%&KEP

R BBLEETER - HARE IR
WA AFESE REZER
RABENEEAEAFTE2EHE
(ZRABWHEAEEI121E8) AT
BT AR R ELRT SRR B

ZWERARTER - DEREELER
BZRARBZAMEEMERFEERTS
KRB P HER

BAMBHRELENEIR (R2FFTN
FRETATEEBAHBEREE
AEB AW B2 BEFERK

et o Sz
HTEEHZJ\#é B o

BB mEERE3 (R
FIAEFT) #E UL B AR BB A g B 3
BEMIRAR Bt "EED#R
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-FA=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERAHITRLIETEBBER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HEA (BB HHREED])
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) (#&)

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) “Business combinations” ERAUKREEAEIR (R-SZNEFL
(Continued) B5T) T¥BE&6] (&)
In the current year, the application of HKFRS 3 (as revised in RAEFE EAEEY KRS ENFEIN
2008) has affected the acquisition of Upper Value as follows: (RZZEZNFLIER]) HUHE Upper Value
EENTEE:
Consolidated statement of financial position A BN I E
31.12.2010
—E-ZF
+=HA=+—H
HK$’000
THEx
Acquisition-related costs expensed EAERD I HE o WEMAREK R
when incurred (12,414)
Decrease in goodwill recognised e A A S B S R £ R 2358
as a result of the application of (RZZEZENFLEE]) MER
HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) B (12,414)
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income HEDE W
2010
—E-2F
HK$’000
THEx
Acquisition-related costs expensed EERE I HE s WEMABEK R
when incurred (12,414)
Decrease in profit for the year [ FE A& 7S B S R E R 358
as a result of the application of (RZEENELEBE)MEELEZ
HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) REE &R (12,414)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+ =/ =+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) “Business combinations”
(Continued)

The impact on both basic and diluted earnings per share are

summarised as below:

FE R FTE] RAEETT B R MK R
EEA([ERUBREED])
(4)

FRUBREEUEIE (R-BBNEFE
B5T) TBAH] (#)
HWEREARBERNZFEHRMT -

2010
—E-2F

Basic earnings Diluted earnings

per share per share

BRELXER BR#E SR

HK cents HK cents

& Al AL

Figures before adjustments FEFHT 28.9 28.9
Adjustments arising from changes BREBEIH
in accounting policies in relation to FETBREH

business combinations EEZHE 0.5 0.5

Figures after adjustments FAREHT 28.4 28.4

Amendments to HKAS 17 “Leases”

As part of “Improvements to HKFRSs” issued in 2009,
HKAS 17 “Leases” has been amended in relation to the
classification of leasehold land. Before the amendments
to HKAS 17, the Group was required to classify leasehold
land as operating leases and to present leasehold land
as prepaid lease payments in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The amendments to HKAS 17 have
removed such a requirement. The amendments require that
the classification of leasehold land should be based on
the general principles set out in HKAS 17, that is, whether
or not substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of a leased asset have been transferred to the

lessee.

ERETERE17THR Z2BITAHE ]

ER-ZFTNFEMZ [FEMBHREL
Az Bt ] 2 —aRn - B GRTEAETHR
(HEIMBEL 2 D BELET -EE
BEFTERENTR ZER A AREAR
HELHH B AKEHETRNEE M BERK
AR BEANBEERA BB ST LR
FITRZAEFT A MER UL IBRTE - B RE

RIEREE T MERE B G ERIE17H
ez —MRADE BUMEEEMSE
2 FARRRERES D BRI E &K
FHRMBABEE-
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TCC International Holdings Limited
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 17 “Leases” (Continued)

In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in
the amendments to HKAS 17, the Group reassessed the
classification of unexpired leasehold land as at 1 January
2010 based on information that existed at the inception
of the leases. The adoption of amendment to HKAS 17
“Leases” had no material impact on the consolidated

financial statements.

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 “Presentation of financial
statements - Classification by the borrower of a term
loan that contains a repayment on demand clause”
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 “Presentation of financial
statements — Classification by the borrower of a term loan
that contains a repayment on demand clause” (“HK INT 5”)
clarifies that term loans that include a clause that gives the
lender the unconditional right to call the loans at any time
(“repayment on demand clause”) should be classified by the
borrower as current liabilities. The Group has applied HK
INT 5 for the first time in the current year. HK INT 5 requires

retrospective application.

In order to comply with the requirements set out in HK
INT 5, the Group has changed its accounting policy on
classification of term loans with a repayment on demand
clause. In the past, the classification of such term loans
were determined based on the agreed scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements. Under HK INT 5, term
loans with a repayment on demand clause are classified as

current liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+ =/ =+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 “Presentation of financial
statements - Classification by the borrower of a term
loan that contains a repayment on demand clause”
(Continued)

As a result, the Group’s bank loans that were repayable
more than one year after the end of the reporting period but
contain a repayment on demand clause with the aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$96,500,000 and
HK$150,000,000 has been reclassified from non-current
liabilities to current liabilities as at 31 December 2009 and
1 January 2009 respectively. As at 31 December 2010, no
bank loans (that are repayable more than one year after
the end of the reporting period but contain a repayment on
demand clause) have been classified as current liabilities.
The application of HK INT 5 has had no impact on the

reported profit or loss for the current and prior years.

Such term loans have been presented in the earliest time
band in the maturity analysis for financial liabilities that

reflects the remaining contractual maturities.
Amendments to HKAS 32 “Classification of rights issues”

The amendments to HKAS 32 requires that rights issues,
options or warrants to acquire a fixed number of the entity’s
own equity instruments for a fixed amount of any currency
are equity instruments if the entity offers the rights issues,
options or warrants pro rata to all of its existing owners of
the same class of its own non-derivative equity instruments.
The Group and the Company have early adopted the
amendments and the offer of rights by the Company to its
shareholders on 23 June 2010 was then accounted for as
an equity instrument, as required by the amendments, in
the financial statements of the Group and the Company.
The early adoption of the amendments has had no material
impact on the reported results, basic and diluted earnings
per share and the financial position of the Group.

FE R FTE] RAEETT B R M B R
TR ([ERUBREEN])
(4)
EERMESH [MBHRZ25ERA
HBERERMWERRZEDNERZ S E ]
(#)

Bt AEBLBEEMAE ALY
96,500,000 7t & 150,000,000 7T 2 R
TER(ERREARE 2 —FERER
BHEZRERKEEGFIEERZZEZN
F+-_A=+—Brk-ZEThhF—H—H
ZIERBBBEENIBEARBAEE - RN
TZ—TF+A=+—H BMERTENX
(ERWmERE s, —FREE BHER
EREEBRR) D ERARDEE -EREHS
LEFSREAFERBAFEME®RZ
Bl BT E-

BRAEHERE 2N RBE T A QR H
BzemAaBgifMofihze PR

=113

HEREI25R 2 BRI A TR B AT

D 3

B 3 m

ARSI/ ZBAT AR E ME R
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ARAREREBRMABEFTAN MARER
TE-EERNA-T=AREZHERETE
BREBEZETARERNAEE R AR
AZMBHRERAARIBRATR R
RMULERI AL BB ANEE 2 2MEH -
BREAREERNEANREZ BB R
ERERTE -

m§ S Df N B
o¥

\r
I

Annual Report 2010 F 3§

73



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HmR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-FA=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. BERAHAIRKEITEBMKER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING SR ([EEMBHREER])
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) (&)

New and revised standards, amendments and CHEMEMRERZHTRKETEA -
interpretations issued but not yet effective B RZ2E

The Group has not early applied the following new and REBWARPEAUTEEMRE®RE
revised standards, amendments and interpretations that B2 el RS RT R B8R R kg

have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs BB BREER RZE-ZEHEBLE
issued in 2010’ (BFTA) B BREREAZH
el
HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of ERUBREENER BEEZSREE
financial assets? SCHES
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments? BAMBHREENFOR SRIA
HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred tax: Recovery of BRGHERE125 ERFIR: KEEEE
underlying assets® SEHEN) -3
HKAS 24 Related party disclosures? BA G ERF 245 BEALRE
(as revised in 2009) (RZZZNFEBIT)
HK (IFRIC) - INT 14 Prepayments of a minimum 55 (BRUBRE2RE SEESERZENK
(Amendments) funding requirement® Z89)—REF14R Ig°
S-HEN)
HK (IFRIC) - INT 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities ER(BRGBHRERE URFIAAHEERE
with equity instruments? Z88)—REF19% &2
7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 ! RZBE—ZEFELA—HX=—F——F— A
or 1 January 2011, as appropriate. —B(mER) gz kRB 2 FEMBEE
B
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010. 2 RIE-ZELA A CRRAKRZEE
SRR A 2 o
a Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011. 3 RZTE——FtA—HBA 2 EBRRZFE
B AR
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 4 RZE—=F—A—H®k2ERBZFE
2018. HAR AR -
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 5 RZE——F—A—HBX 2 EBRRZFE
2012. HAR AR -
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 6 RZTE——F—A—HA 2 EBRRZFE
2011. HAR AR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+ =/ =+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations issued but not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (as issued in November
2009) introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” (as revised in November 2010) adds

requirements for financial liabilities and for derecognition.

° Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” are subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the end

of subsequent accounting periods.

2.

BRI REETERYBR
EEA((FEMBHREEL])

(&)
© 28 5 18 13 R A4 B2 # AT R ARME AT 2 Al -
BT R2R (&)

FEMBHRSENESR &R TA] (B
—ETNFT-ABRBISIATREED
BRFEZHRE - BEMBREELSE
ORIeMIA] (RZT—ZF+—AK
BRI EMBEHEEMABERKRLERZR

;'_Eo

RIEBABMEREENFSN  IBER
EEGHERFEIR [T A
REFE | BERNZCHERAESHEE
BER IR AR AT EAE BB
mE EBEXNKRBREAHRESR
REH MEGNRESRE/IMNAR
EhHAREEAEZNEMBTAZE
BHRE —BRERZEHHREG
R S AT B - T A R E R
BREARENER 2 G5 HIRE
BiEE QP EFE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-FA=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERAFAIREEITEENBER

/6

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards, amendments and

interpretations issued but not yet effective (Continued)

° In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change
relates to financial liabilities that are designated as
at fair value through profit or loss. Specifically, under
HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
presentation of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s
credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit
or loss. Previously, under HKAS 39, the entire amount
of the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as at fair value through profit of loss was

presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that HKFRS 9
that will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for financial year ending 31 December 2013 and
that the application of the new standard will have impact
on classification and measurement of available-for-sale
investments reported in respect of the Group’s financial
assets and may affect the classification and measurement of

the Group’s other financial assets.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations will have no material impact on the financial

performance and financial position of the Group.

TCC International Holdings Limited &k B &£ B B R A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+ =/ =+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain properties
and financial instruments, which are measured at revalued
amounts or fair values, as explained in the principal

accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by The
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from

its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition

or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses

are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented

separately from the Group’s equity therein.

3. EEEFTHE

ALEFEAVBRR D IEBEKRAERE
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEHHE &)
(Continued)
Business combinations E3 g
Business combinations that took place on or after 1 R-CE—FEF—F—HABZHEETZEE
January 2010 =

WEEBAWBEEAR RBA 6 TEE
ZREDEFAERAEEBEREENER
HI DT E NEEERTRKE S ATHE
BAZBERAEERBERIEETT 2
MBI ZRAEREM A FEE.
WHEHEBARA -—RRELFHERD T ®E

equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control 7o

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by

the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the

of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally

recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

RUEE B H - P AR B g B B K PR E
BEDEENEEARZ AT ERER I
AT 1B SRR S

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at

the acquisition date, except that:

EEFAEEXABENEREREENT
BAMZABREENRIREERS
FHERF12S [FAEH] RE LSS

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or o
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are

recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS

12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits”, RIZE19% [EERA ] MR K=
respectively;
e liabilities or equity instruments related to share- o HWWEAURNINRBEIZZSE

FARUAREBARN XN RIBEZRZ S
BARBET ABRD XA REZR S
FRzBEIERZTAE DHRKEAR
MR BB M B s R 25 [ AR
SRE]FE: R

based payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of an acquiree’s share-based payment
transactions with share-based payment transactions of
the Group are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2

“Share-based Payment” at the acquisition date; and

RIBE BB TG EANESS [F1EH
EZHRBEERD RILKE XK

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held o

for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current

Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are SERABELEZEE (HLEMHR)
measured in accordance with that standard. RIBEZERIGTE -

78 TCC International Holdings Limited &k B &£ B B R A A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+ =/ =+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.

FESITEE (&)

Business combinations (Continued) EBE6t(2Z)
Business combinations that took place on or after 1 R-IE—FEF—F—HRZHEETZEH
January 2010 (Continued) aof(E)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation is initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Where the consideration the Group transfers in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and considered as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill or
gain on bargain purchase. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the measurement period about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date.
Measurement period does not exceed one year from the

acquisition date.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.

FESITEE (&)

Business combinations (Continued) EBE6 (&)
Business combinations that took place on or after 1 R-CE—FEF—F—HABZHEETZEE
January 2010 (Continued) af (&)

HRREZ A FEEZSH 2BERARNTE
Mt EMEREE  ABURR SRR E A
DE-NBERER AR EBELERER
BEAMEHFE MEBRGEER#ER
AAR-DEREEXRABZHARER
BEEEGTERFEIRKEB LG ELE
7 [ HARBBERAAREE] (ME
) REER s A EMNGE - MAERZHK
S B RN RS R -

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance
with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

fid E 75 & Gt 0 B BT A - AN SR 1B 5T BT 0 4R
WEARK A REENAEZEREAY
(AAEHRESZHEER) ZATVE"
MAEEzWEHER (NE)RNEBERF
BR-BAENEE RN ELEZEEA
ERZBEWB AR RaMELSEEND
PriEn (NEMEBRFZEARN L ER

comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss ) e

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other

where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest
were disposed of.

ERFHA CREZEEESNEM2EK
AR RRUE A B2 s m REf
MZEEZINAEEESEHRKEQR
ZEHREEN D EERS-

Changes in the value of the previously held equity
interest recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity before the acquisition date are
reclassified to profit or loss when the Group obtains control
over the acquiree.

WEBEHZNTEFTRERAHELEZ
HERRAEARTR MANRERERT
(BFTREIB I B RSB - X F R B
BERFEHE (R LX) FIAFE i
REINEERBE UARBRRKWEASNS
FEMBAAMAIGEFEZACDHREEL
SEHRBRABRBZHEM-

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
as of that date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Business combinations that took place prior to 1
January 2010

Acquisition of businesses was accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition was measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities that met the relevant
conditions for recognition were generally recognised at their

fair value at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition was recognised as an
asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s interest in the
recognised amounts of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after assessment,
the Group’s interest in the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities exceeded the cost of the acquisition, the excess

was recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The minority interest in the acquiree was initially measured at
the minority interest’s proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
the acquiree.

Contingent consideration was recognised, if and only if,
the contingent consideration was probable and could be
measured reliably. Subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration were recognised against the cost of the

acquisition.

Business combinations achieved in stages were accounted
for as separate steps. Goodwill was determined at each
step. Any additional acquisition did not affect the previously

recognised goodwill.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHHE (&)
(Continued)
Goodwill [EES

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is
presented as an intangible asset.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the

synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
whenever there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period,
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. An
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

WiE—TREBRES 2B BRERAREMA
R EBBARLIERTLEE -

SRBEAAME BENIRIED SRS
ELXEL XFEREEH 2 HRAMEFZ
m R EEBEMHER -
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RAERI R o B0 B ¥R 5 B 2 W BB P EE
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BANZREHRAETRERNR B8R
SELEMZAIREBE I NZEMNZ K
m{E - RIBE BB A 5 & oo e - LAEIRE
DEFZEM REBRUNENZEEZR
HESEERUE DRI ZELZEMBE
EZEAEEZEEE B8 TRARBIE
EREDEERGAEZERER ZIBHENE
ReBBZBEBBRRERAM A ED -

REEFBREELEUR HEALZ
BECZEHEESENHERTFABEREL
TR

Interests in associates BENTER

An associate is an entity over which the investor has BEAREE RIREEHHEAEEATE
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an ZER MENERMBAAINEGE D
interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power X m BERATEDNERELEZIKRE

to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those

policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associates. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations

or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of an associate recognised at the date
of acquisition is recognised as goodwill, which is included

within the carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment

subsequently increases.

From 1 January 2010 onwards, upon disposal of an
associate that results in the Group losing significant
influence over that associate, any retained investment is
measured at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition as a financial
asset in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference between
the previous carrying amount of the associate attributable
to the retained interest and its fair value is included in
the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate on the same basis as would be
required if that associate had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when it loses significant influence over that

associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’ consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not

related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of

business, net of discounts, returns and sales related taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered

and risks and rewards of ownership have been passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net

carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

Group’s rights to receive payment have been established.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEHHE &)
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued) BH(E)

The Group as lessee KEBERARHEA

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset

are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased

asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element of the lease at the

inception of the lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEHHE &)
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued) B (E)

Leasehold land and building (Continued) HELHAEFT (&)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as

property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency, i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates,
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or

loss for the period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly
during that year, in which case the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (exchange fluctuation

reserve).

From 1 January 2010 onwards, on the disposal of a
foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over a
jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a
partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals
of associates or jointly controlled entities that do not result
in the Group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange

differences is reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-F=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the rate

of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period.

3.

FESITEHE (&)

S ()

AR —TTRF— - B2 RKEEI
EBMYEMBAZARMIEEFED 2B
RATFEHABRBERAZLBIETZEE
LEaE mEREHEERRERZEXR
B-MEAZEXRZBENEFZDRHEESD

Exchange differences arising are recognised in the exchange R o
fluctuation reserve.
Borrowing costs BERAE

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for the intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is

deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits scheme
including Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and the
employee’s pension schemes of the respective municipal
government in various places in the PRC where the Group
operates are charged as an expense when employees have

rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

BE ERIREREREECHEKREN
fEERA  DBRZEEEZKE BEEH
MEEARBLAEREREHIHERL
MeaBEREERFTREKEERE RN
EREKHEZEE-BEREAREE
REEZEPREMBNZRERABS
BREMMEZEERARME -

PR E At (8 B RCANTA 3 £ IR FE R 2 A B

=7
it ©

IR KB R AL
FERFRKBAF ISR EERFER
BeFARAREREMEZ PRSI
¥z BERAKEE NMEERHRS
MZA A B ARIIERAX

Annual Report 2010 F 3§

89



90

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= AN H

)77 N =|

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z—Z

TCC International Holdings Limited

B % R AR M A

—FFEF =1 —HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-F=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will

be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are

expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.
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TCC International Holdings Limited

B % R AR M A
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be

received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount of
the relevant asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss over the useful lives
of the related assets. Government grants that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land and office buildings held for use in the
production or for administrative purposes, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at their revalued
amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation,
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations
are performed with sufficient regularity such that the
carrying amount does not differ materially from that would
be determined using fair values at the end of the reporting

period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-F=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land and
buildings is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the land and building revaluation reserve,
except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease
of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in
which case the increase is credited to the profit or loss to
the extent of the decrease previously charged. A decrease
in net carrying amount arising on revaluation of such land
and buildings is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that
it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the land and building
revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that
asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued
asset, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the
land and building revaluation reserve is transferred directly to

accumulated profits.

Property, plant and equipment (other than leasehold land
and office building and construction in progress) are stated
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any

accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or fair value
of items of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account of their estimated residual values,

using straight-line method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or
for its own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried
at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction
in progress is classified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets

are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the year in which the

item is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a

straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

TCC International Holdings Limited &k B &£ B B R A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-F=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill and are
initially recognised of their fair value at the acquisition date

(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful

lives.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in the profit or loss when the assets is

derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials and,
where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of
completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling

and distribution.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the

financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on

3.
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initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to R o
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets ZTHEE

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of each category of financial assets are

set out below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-F=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEHHE &)
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) S®MIA(Z)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)

Effective interest method B FZ

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets designated at
FVTPL, of which interest income is included in investment

income.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including
financial assets held for trading and those designated at

FVTPL on initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEETHEK (&)

98

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near future; or

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has

a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

Held for trading investments are measured at fair value,
which changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial

assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. At the end of the reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade receivables, other receivables, loan
receivables, loan to an associate, time deposits, cash and
bank balances and pledged bank deposits) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any

identified impairment losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-F=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets

at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity

investments.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at

cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of the

reporting period subsequent to initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,

the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have

been impacted.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

e  default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

or

e it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEHHE &)
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) S®MIA(Z)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) cHEERME (£)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit
period of 90 — 180 days, observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original

effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such

impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-F=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEHHE &)
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) S®MIA(Z)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) cHEERME (£)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables and other receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. When trade receivables and other
receivables are considered uncollectible, they are written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through consolidated statement of comprehensive income
to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not

been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments

will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEHHE &)
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) S®MIA(Z)
Financial liabilities and equity THEERKREAEZR

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest

in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other payables,
bank loans, senior notes, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders and amount due to immediate holding
company are subsequently measured at amortised cost,

using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Repurchase
of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and
deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of

the Company’s own equity instruments.

TCC International Holdings Limited &k B &£ B B R A A
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Non-redeemable convertible preference shares
Non-redeemable convertible preference shares in which the
Group has no contractual obligation to redeem and will be
only settled by the exchange of fixed number of the Group’s
own equity instruments is classified as equity instruments.
On initial recognition, the fair value of the equity instrument
is determined using the fair value of the Company’s own

ordinary share.

The balance will be transferred to share capital and share
premium once preference shares are converted. Any excess
of par value of issued ordinary shares will be transferred to

share premium.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire, or
the assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset in its
entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is recognised in consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share option

reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss with a corresponding adjustment to share option

reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share

option reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.

TCC International Holdings Limited & E B £ BB R A 7
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a

revaluation decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another standard, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under
that standard.

3.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4. THEREMTEERIR

106

UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
which are described in note 3, management has made
various estimates based on past experience, expectations
of the future and other information. The key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year, are discussed below.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the cash flow
projection covering a 10-year period based on financial
budgets approved by management and a discount rate
of 7.9% (2009: 8%) per annum. Cash flow beyond the
5-year period are extrapolated with zero growth rate.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2010, the carrying amount of goodwill is approximately
HK$2,591,704,000 (31.12.2009: HK$794,052,000).

TCC International Holdings Limited &k B &£ B B R A A
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide. Each
of the Group’s operating segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products and services which are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those
of the other operating segments. Summary details of the

Group’s operating and reportable segments are as follows:

()  the import, distribution and handling of cement
segment which is the import, distribution and handling

of cement in Hong Kong;

(i) the manufacture and distribution of cement, clinker and
slag powder segment which is the manufacture and
distribution of cement, clinker and slag powder in the
PRC; and

(i) the investment holding segment which invests in listed
and unlisted equity securities ranging from traditional

businesses to high-technology businesses.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results
The following table presents revenue and results by

reportable segments.

Import,
distribution and

handling of cement

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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5. 2EER (&)
PEWRRRES
TRENWERAZEMOEE D 2 W= R
Manufacture and

distribution of cement,

clinker and slag powder

Investment holding Consolidated

HERAHAR

BO-2#REEAR RARWER REBR &8
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-%% CZThE CZE-%F CZTNF CZE-BF CIINF  CZE-BF CZITNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FHL FHEL FHT FEL FHT FEL T

Segment revenue Al

Sales to customers HEFRP 232,608 146,305 7,893,246 3,807,635 - - 8,125,854 3,953,940
Segment profit AEEF 31,976 11,350 893,835 189,029 31,128 18,813 956,939 219,192
Unallocated central administration costs k2B R RTHMA (13,388) (6,013)
Unallocated other income RAMEMBA 106,192 82,370
1,049,743 295,549
Finance costs BEMK (318,028) (148,859)
Share of results of associates EEBERR £E 224,086 25,052
Profit before tax BHAET 955,801 171,742
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are EWRDHEIGHBORARE B ST BUR

the same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment
profit represents the profit earned by each segment without
allocation of central administration costs (including Directors’
salaries), certain other income, finance costs and share of
results of associates. This is the measure reported to Board
of Directors, being the chief operating decision maker,
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. 2 BER (®)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) PHEBERESE (F)
There are no inter-segment sales for both years. MEFEHESEREE-
The Group has no customers that contributed over 10% of MEFENRNEBETEAAEBRBEKER
the total revenue of the Group for both years. BA10%UA EZ2 &P
The major product provided by the Group is manufacturing AEBRBE 7 FEERAEERDHK
and distribution of cement, clinker and slag powder. No T AR RIEEY - MEFEARNSEEME
other products and services contribute over 10% of the total mEREAAEEBWEERI0%MNA £
revenue of the Group for both years.
No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by e i’E?ﬁT’FﬁETi#&ﬁ@%ﬁZﬁE‘E
reportable segments is disclosed as it is not regularly NMEaEz o mHEE DA EIEF RN
provided to the Board of Directors for review. FTEEFUAHEN-
Geographical information i & & R
The Group operates in two principal geographical areas — REERAMEXrEMWE—FTERFPEL
Hong Kong and the PRC. The following table provides an EeoTRRBEBEMETMSON I AER 2K
analysis of the Group’s revenue by geographical markets, wm(TwmmkREZREM)
irrespective of the origin of the goods and services:
Hong Kong The PRC Others Consolidated
) i g8
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
~2-%F C-TTNF -%-BF C—TTHhF C-B-8F CTTHF C-B-3F CITNF
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS000 K000 HKS000  HK$'000
TiER Ti#n TiER Ti#n TiER Ti#n TERT Ti#n
Segment revenue AR
Sales to customers BETER 287,098 146305  7,875491 3,801,360 13,270 6075 812585  3953,940
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 7 EER &)
Analyses of the Group’s non-current assets by geographical REEZREEMEMREI S 2ERBEE
location of the assets are as below: DT
Hong Kong The PRC Others Consolidated
BE HE it Fxs)
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
—2-%f C-TTHhE CZE-BFf C-TTNF <CZE-BF CTTNF CZBE-BF CZITNF
HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TER FEL TER FEL TER FEL TER FEL
Non-current assets ERBEE 5753 860,221 18,076,343 10,890,370 42,115 41505 18175994 11,792,186
Note: Non-current assets excluded interests in associates, MisE: ERBEETREBE AFER B
loan to an associate, loan receivables, available-for-sale NEEF ERER AJHEERE B
investments, pledged bank deposits and deferred tax assets. EIRRITF R IR TH & B -
Other segment information HittnEER
Import, Manufacture and

distribution and
handling of cement

distribution of cement,

clinker and slag powder Investment holding

Consolidated

HERAHAR:
B0 FEREEAR ARRELH REER &a
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
“2-2F _ITNE CZE-BF _ITNF CZB-BF C"ITNE CB-BF _IINF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER T FhER FEL FER FEL
Amounts included in the measure of FEHERTIEGAZ
segment profit: &8
Depreciation and amortisation TERES 4,240 4,151 666,815 352,936 1,219 629 672,274 357,716
Dividends from listed equity investment TTRARERS - - - - 14,614 14,297 14,614 14,297
Change in fair value of BEXSRGIRE
held-for-trading investments ATEED - - - - 59,157 17,506 59,157 17,506
Amounts regularly provided to THRETTELERRE
the chief operating decision maker BARGEAERNH
but not included in the measure of FAZEHE:
segment profit:
Interest income FlBMA - - 10,924 17,752 8,150 237 19,074 17,989
Finance costs BEKA 2 2 267,105 130,571 50,921 18,286 318,028 148,859
6. REVENUE 6. Wz

Revenue represents invoiced amount of sales of cement,
clinker and slag powder, net of trade discounts, returns and

sales related taxes.
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INVESTMENT INCOME 7. BREWA
2010 2009
—E-EHF —ETAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT
Dividends from listed equity investments M RAIKER B 14,614 14,297
Interest income from senior notes BAEEFEIA 8,059 -
Interest income FEUWA 11,015 17,989
33,688 32,286
Investment income earned from financial assets, analysed by CREEMRNZIEERAZEESERZ
category of asset, is as follows: DHMT
2010 2009
—E-EHF —EERAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH T FAT
Held-for-trading investments BIEXSRg KA 14,614 14,297
Senior notes BEEE 8,059 -
Loans and receivables B e R
(including cash and bank deposits) (F %ﬁ%&fﬁﬁﬁ X 11,015 17,989
33,688 32,286
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8. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 8. Hi A K=Kk EE
2010 2009
—E-2F —ZTENEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Change in fair value of held-for-trading REXZABZIRE

investments N EZEH 59,157 17,506
Government grants (Note) BT aL (H7aE) 31,261 50,388
Handling charges FEER 2,515 2,685
Management fee income EREE- TN 1,181 1,148
Net exchange gain P 55 = 35,587 -
Rental income Ha A 1,038 621
Others Ht 18,051 12,224
148,790 84,572
Note: The amount represents the incentive subsidies provided Mt ZefEEPEm A EERARERRE
by the PRC local authorities to the Group to encourage REEHAL USRS TRAME 2%
investments in certain specific locations. There is no specific B o 4 AL A B A AT B - AR SR BRI

conditions attached to the grants, the Group recognised the |t RE B T OAMERR ©

grants upon receipts.
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9. FINANCE COSTS 9. RE KA
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Interest on: AT ZRE
Bank loans wholly repayable AR THBH2EEE
RITER
— within five years —HFNA 327,085 171,518
- more than five years —iBiBRF 1,412 -
Loan from immediate holding company ERNEBIER AR ZER 10,787 3,359
Senior notes BEREE 38,432 -
Total borrowing costs BIEE A 377,716 174,877
Less: Amounts capitalised in construction & : IATEE T2
in progress BRI &8 (59,688) (26,018)
318,028 148,859
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the FARTERNMLZBERATRE — M 1E
general borrowing pool and are calculated by applying an B E\Eﬁéiﬁﬁ/*\ﬁﬁﬁ?&ﬂ§2$i’i;ﬁzﬁ
average capitalisation rate to expenditure on qualifying {EFEFE - BRI FEFEIEMTDARE
assets. The increment of capitalisation rate is due to the AFAREHRBRARMBAZELERE Y

inclusion of the higher interest rate of the senior notes which BE R R
were acquired from acquisition of subsidiaries during the

year.
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10. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 10. BR %4 Al 7% F
2010 2009
—E-2F —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FHET
Profit before tax has been arrived B 55 A% A B HBR
at after charging the following: Bk
Directors’ remuneration (note 71) EFMe (Wat11) 5,586 7,882
Other staff cost HAth 8 TR
Salaries and other benefits FaRkHMREM 210,566 86,908
Other pension costs and mandatory H R RS AR
provident fund contributions BESHK 16,637 7,499
Total staff costs MBI 232,789 102,289
Depreciation of property, Y BB REETE
plant and equipment (Note) (Htat) 606,971 330,791
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE & SRIE 8 35,184 21,382
Amortisation of intangible assets mEE#E
(included in cost of sales and (BEFAEERAR
general and administrative expenses) —MBEITBAXR) 15,064 2,062
Amortisation of mining rights PR 5
(included in cost of sales) (BEFAEERE) 15,055 3,481
Auditor’s remuneration ZER B & 4,170 3,413
Operating lease payments HMEMEsLKEHENRS
in respect of rented premises 7,020 7,257
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE- WERZHEERE
plant and equipment 1,376 958
Share of tax of associates (included in JEAGEE & A RIFIA
share of results of associates) (BEF A
GENAZEE) 30,503 6,963

The Group has no forfeited contributions from the retirement REERZMEFELERRESHEIZE
b

benefit scheme for both years. V2 W 4

o

Note: Depreciation charge of approximately HK$2,598,000 (2009: Kiat: BMERZEFHERZBREMEEEE 2
1 & B 492,598,000 T (ZZTZT A1,
FE)IEREEIBRETTFURERL:-

nil) relating to plant and machinery used in buildings under

construction was capitalised under construction in progress.

1 1 4 TCC International Holdings Limited REEI RSB G R 2 a8



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-F=+—HIFE -

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ MN.EEREEHS

EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments EEMe
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Directors are ENSENTSEESZME 0T
as follows:

KOO, CHANG, CHANG, WANG, LIAO CHIH SHIEH,

Cheng-Yun, wu SHAN An-Ping,  Kang-Lung, Lishin, ~ Poon Huai, Ching Kang,  Jen-Chung,
Leslie Yih Chin Weijian Nelson Jason Elizabeth Donald Kenneth Roger Total

BHA REK EfR E2¥ RER E3TN BAE hEE EiEE it
HKS000  HKS0000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKE'000  HK§'000  HKS000  HKS'000
TETL TETL TEL TER TEL TEL TEL TEL TETL TEL

2010 “3-%%
Fess Bt 20 - 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 1760
Other emoluments A2
Salaries and other benefits HoREMER - 1,326 - - - - - - - 1,326
Performance related ARBEAZ
incentive bonus RENEAT 2,000 500 - - - - - - - 2,500
Total emoluments 2H% 2,20 182 220 220 220 20 220 220 20 5,586
2009 “EENE
Fees Bt 200 - 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 1,600
Other emoluments e
Salaries and other henefits o REMES - 1,282 - - - - - - - 1,282
Performance related ARBEAZ
incentive bonus £ 4000 1,000 - - - - - - - 5,000
Total emoluments 28s 4200 2282 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 7,882
The performance related incentive bonus is determined with PR IR ENA 2 RENEALIIRIBE AR E S E
reference to the performance of the Group’s operation. FKIEMEE °
The remunerations of Directors are determined by the EEFTWHICHFHNEZESLEEARAR
remuneration committee having regard to the performance MiZBEEMET -

of individuals and market trends.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-FA=+—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ MN.EEREEME &)
EMOLUMENTS (continuead)
Employees’ emoluments EE#ME
During the year, the five highest paid individuals included REALEESFATEERE (ZEF
two (2009: two) Directors, details of whose emoluments NF-MB)EE HFMDHIR Lo
are set out above. The emoluments of the remaining three EfR=-F% (ZETNF =R ) &ebF AL
(2009: three) highest paid individuals are as follows: ZEMFEEEINAT
2010 2009
—E-2F —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Salaries and other benefits e RHA A 2,573 2,474
Retirement benefits scheme contributions Rk & 51 84 5% 58 63
Performance related incentive bonus BRI ENE 2 BN TEAL 1,021 454
3,652 2,991
Their emoluments were within the following bands: EHaNTTH&EHE:

Number of employee

BEAH
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNEF
Up to HK$1,000,000 7 % $1,000,0007% 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001/ 7T

—2,000,000/% 7T 2 2
During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group RAFAN REBTEMESFI AL &S
to the Directors or the five highest paid individuals as FATEZAHE  UEREMASKINER
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as SEEBNIEAMBIEHE(ZZEZN
compensation for loss of office (2009: nil). None of the F|) BERESNAFAREXRFER

Directors has waived or agreed to waive any remuneration BEEAHEES (ZETNE 8|)o

during the year (2009: nil).

1 1 6 TCC International Holdings Limited &k B &£ B B R A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-F=+—HIFE

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2009: 16.5%)

of the estimated assessable profits for the year.

Under the Law of People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the enterprises in PRC is 25%

from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
certain PRC subsidiaries of the Company are exempted from
PRC Enterprise Income Tax for two years starting from their
first profit-making year, followed by a 50% reduction for the
next three years. The preferential tax exemptions or reduction

are going to be expired starting from year 2011 to 2012.

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FiSB XX H
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET T T
Current tax: BHTIE:

Hong Kong BB 6,452 2,872
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR EMEH 106,920 24,121
Other jurisdictions HAb R AR 96 161
Withholding tax Bk 1,872 1,848
115,340 29,002

Underprovision in prior years: BEFEREIR:
PRC Enterprise Income Tax REEMRSE 141 -
Withholding tax TEHH 1,043 -
1,184 -

Deferred tax (note 31): EERIE (Ma231) -
Current year KEE 250 (12,080)
116,774 16,922

BEBFEHIIRBEARFE 2 (A EREE
FiZ16.5% (ZEZFNF 1 16.5% ) 2 =X

S
= =
3 o

RIBHEARAMBELERFHE ([1R%
PRERA]) REERMEBBIZERMRA +
BEXIHRER _TT\E-—A—HBER
25% o

BEFBEEBERNER KNARIZET
FEFEBAR S G EERFEREBEMT
MeBMPREIMERGE MER=F&
MEBER -BHEREEEEIN - ——F
BE_ZT—-_FERH-
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z—Z

—FFEF =1 —HIFE

TCC International Holdings Limited

PRC and accordingly, income tax rate of 25% is adopted.

EREBREEERLF

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 12. Fi8H T H (#2)
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the Hap R AR 2 MIBHREHEBREER
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. RITBEE
The total charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit FRZBFHIEM A ENATIREaE gapin
per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as Mz HERIAT -
follows:
2010 2009
—E-2F —ZTENEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FHET
Profit before tax B B A1 g ) 955,801 171,742
Tax at PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of AR B ¥ 5 E25%
25% (2009: 25%) (Note) (ZFTNF 25%)tHE
ZBIE (HiE) 238,950 42,936
Tax effect of share of profits of associates  J& (kB & 2 al3& F| 2
MG E (56,022) (6,263)
Tax effect of expenses that are not A TE FE AR B 4 ) By A AT
deductible in determining taxable profit MMz Hz BT 21,096 15,126
Tax effect of income that are not taxable — H & € fE 2Rt ' FIl 5 578
in determining taxable profit B2 WA ZHRE 2 (15,541) (7,654)
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETR 1,184 -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIER 2 SRR 2
mEE 8,576 25,463
Utilisation of tax losses previously not AR RER HIAEE
recognised (31,841) (9,476)
Income tax on concessionary rate REBEVETEZFREN (57,477) (30,179)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ~ H H A FEAE R & & 2 K B
operating in other jurisdictions NEIRNGE s - (3,066) (12,864)
Withholding tax on undistributed earnings k% Bt & Fl 2 T8 1 10,944 -
Others HAty (29) (167)
Tax expense for the year RERHIA S H 116,774 16,922
Note: The Group’s major operating subsidiaries are located in the Wi REBZEZELEMBAREULNF

B IR F25% 2 TSR & -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-F=+—HIFE

13. DIVIDEND 13. R E

The 2010 final dividend of HK4.8 cents (2009: HK2.0 cents)
per share, amounting to approximately HK$158,190,000
(2009: HK$43,942,000), has been proposed by the Directors
and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

The 2009 final dividend of HK2.0 cents per share totalling
approximately HK$43,942,000 was recognised as
distribution during the year ended 31 December 2010. No
dividend was recognised as distribution during the year
ended 31 December 2009.

BEECRERE _ZT-TERERA
B4 8B (ZZEZNF:2.081M) -
%4 /158,190,0008 T (Z T L &§:
43,942,000 7T ) - WAFRRNEERR
BERE LBER  FAEE-

REBEE-_ZT—TF+-_A=1+—RHILFE
N ARREERDR-_TTNFRAR
S5 82.0/8 1l - 428 T4 /543,942,000%
T-REBEEZTENF+ZA=1+—AH1t
FEN BERSEBRADIK -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-FA=+—HIFE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable

to the owners of the Company is based on the following

data:

Earnings for the purposes of basic and diluted earnings

14. BREF|

TR E

RRARHRA NEIESRERRNTIREIA

AU ESREFARBERAN AR

per share
2010 2009
—E-EF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FHET
Profit for the year attributable to A EEE A
owners of the Company RNEE & 784,053 120,254
Number of shares BROHEE
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZEENEF
000 ‘000
TR T &
(Restated)
(#&&E73)
Weighted average number of FEERERBRFFAZ
ordinary shares and preference shares BT TR R E R
in issue for the purpose of 19 AR 25
basic earnings per share 2,759,817 1,612,232
Effects of dilutive potential ordinary TRl BTHE &
shares:
Share options A i 103 173
Weighted average number of AEEREERFNAAZE
ordinary shares in issue for the purpose BT LR N IR E
of diluted earnings per share 2,759,920 1,512,405

SRR ERERRN A 2 & BB INE ¥
HEMRN_—_ZE-FEA-_TNBZHK
BITEH AR

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic earnings per share has been adjusted for

the right issue made on 28 June 2010.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-F=+—HIFE -

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 9% BERKRE
Cement  Leasehold Furniture,
plant land and fixtures
and office Plant and and office Motor Construction

facilities building ~ machinery  equipment vehicles Lighters in progress Total
B %8
KER HELH BER RBDE

R#E RELZET B RE AE B ERIR By

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TET TAT TET TAT TET

COST OR VALUATION RASEE
At 1 January 2009 RZZZNE-R-R 1,619,458 17,700 3,506,711 35,731 9,493 7,731 497,430 5,694,254
Exchange adjustments ERAE 47,171 - 106,352 1,574 456 - 13,566 169,119
Additions AE 1,396 - 980 484 - - 927,909 930,769
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries ~ WEHBEAFARES 753,019 - 1,537,862 453,015 76,814 - 189,115 3,009,825
Disposals LE (16,641) - (1,469) (3,707) (1,382) - - (23,193)
Transfers #3 137,213 - 261,882 10,105 3,158 - (412,358) -
Surplus on revaluation BRRAH - 16,700 - - - - - 16,700
At 31 December 2009 RZEThE+=-A=+-A 2,541,616 34,400 5,412,324 497,202 88,539 7,731 1,215,662 9,797,474
Exchange adjustments EHAR 165,329 - 345,450 23,437 5,622 - 64,657 604,495
Additions AE 577 - 18,341 4,557 12,645 - 1788601 1,824,721
Avising on acquisition of subsidiaries WK BAREES 653,014 - 1,047,389 1,068 18,110 - 549,608 2,269,189
Disposals LE (607) - (481) (1,273) (2,247) - - (4,608)
Transfers Ba 861,444 - 1,397,984 8,652 852 - (2268932 -
Surplus on revaluation EfEH - 3,600 - - - - - 3,600
At 31 December 2010 RZB8-2%+-A=1+-8 4,221,373 38,000 8,221,007 533,643 123,521 7,731 1,349,506 14,494,871
Comprising: BiE:
At cost RAME 4,221,373 - 8,221,007 533,643 123,521 7731 1,349506 14,456,871
At valuation 2010 —I-TFfE - 38,000 - - - - - 38,000
4,221,373 38000 8,221,007 533,643 123,521 7781 1,349,506 14,494,871

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND 23t i ERF{E

IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2009 R-ZEENE-F—B 181,387 - 429,661 17,979 4,206 7,653 - 640,386
Exchange adjustments EHAR 9,241 - 22,466 1,141 316 - - 33,164
Provided for the year KEERE 65,637 596 249,995 10,807 3,756 - - 330,791
Elimination on revaluation B - (596) - - - - - (596)
Elimination on disposals e (16219) - (1,234) 3,188) (1,199 . . (21834)
At 31 December 2009 RZZTRE+ZA=+-H 240,046 - 700,888 26,739 7,085 7,658 - 982,411
Exchange adjustments ERAE 21,253 - 63,206 4,981 1,313 - - 90,753
Provided for the year rERERE 110,572 1,158 429,223 55,974 12,642 - - 609,569
Elimination on revaluation Ea - (1,158) - - - - = (1,158)
Elimination on disposals B (130) . (100] 1,048) 1,632 . . (2,910)
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE-Z£+-fA=+-AH 371,741 - 1,193,217 86,646 19,408 7,653 - 1,678,665
CARRYING VALUES EEE

At 31 December 2010 R=B-2F+-A=1-8 3,849,632 38,000 7,027,790 446,997 104,113 78 1,349,596 12,816,206
At 31 December 2009 RZZENE+-A=1+-A 2,301,570 34,400 4,711,436 470,463 81,454 78 1,215,662 8,815,063
At 1 January 2009 R-_ZENE-F—-H 1,438,071 17,700 3,077,050 17,752 5,287 78 497,430 5,053,368
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-FA=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 9% -HMERRE (#)

122

(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their

estimated useful lives as follows:

MERRSYE BERXENETTA
FR-EHRMGETEERZ (0F) FHE
RORETE AWMU E R AR - FTER A ) TR AT 7]
RFERWT :

Cement plant and facilities 30 years IKe TR N A 30%F
Leasehold land and office Over the unexpired term HETH R
building of lease WRERTF R A K E 2
Plant and machinery 15 years W Mo 2 154F
Furniture, fixtures and office EiMh-KE
equipment 5 years EE/N Z?&ﬁ 5%
Motor vehicles 5-10 years RE 52104
Lighters 10 years A 104

Included in construction in progress is interest capitalised of
approximately HK$59,688,000 (2009: HK$26,018,000).

During the year, the Group acquired the property, plant and
equipment on acquisition of subsidiaries. The property, plant
and equipment was fair valued on the date of acquisition
which was 30 April 2010 at HK$2,269,189,000 by Vigers
Appraisal & Consulting Limited, an independent firm of
qualified professional valuers, at open market value on

existing use basis.

TCC International Holdings Limited &k B &£ B B R A A

AFAERIRBZAEARAELNENR
59,688,000/ 7T ( ZZFZ L4 : 26,018,000

BIT) °

RERN AEBTERENBARZER L
WM B R&EH - RIEHE (% H
HAE-ZT-—TFMA=1H) BIULAERK
BEEMGEMTERNEETHBERARAD
AINBREASRARMESYE HE R
RIBET AT ME 418 R2,269,189,000
BT e
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-F=+—HIFE -

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % -HERRKE (&)
(Continued)
The leasehold land and office building is situated in WA BB EGEMITEAE S EE
Hong Kong under long term leases and was revalued BERARATIR_E—ZEF+_A="1—
on 31 December 2010 at HK$38,000,000 (31.12.2009: BHAKEERBERABOLREEZHE
HK$34,400,000) by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited, EXmEkBHAEET REABAR A
an independent firm of qualified professional valuers, at B 1B & {4 438,000,000 7T (ZEZE h
open market value on existing use basis. The resulting F+ = A=+—H 34,400,000/ 7T ) ° A
surplus arising from the revaluation at 31 December 2010 ZE-ZTHFE+ AT —HAZERBHRA
of HK$4,758,000 (31.12.2009: HK$17,296) was dealt with 4,758,000 L (ZEZNF+ A =4+—
in the land and building revaluation reserve. Had there not H:17,206%87L) ERLTHEREFEMR
been any revaluation of this property, its carrying amount HHERNERE WSS EEREME
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment M RZE—ZFEF+T_HA=T—HZKER
losses at 31 December 2010 would be HK$295,000 (2009: FRHERZRAITEREMREBERS
HK$296,000). £3295,000% 7T ( —ZF T L5 : 296,000
JL) e
16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. A HEMRE
31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
—2-FfF —ZTNEF —ZThE
+=ZA=+-B tZA=+—H —A—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET FET
Leasehold land in the PRC under iz 7 A B DA A BA AR 4
medium-term lease MEz i 1,640,513 932,815 722,448
Analysed for reporting purposes as: DMEERAR
Non-current portion FEmE B 1,599,818 907,934 702,429
Current portion BN D 40,695 24,881 20,019
1,640,513 932,815 722,448
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-FA=+—HIFE

17.INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE
Customer Computer
Goodwill base software Total
(K EFER® BB me
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FET
COST ﬁEZIS
At 1 January 2009 —EENFE-A—R 3,722,639 31,901 9,914 3,764,454
Arising on acquisition of Hﬂlﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ' ANES
subsidiaries 794,052 - 4179 798,231
Additions NE - - 8,378 8,378
Disposals & - - (4) (4)
Exchange adjustments BEE 3¢, 38 B - - 240 240
At 31 December 2009 RZZZAF+ZA=+—HB 4,516,691 31,901 22,707 4,571,299
Arising on acquisition of W BB B A RIS A
subsidiaries 1,797,652 51,985 - 1,849,637
Additions NE - - 676 676
Exchange adjustments BE 5, J8 B - - 977 977
At 31 December 2010 R-ZZE-ZF+=-A=+—-H 6,314,343 83,886 24,360 6,422,589
AMORTISATION AND BHERRE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2009 RZZZNF—HA—H 3,722,639 31,901 2,075 3,756,615
Charge for the year A S BE B - - 2,062 2,062
Eliminated on disposals & 8 - - (@) @)
Exchange adjustments BEE 5, 38 B - - 46 46
At 31 December 2009 “ETAETA=1+—H 3,722,639 31,901 4,181 3,758,721
Charge for the year ZMEF # 55 - 11,552 3,512 15,064
Exchange adjustments BEE 5 o B - - 243 243
At 31 December 2010 R-ZZE-FEF+ZA=+—-H0 3,722,639 43,453 7,936 3,774,028
CARRYING VALUES HREE
At 31 December 2010 R-ZZ-ZF+=A=+—H 2,591,704 40,433 16,424 2,648,561
At 31 December 2009 RZBZENF+ZA=1T—H 794,052 - 18,526 812,578
At 1 January 2009 RZZEZNF—HA—H - - 7,839 7,839
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually. Particulars EERNTFETHENR A ERER
regarding its impairment testing are disclosed in note 19. Al AFBERMFIWE-FTEEMERLE
other intangible assets are amortised over their estimated EREMEFAREFHRNNESERUTSE
useful lives, using the straight-line method, at the following R
rates per annum:
Customer base 33.3% KPR 33.3%
Computer software 20% Bt 20%
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-F=+—HIFE -

18. MINING RIGHTS 18. FRIERE
HK$’000
FAT

COST 5
At 1 January 2009 RZEZNF—H—H 60,460
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries WHEWB AR ELE 149,796
Additions NE 1,679
Exchange adjustments PE 38 & 1,649
At 31 December 2009 —EEhF+ZA=+—H 213,584
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries Hﬁl,ﬁﬁ M8~ AR EE A 123,137
Additions NE 68,933
Exchange adjustments ME 5 38 & 16,785
At 31 December 2010 R=ZEB-—=ZEF+=-H=+—H 422,439
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT #8H RORE
At 1 January 2009 RZEZNF—H—H 4,470
Charge for the year AN 3,481
Exchange adjustments ME 3, 8 B 121
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZNF+ZA=+—H 8,072
Charge for the year PGSR e 15,055
Exchange adjustments ME 5, 58 B 750
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE—-ZEFE+=-A=+—H 23,877
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2010 R=ZE-—=ZEF+=-H=+—H 398,562
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZNEFE+ZA=+—H 205,512
At 1 January 2009 RZEZNF—H—H 55,990
The mining rights are amortised using the straight-line KEEDAESERE G AIEAFHR
method to allocate their cost over their estimated useful 5 EL K AN g o
lives.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z—Z

19.

TCC International Holdings Limited

B % R AR M A

—FFEF =1 —HIFE

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON INTANGIBLE
ASSETS

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill of
approximately HK$1,797,652,000 and customer base of
approximately HK$51,985,000 with a useful life of 3 years
set out in note 32(i) have been allocated to the individual
cash generating units (“CGUs”), Upper Value. In 2009, a
goodwill of approximately HK$794,052,000 set out in note
32(ii) have been allocated to the CGUs, TCC (Guigang)
Cement Limited. Both are included in the segment of
manufacture and distribution of cement, clinker and slag

powder.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, management of
the Group determines that there is no impairment of any of

its CGUs containing goodwill and customer base.

The basis of the recoverable amount of the above CGUs and

its major underlying assumptions are summarised below:

The recoverable amount of these CGUs have been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections covering a 10-
year period, based on financial budgets approved by
8%)

per annum. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are

management and a discount rate of 7.9% (2009:

extrapolated with zero growth rate. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and
gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit’s past
performance and management’s expectations for the market

development.

EREBREEERLF

BEEERENR

HAEBARAME  WEI20)FMEZEEL
1,797,652,000/8 T R ERFHRIF 2B E
f£ 951,985,000 st E E S B T E5IR £ & 4
B ([BEEAEN]) Upper Value e R - F
TN W EE32(i) A 2 B 4)794,052,000%
TEESRETFRESELEMAR (EB)KEE

BT A AR RAEHAR - PR BT
B P -
RBE-Z-TFT-A=t-BLFER

AEBZE E@?‘*EIEEH EERERER
AR ELEMRE-

PR eESEM 2 AR OB EE R AE
BRERZEEHALT

ZERSEEEM 27 WRE SRR IREE R
BEFAEREZEE -REBEEEEMILEZIMTE
BEULREBFTIN (ZTZTNF:8%) 2B
K ZAETEERREYEI0F2RERE
TR -MeFHz B ZEEREBNIRTEREH
B M BEESAA REAEZERE
BAEDEZZ T EZRALEREHELERN
ZEMHDRBEZEMNCBEIRRAREREEY
MmiGERZHALBMmMEDL -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-F=+—HIFE -

20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOAN 20 ME QR R NBE ATES
TO AN ASSOCIATE

2

31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
—E-ZF —TENF —EENF
+=A=+-8A +tZA=+—4 —A—AH
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET FHET FET
Cost of investments in unlisted FLEmEE AR ZRE
associates B AR 1,142,821 55,343 55,343
Share of post-acquisition profits, and BHWER 2R
other comprehensive income, net of Hu 2wz (k&
dividends received R R) 271,955 61,465 60,942
1,414,776 116,808 116,285
Loan to an associate BERAER 2,200 14,400 16,800
The loan to an associate is interest-free, unsecured and will FERNAERREE BEEFEHETER
not be repaid within one year from the end of the reporting WMEBRE—FRNEER-
period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-FA=+—HIFE

20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOAN 20 BENTRERBEQTER

128

TO AN ASSOCIATE (continuead)

Details of the Group’s associates at 31 December 2010 are

as follows:

Place of Proportion of Proportion of
incorporation ownership voting
Name of associate and operation interest power held Principal activity
ERERZ PR
BERNAERE SR AR S R E it B ke 4 RERE LB FEEWK
Baoshan Kungang & The PRC 30% 30% Manufacture and
K.Wah Cement H distribution of cement
Construction and clinker
Materials Co. Ltd. & R $HIKOR KK
(acquired in 2010)
RILE =2 KR
EMARDR (R
—Z-TFWE)
Hong Kong Concrete Hong Kong 31.5% 31.5% Production and
Company Limited B distribution of ready-
BRETBRAA mixed concrete
FERDHEHER T
Kenic Investment British Virgin Islands/ 40% 40% Investment holding

Holdings Limited Hong Kong AR
BHRELERERRR HRBERELHSEBF

TCC International Holdings Limited & E B £ BB R A 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-F=+—HIFE

20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOAN

TO AN ASSOCIATE (continuead)

(%)

20.MENR B RBE QT E]

2

Place of Proportion of Proportion of
incorporation ownership voting
Name of associate and operation interest power held Principal activity
BEERZ PR
BENTEE o AR L K E b B ke 1 ERLH  EEXEK
Prosperity Conch The PRC 25% 25% Manufacture and
Cement Company s distribution of cement
Limited and clinker
(acquired in 2010) B I 87K R R
EEFZKRERR
BEERA (R
T -TFWE)
Quon Hing Concrete Hong Kong 50% 50% Production and
Company Limited a5 distribution of ready-
EELR R+ BR A A mixed concrete
AERDHEEHERLT
Yunnan Kungang & The PRC 30% 30% Manufacture and
K.Wah Cement H distribution of cement

Construction
Materials Co. Ltd.
(acquired in 2010)
EmEMEENKE
EMARLR (R
—Z-TFWE)

and clinker
S8 N D R R

129
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=F—FF+=-FA=+—HIFE

20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOAN 20.ENTRBERBEELNTER
TO AN ASSOCIATE (continuead) (#&)
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s AREFEBZBERNRZPEERBENT

associates are set out below:

31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
—E-2F ZEENF ZEENEF
+ZA=+—-H +ZH=+—H —H—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FHET FHT
Total assets BEE 6,609,449 524,702 559,677
Total liabilities BEE (1,551,360) (245,659) (277,151)
Net assets BERA 5,058,089 279,043 282,526
Group’s share of REEEBERAZ
associates’ net assets BETHE 1,414,776 116,808 116,285
Revenue Yz 3,197,243 668,308 764,621
Profit for the year REEHF 775,096 60,068 59,867
Other comprehensive income AEEREMEENRE
for the year 153,931 (8,550) 425
Group’s share of profits and REBEGAFEHE QA
other comprehensive income of 7 ) & E A2 s
associates for the year 264,601 23,123 30,182
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21.LOAN RECEIVABLES 21.ERER
31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
—E-2F ZETNEF —ETNF
+=HB=+-8B +-B=+—H —FB—H
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FTHT FHET FAT
Non-current loan receivables ERB R E K 109,740 84,750 -
Current loan receivables B EWME R 21,240 12,121 49,309
130,980 96,871 49,309

As at 31 December 2010, the loan receivables amounting
to RMB111,000,000 (equivalent to HK$130,980,000) are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and will mature in 2013 to
2018.

As at 31 December 2009, the loan receivables
include RMB2,500,000 (equivalent to HK$2,825,000),
RMB8,227,000 (equivalent to HK$9,296,000), and
RMB75,000,000 (equivalent to HK$84,750,000) variable rate
loans with reference to the benchmark loan rates of financial
institutions set by The People’s Bank of China maturing
on 31 March 2010, 31 December 2010 and 1 March 2018
respectively. The loan receivables have an effective interest

rate of 5.40% per annum.

R-—EE—ZF+-_HA=+—H ERK
EHXAR®111,000,0007w (BE R
130,980,000/ 7T ) A& | - T&HF B &

BR-_EBE—=FEZ_FT—-\FHH-

RZBZNFF+ZA=1+—HB BHEX
Z &89 B A AR?2,500,0007T (HHE R
2,825,000/ 7T.) + A R #8,227,0007T (48
& $°9,296,000/% 7T ) & A R #75,000,000
7C (#H & 784,750,000/ L) » Jh&E &
BARBITAHEZ ERMEBEREE
MEZZBEEXFNE FHHPASNAZT
—ZETF=A=+—H - ZZF—ZTF+=A
=t+t—BRZZE-NF=ZA—RH-EKE
M 2 BREFEREES.40% o
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=F—FF+=-FA=+—HIFE

The above unlisted investments represent investments
in unlisted equity securities issued by private entities
incorporated in Hong Kong and Taiwan. They are measured
at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting period
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the Directors of the Company are of the

opinion that their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

Held-for-trading investments

The fair values of the held-for-trading investments are
determined based on the quoted market bid prices
available on the relevant exchanges or prices provided by
counterparty financial institutions. The quoted investment
funds can be disposed of at the prices provided by the

counterparty financial institutions on a regular basis.

TCC International Holdings Limited &k B &£ B B R A A

22.INVESTMENTS 22. ®E
31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
—E-2F —ETNF —ETNF
+=-A=+-8 +=ZA=+—H —A—8
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET FHET
Available-for-sale investments ARHERE
Unlisted equity securities, at cost FELETRAZS ZKR 59,772 54,509 58,713
Held-for-trading investments BFERZABZRE
Listed equity securities, at market value R AZE % KA
Listed in Hong Kong RES LT 33,242 22,754 16,256
Listed elsewhere REMMT EH 238,613 195,221 185,830
271,855 217,975 202,086
Quoted investment funds, at fair value BEHREES HATE 55,245 49,968 55,724
327,100 267,943 257,810
Available-for-sale investments AHHEERE

AEFEMBRER/NREARBEZEMAL
ZMABRBBTZHRLTRAESRE -
R EMHRARANBRETE RES
EEAFEZAEFHRENFEER AEA
NAEERRREZ RN FETEER SEHET

o

fe

FEXZRAEZRE
NERBER Mgz REZ N FETIRE
HEXZAARcTHEEANERH TSR
WEMREHZEREE -AEREESA
BHOT BB EMREZERLEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=F—FTF+=-FA=+—HIFE -

23.INVENTORIES 23. 78
31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
—E-2F —ETNF —ETNF
+=-A=+—-8 +-A=+—8 —A—8
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHT FET FHET
Raw materials and consumables EM &5 ES 566,604 445,094 307,792
Work in progress e 188,994 116,566 46,688
Finished goods e 139,507 109,448 55,803
895,105 671,108 410,283
24. TRADE RECEIVABLES 24. EIRE B R

31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
—E-BF —ETAF —EThF
+ZB=+—-8B +t=ZA=+—H —A—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET FET
Trade receivables from outsiders EUBINR AL ZE SRR 1,802,324 546,237 199,651
Trade receivables from associates JEUEE N NR 2B ZER 9,630 7,156 9,831

Trade receivables from related parties EWEIEA L ZEHER
(Note) (KieE) - 479 953
1,811,954 553,872 210,435

Note: The related parties refer to the subsidiaries of a substantial Bat: BEATEARA—RZETERRZMNE
.

!

shareholder of the Company.
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 24 BB B IR (&)
Before accepting any new customers with credit limit, the EAE‘ MAEMEBRERBEZFESA &K
Group assesses the historical background and credibility S EMSHAESC ELYESERE
which are available in the market. The credit limit will be FH7}<¥%mﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁéi"
reference to the result of research. Credit limit will be AEEKSTFEN —RARERE - HBIR
reviewed once a year. More than 55% (31.12.2009: 85%) 55% (—ZEFNF+-_A=+—H:85%)
of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor 2 EWE 5 RBIARBE N RELERE
impaired is recovered within three months after the end of BEgRmERARE=ZFARAKE R =
reporting period. No provision has been made for the trade T—EF+T_A=+—H AEELEH
receivables as at 31 December 2010 (31.12.2009: nil). EWEZERFIELTMBE (T AEF

+-—A=+—H8H:&)-

The Group’s policy is to allow a credit period of 90-180 REBERKXGTESRER (BEBEE QA
days to its trade customers (including associates and FEEAT)IOEI180R ZHREH - UT A
related parties). The following is an aged analysis of trade RBERRCEREZEFTIREERH
receivables based on the invoice date at the end of the ARER 9 AT

reporting period:

31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009

—E-ZfF —ETNF —TRNF

+=A=+-8 +tZA=+—4 —A—AH

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000

TET FHET FET

0-90 days 0-90H 1,004,410 480,682 181,646
91-180 days 91-180H 766,472 73,190 28,789
181-365 days 181-365H 41,072 - -
1,811,954 553,872 210,435
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24.

25.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

At the reporting date, trade receivables of approximately
HK$41,072,000 (31.12.2009: nil) were past due for which
the Group has not provided for impairment loss, as 95% of

these amounts represent bank acceptance bills.

The Group will provide fully for any receivables over 365
days because historical experience is such that receivables
that are past due beyond 365 days are generally not

recoverable.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk,
with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties

and customers.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/TIME
DEPOSITS/CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of

three months or less, which carry interest at market rates.

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates which
range from 0.01% to 1.44% (2009: 0.01% to 1.44%) per
annum. The pledged bank deposits and time deposits carry
interest at fixed rate ranging from 0.15% to 4.55% (2009:
0.15% to 3.60%) per annum. The pledged bank deposits will
be released upon the settlement of relevant bank borrowings

or the completion of relevant sale contracts.

Majority of the cash and bank balances were denominated
in RMB which is not a freely convertible currency in the
international market. The RMB exchange rate is determined
by the Government of the PRC and the remittance of these
funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions

imposed by the Government of the PRC.

24.

25.

EWEZ R (2

REE B BUWE F IR A /41,072,000
BT (ZEENF+TA=1+—H:\)K
BEEEAREE W ARMZEREELRE
BREEE WIRAZZEREFMIB%E
IRITEGESR-

AEBE KB BI65E 2 A EUHIES
BERTRRE REASRBEL LR B8
#B365H Z YRR — ARG IR U E -

AEEVTEREAET 2 EERR HER
DHRHFZZZEIREP -

BEFABRITER EHER
BERBITHEER

R RBITHEBOEAEEREZRER
FA=EARDR =188 5 LR
RE B2 EHRITER-

RITHBRIZETHNENFEF0.01%
F1.44% (ZZFZNF:0.01%E1.44%)
AR -BEMROTEFERREHFRIREE
FMENTEFF015%E4.55% (ZZFZT N
#F:0.15%%£3.60% )5t B - B HRITIF
FEREEEARITEEX TR ERIHE
B RVEERRR o

R 2B e RBITEHRARNAREF
B MARETAIRBEMS AR K-
ARBESXHPEBFEE  MZER
TH I o B3R ONA X BB B e 2 1 EE
BR 51| P AR BR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26. TRADE PAYABLES 26. BT E 5 IR
31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
—E-EBF —ZETNF —EENF
+=A=+-8A +tZA=1+—H —A—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT FHET FHET
Trade payables to outsiders ERINAALTZEZER 1,575,080 655,946 204,672
Trade payables to ultimate holding AN ¥ N vl
company B 5N 38,731 18,306 7,699
Trade payables to fellow subsidiaries ~ ER R ZIEB A7 2
HEHHRER 9,518 2,656 94,357
Trade payables to a non-controlling AR LN
shareholder of a subsidiary FEBRBRRZEFER - 5,085 4,844
1,623,329 681,993 311,572

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on

AT RRmERRZENEDRRILRER

=
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: HHE Z BRER D AT

31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009

—2-%F —ZTAF —ZThE

+=ZA=+-B tZA=+—H —A—AH

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FTER FHET FET

0-90 days 0-90H 1,174,129 653,342 299,101

91-180 days 91-180H 414,397 8,487 7,053

181-365 days 181-365H 23,088 11,326 1,937

Over 365 days #8365 H 11,715 8,838 3,481

1,623,329 681,993 311,672

The trade balances due to the ultimate holding company,

fellow subsidiaries and a non-controlling shareholder of

a subsidiary are unsecured, interest-fee and repayable in

accordance with normal trading terms.

136
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—ZEFEF =1 HIFE

27. BANK LOANS 27.R1ITE R
31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
—E-EF —ZETNF —EENF
+=B=+-8 +=ZA=+—H —A—8
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR FHExT FHET
(Restated) (Restated)
(BE5) (EE5)
Secured HEM 3,289,015 390,653 675,752
Unsecured pii 8,730,009 6,419,294 2,874,767
12,019,024 6,809,947 3,550,519
The loans are repayable as follows: BREmT:
Within one year —F R 3,529,456 1,409,925 1,440,520
More than one year but not exceeding i —FETBBME
two years 4,293,609 1,118,434 1,137,029
More than two years but not exceeding #BiEMFBE BB A F
five years 3,427,959 441,247 822,970
Over five years HEFEL L 768,000 1,186 -
Carrying amount of bank loans that are i R ERZLAMARLE
repayable on demand due to breach ~ KEEEZRITEFEEE
of loan covenants (shown under (FIRNRBBEET)
current liabilities) - 3,742,655 -
Carrying amount of bank loans that BEAREHERER
are not repayable within one year —FHNEEEHEREX
from the end of the reporting period BEEXZHRTERER
but contain a repayment on demand B (JIRREHEEET)
clause (shown under current
liabilities) - 96,500 150,000
12,019,024 6,809,947 3,550,519
Less: Amounts due for settlement B BR—FEREEZ
within one year (shown #FIB (BN RE
under current liabilities) fataléiT) (3,529,456) (5,249,080) (1,590,520)
Amounts due for settlement AR—FRERZFE
after one year 8,489,568 1,560,867 1,959,999
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-FA=+—HIFE

27.BANK LOANS (continued) 27.8R1TER (#)

Note: In order to comply with requirements set out in HK INT 5, the
Group has changed its accounting policy on classification
of term loans with a repayment on demand clause. As a
result, the Group’s bank loans that contain a repayment
on demand clause with the aggregate carrying amount of
HK$96,500,000 and HK$150,000,000 has been reclassified
from non-current liabilities to current liabilities as at 31
December 2009 and 1 January 2009 respectively. As at 31
December 2010, no bank loans (that are repayable more
than one year after the end of the reporting period but
contain a repayment on demand clause) have been classified

as current liabilities.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group
breached certain financial covenants as stipulated in the
loan agreements or banking facilities letters entered into
by the Group, which are primarily related to the ratio of
consolidated liabilities to consolidated tangible net worth
and the current ratio of the Group with a total carrying
amount of HK$3,742.6 million. As at the reporting date, the
Group has obtained waiver from all relevant banks for such

breaches.

TCC International Holdings Limited &k B &£ B B R A A

Wi ATAEBRBESRAIEEAT A&
BEEERHBERARERERGIZE
HERzEF R - Bt AEFBHK
fE & 496,500,000/ JT k150,000,000
BT HERERBERIECZRITER
ENRNRZZETNF+_A=+T—HE
—ETNF—A—HAEFERDEBEEN

DEARBEBE R-_Z—ZTE+_-A

=+—B HERTER(BREREH

BREBR-FABERIABIZEKME

BEXOESEARDAERE-

N

HE-_TTAF+-_A=+—HILtFE"
REBEREMIZZERBHLIBITR
BRHmEIRAzE THMBERLY 2E0%
ZHNFEEREAEBEAABRESH
BEFEzLEEARRBLE (BEEER
3,742,600,000/& 7T) - N &E B H - K&
BEERzEENMEGMEHEBRTZEH
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27.BANK LOANS (Continued) 27. RITER (#)

The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in currencies REFENEHEEERNGEEEUIINZE

other than the functional currencies of the relevant group BAEZEENT:

entities are set out below:

31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
—2-ZF —ZETNF —EENF
+=—A=+—-B +ZA=+—H —A—AH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT FHET FHET
Hong Kong dollars BT 477,662 388,010 1,108,606
United States dollars ETT 3,440,104 1,060,289 802,308

All bank loans of the Group are variable-rate loans which
carry interest with reference to Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR”), London Interbank Offered Rate (“‘LIBOR”)
and benchmark loan rates of financial institutions set by The
People’s Bank of China.

$%I2%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ ARFBHEERER

N2ERBRITARXRE ([FRRITRZE
wELD) - ﬁiﬁlﬁﬁf?@%ﬁ% (TRERTT A

EHE J ) R B ARIRTTFTHIE 2 & B
BEREEMEGE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-FA=+—HIFE

27. BANK LOANS (continued)
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has the

following undrawn borrowing facilities:

27

RITER (&)
MRS AR AN EEEA T 5 4R IE
M ESEE

31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
—®-%F -TTAF  FThE
+=ZA=+-8 +=A=+—H —A—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET THET FET
Floating rate TEEX

- expiring within one year —-R—FRER 971,644 1,040,594 506,741
- expiring beyond one year —R—FEER 1,518,664 966,092 448,330
2,490,308 2,006,686 955,071

28. SENIOR NOTES 28.BERE

On 9 May 2008, Upper Value issued US$100,000,000
(equivalent to HK$776,500,000) redeemable senior notes to
certain institutional investors for the acquisition of cement
and clinker plants in the PRC. On 17 March 2010, the
Company entered into various agreements for the purchase
of 70% senior notes from non-related noteholders with an
aggregate outstanding principal amount of US$63,000,000
(equivalent to HK$489,195,000) for an aggregate purchase
price of US$73,011,000 (equivalent to HK$566,932,000).
The premium of the purchase price had been amortised over
the maturity date and charged to profit or loss as interest

expenses.

TCC International Holdings Limited &k B &£ B B R A A

R=ZZFEZN\FHANA Upper Value
% 47100,000,000% 7t ( M % R
HK$776,500,0007% 7T ) 2 o] & 6] & % R 1%
FETHIBIREERE N R EZ KRR
ARB R _FT—FTF=A++tH AQ
ARl ZEBENMFBEZERAA
Wt B 18 K 52 B 7K & 48 %8 /563,000,0003 7T
(F8%5 7489,195,000/ 7T ) 2 70% /8 & =
B #EEEA73,011,000% T (AER
566,932,000 7T) B EE Z mE D NI
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28.

29.

30.

B % R AR M A

—ZEFEF =1 HIFE

SENIOR NOTES (continuead)

On 30 April 2010, the Group acquired the entire share
capital of Upper Value and Upper Value became a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group (see note 32 (i)) while
the senior notes remain valid until May 2011, which is
the maturity date of the notes. The senior notes held by
the Company have been eliminated in the consolidated
statement of financial position since the acquisition of Upper

Value.

The senior notes carry nominal interest at a fixed rate of
10% per annum payable semi-annually with effective interest
rate of 22.89% and repayable by three instalments in May
2010, November 2010 and May 2011 after the acquisition.
According to senior note’s repayment schedule, all of the

outstanding senior notes will be settled by May 2011.

AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS
The amounts due to non-controlling shareholders are

interest-free, unsecured and repayable on demand.

AMOUNT DUE TO IMMEDIATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The amount due to immediate holding company is carrying
interest with reference to HIBOR and/or LIBOR, unsecured

and will be repayable on 30 December 2012.

As at 31 December 2009, the amount due to immediate
holding company was carried interest with reference to
HIBOR and/or LIBOR, unsecured and fully repaid during
2010.

28.

29.

30.

BERE 2
R-E—ZTFEMA=+H AEBKE
Upper ValueZ 2 Z8% A - Upper ValuefiX 4
REEB 22 EWB AR (RMFE323)) -
BAZEEREZ-_FT——FHA (ZEE
B2HHRA)EBEBER ARG ELE
% B W BE Upper Value A R A 45 A B 15 AR R
TP o

i &

M
& R

B BEZBREAMNEAREFE
10% * & = F T B R 7 E22.89%
WHRZFE—ZTFHA ZE—FF+—H
RZT——FRAR=HOFHEEE BE
BERBZEERHER MANKRERZ
EAZBER -_T——FHAEE-

-]

e R R RARIEA

B 1 38 12 R AR R

SREEE-

BRI EEERER

ENEBZRARME

ENEBEZRAAREASEEBRT
RERER/ RERRTALFEHE
MEMAKR =P+ =A=+AK

o

&)

R-ZBZENFT A= —I— B ENEE
ERARREASSLEBRTERITRERE R
SR BERITRERE ﬁ%mﬁ%%ﬁ#ﬁﬂa

R-ZT-—ZTFFREER-
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31. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

The major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised by the

N.ELEBESE &EE&
AEERANERR Y FEEEHALE

Group and the movements thereon during the year are as (BE)REZFHMT:
follows:
Fair value Withholding
adjustments Accelerated Revaluation Revaluation tax on
on business tax of land and of mining undistributed
combination depreciation buildings rights earnings Others Total
BREBAH I#HR KARER
ZATEHEE MEHEHE BPREf FREER ZEH it o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T THL THL THL
At 1 January 2009 R-2ZHE-A—H (138,812) (299) (2,789) - (1,848) 33 (143,715)
Credit (charge) to profitor ~ RERBRETA (418)
loss for the year (Hi12)
(Note 12) 9,944 296 98 - 1,848 (106) 12,080
Arising on acquisition of KERBAARES
subsidiaries (68,137) - - - - (68,137)
Credit to other RE#ZEREA
comprehensive income - - (2,862) - - - (2,862)
At 31 December 2009 R-EEhE+-A=1+-8 (197,005) ) (5,553) - - (73) (202,634)
Exchange adjustments ERBE - - (341) (199) - 9 (525)
Credit (charge) to profitor ~ RERBFFA (k)
loss for the year (Hi##12)
Note 12) 9,330 (42) 678 251 (10,944) 477 (250)
Avising on acquisition of WERE L ASEE
subsidiaries (114,569) - (7,.999) (4,530) (31,514) - (158,612)
Credit to other REMZEREA
comprehensive income - - (795) - - - (795)
At 31 December 2010 R-B-BF+-A=1-8 (302,244) (45) (14,010) 4472) (42,458) 413 (362,816)
The analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial BB E2RABCECHBLES DTN
reporting purposes is as follows: D
31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
—E-2F —ETNF —ETNF
+=A=+-8 +-A=+-H —R—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHT THR THR
Deferred tax liabilities EREBIEEE (364,091) (202,634) (143,748)
Deferred tax assets ELERBEE 1,275 - 33
(362,816) (202,634) (143,715)
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31. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 1.EEHREEE BE#)

(Continued)

The Group has tax losses of approximately HK$212,946,000
(31.12.2009: HK$308,289,000) available for offset
against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of these losses due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax losses
brought forward from prior years of approximately
HK$2,283,000 (31.12.2009: HK$3,353,000) have been
expired in current year. The unrecognised tax losses may
be forward indefinitely except the losses of approximately
HK$159,262,000 (31.12.2009: HK$288,909,000) that will
expire in 2015.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to approximately HK$681,547,000 (31.12.2009:
HK$147,147,000) as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.

RNEBEZHIBEELNA212,946,000
BLT(ZEENF+ZA=+—8:
308,289,000/ 7T,) * A A 45 45 R 2K FE R
7 a5 1 o B P AR 2R g ) SRR £ LA TEDR -
W ERZEEERREEHBEEE
T FE A 2 T IEE 18 42,283,000/ 7T
—ZTENF+=H=+—H:3353,000
B IT) B R AN F JE W o R £91569,262,000
BRT(ZTEEANF+ZA=+—8:
288,909,000 7T) 2 EE - KR =T —H
FREMIN RERRIBEEEREEE -

BEBERBECEMSHRATE BTN
F-A—RAR BHEPENERFME
wm A SRR E BB BRA
SEBENEHEREZERD M
ZRRATETERA R G REE - HF
B EARC R G MEMG 2 ERER
#41681,547,0008 T (ZEZE N F + = A
=+ —H 147,147,000 7T ) I E R 5 A
BT ERR NE IR R IR B4 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-FA=+—HIFE

32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(i)

In order to enlarge the market share in the PRC, the
Group completed the acquisition of the entire issued
share capital of Upper Value on 30 April 2010. The
Company acquired from Pro-Rise Business Limited
(“Pro-Rise”), a third party, the entire issued share
capital of Upper Value which principal activity is
investment holding and its subsidiaries are engaged
in manufacturing and distribution of cement and Pro-
Rise assigned the shareholder loan as at 30 September
2009 to the Company at a cash consideration
of HK$3,800,000,000. This acquisition has been
accounted for using the acquisition method. The
amount of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition
was approximately HK$1,797,652,000.

Acquisition related costs amounting to approximately
HK$12,414,000 have been excluded from the cost of
acquisition and have been recognised as an expense
in the year, within the “general and administrative
expenses” line item in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

TCC International Holdings Limited &k B &£ B B R A A

32. B B 1 |

(i)

REARGPEZTSHE A5E
RZZT—ZTFNA=+HZTRKE
Upper ValueZ B 178 A » K2 &
AR € X f83,800,000,0007% T [A] —
% 5% = J7Pro-Rise Business Limited
([Pro-Rise J ) ¢ B Upper Valuez &
B2 21T (Upper ValueZ X E %
BRITEER R EWE QR T EK
T2 BERDIHER) - MPro-RiselA
RABEER_ZZENFNA=TH
ZIRERER - LB EED A UE
FEAR - AWESEELEC HESHE
#)/31,797,652,0007% T ©

FA - BBHRBESFEFEZKAEARD
12,414,000 7L AR5 AW EIH 2
BRAR MRRea2EEksER2 [—R
RITBHAXIEAENERAMASE -
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(i)

2. BB A A ()

(Continued) i (#&)
The net assets acquired in the transaction, and the ZRGFWEBcEEFERMEELE Y
goodwill arising, are as follows: EENT
Acquiree’s
carrying
amounts at
acquisition Fair value
date adjustments Fair value
Uk A 5
BREBARZ
RESHE AFERE AVE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THT THET TET
Net assets acquired: T EEFE:
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment nE BEREE
(Note 1) (Hiz1) 2,261,007 8,092 2,269,189
Prepaid lease payments (Note 1) BRBERE (M) 274,392 389,638 664,030
Customer base (Note 1) KPR (f:1) - 51,985 51,985
Mining rights RER 123,137 - 123,137
Interests in associates d=UNSIE 33 951,236 136,242 1,087,478
Deposits for acquisition of property, plant Y& % HE R
and equipment REZAT® 307,771 - 307,771
Deposits for acquisition of prepaid lease WEENEEREZ TS
payments 22,484 - 22,484
Deposits for acquisition of mining rights WERRE S 28,816 - 28,816
Deferred tax assets ERHBEE 873 - 873
Current assets RBEE
Inventories lea— 81,497 - 81,497
Prepaid lease payments BNEERE - 8,561 8,561
Prepayments, deposits and other BRRE hz%&
receivables (Note 2) H ot WA (Hfit2) 117,739 - 117,739
Trade receivables (Note 2) & Llﬂl“é’ SER( ﬁ/fu}f.?) 497,044 - 497,044
Amount due from a non-controlling JE T IE R AR AR B R
shareholder (Note 2) (Hiz2) 16,179 - 16,179
Pledged bank deposits EERRITER 3,017 - 3,017
Cash and bank balances Re RBITES 152,722 - 152,722
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade payables B E HER (320,561) - (320,561)
Other payables and accrued liabilities HiERFERETAE (783,523 - (783,523)
Tax payables ERFIE (10,853) - (10,853)
Bank loans BITER (514,650) - (514,650)
Senior notes BERE (801,032) - (801,032)
Amount due to a non-controlling B FEE R R R SR
shareholder (93,526) - (93,526)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Bank loans RITER (685,257) - (685,257)
Deferred tax liabilities ELERBEEE (44,915) (114,570) (159,485)
1,583,687 479,948 2,063,635
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(Continued)

Notes:

(i)

TCC International Holdings Limited & Jf& B

1.

The fair value of the property, plant and equipment,
prepaid lease payments and customer base of Upper
Value are determined by an independent appraiser,
Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited, at the acquisition
date.

The fair value of the property, plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments were estimated by applying a
combination of market and depreciation replacement

approach.

The fair value of the customer base was estimated by
applying an income approach. The following were the key

model inputs used in determining the fair value:

o discount rate of 17.46%;

o tax rate of 25%; and

o annual exit rate of customers of 33%.

The trade and other receivables and amount due from a
non-controlling shareholder acquired with a fair value of
approximately HK$630,962,000 had gross contractual
amounts of approximately HK$689,396,000. The
best estimate at acquisition date of contractual cash
flows not expected to be collected is approximately

HK$58,434,000.

Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests in Upper Value recognised

at the acquisition date was determined with reference

to the proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets

at the acquisition date and amounted to approximately
HK$61,287,000.

HEEBEERAR

32. W KT B 2 B

(i)

(%)

8] (#)

Wit

1.

iz

Upper ValuelA Y i HEAZ 1% - B
HE BENEEREREPER Y

RTE TS R 8 1 (B R A% HT & EE AT

HEMARAREE -

M BB REBHARENEERA
ZRFENERMSIITEEEEM
EETIEE -

BEPERZ NFETIERBAKETT
BEr AT REERFERAERZ
TEENEARE:

° PrIRFER17.46% :

o WMER25% K

o EPFEIEARIY -

B U B FE U 5 AR SR I At FE R IE
VA B2 FE U FE 1 AR AR SR8 2 A SFE XY
/630,962,000 7T A HBELN
/689,396,000 7T © R &% 1€ & 1 18
EIER T - U B HE 2 TE R AT R
El& AR EMESR L /A58,434,000

BTe

I R =&

Upper ValueA Wi B HATER 2 JE15

=Ry
B 5

T2 EDIERKE R Tﬁéuﬁl,ﬁ\%
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-F=+—HIFE

32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continuea) 2. KB B X B8] ()

(i) (Continued) i (#&)
HK$'000
FHET
Goodwill arising on acquisition KBEEELEZHE
Consideration transferred EEENRE 3,800,000
Plus: Non-controlling interests N FEIE R R 61,287
Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets W EWEBNEEFECATE
acquired (2,063,635)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEREE 2 BE 1,797,652
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WEREHEELXZRESRLEFE
Cash consideration ReRE 3,800,000
Less: Deposit paid in prior year B EFEMNZE 2 (804,410)
Less: Cash and bank balances acquired BB 2R e RIRITA S (152,722)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition RWEREAZESREFE 2,842,868

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Upper Value
because the cost of the combination included a
control premium. In addition, the consideration paid
for the combination effectively included amounts in
relation to the benefit of expected synergies, revenue
growth, future market development and the assembled
workforce of Upper Value. These benefits are not
recognised separately from goodwill because they
do not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable
intangible assets.

The goodwill arising on this acquisition is on provisional
basis, awaiting for the finalisation of the valuation of the
identifiable assets and liabilities.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Note:

During the year, Upper Value contributed approximately
HK$1,521.4 million to the Group’s revenue and approximately
HK$260.8 million to the Group’s profit for the period between
the date of acquisition and the end of the reporting period.

E& M A IE TR E S
Upper ValuefE £ - b gh & 6
SNZREBER EBEEEBERE
BRMEFE P e 5E  WEFER AKX
™i5E R - LA K Upper ValueZ 4288 A

F-ARZEMNEZTRFEUHBER
BEZHEREE HUEEAHENSH

HHRBBELE BB NIRE T EEN
B UERRAABRNNEERBER
BFEMX

RWBEEL 2 mEB TR K-

B & -

M Upper Valueit W g B H 2 5 &5 #1 R
A 2 B 8 A SR [ 2 Wbk R0 ¥ 0 Tl B R
#91,521,400,0005% 7T & #260,800,000%

IT °
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-FA=+—HIFE

32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(i)

(Continued)

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January
2010, the Group’s total revenue for the year would have
been approximately HK$8,672.6 million, and profit for
the year would have been approximately HK$955.0
million. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of
revenue and results of operations of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2010, nor is it intended

to be a projection of future results.

The Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of
TCC International (Guangxi) Limited (“TCCI (Guangxi)”),
which principal activity is investment holding and its
subsidiary is engaged in manufacture and distribution
of cement, from the immediate holding company
on 24 September 2009 for a total consideration
of HK$2,383,282,000. This acquisition had been
accounted for using the purchase method. The amount
of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition was
approximately HK$794,052,000.

TCC International Holdings Limited &k B &£ B B R A A

2. WEH B QT (&)

(i)

(i

(%)

WKEBEEER -_T—TF—A—
HEX BIFRAAEEBNREOA
8,672,600,000/% 7T + B A1 M) 1% 49 3%
955,000,000 7T « B Z B ¥ Jh{EH
BAzA BFAERMKESREDERN
—E-ZTF-—A—HARK AEEE
BRATEGz W R EEEEZEE
TR E R AR R EE 2 TR -

REBR_ZEZNFNAAZTHBAMK
#XB2,383,282,000/8 7T B B BIER
N EUEETCC International (Guangxi)
Limited ([ TCCI (Guangxi) )z & &8
EBEITRA ZAAETERERE
RN AR A R ERE R i
K- ZBEWEDEABEEAKR:
AUBEEmMELEZEHESROR
794,052,000/ 7T ©
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continuea) 2. KB B X B8] ()

(i) (Continued) iy (#&)
The net assets acquired in the transaction, and the ZRGNBRFTEEREELECEHE
goodwill arising, are as follows: wmr
Acquiree’s
carrying
amounts
before Fair value
combination adjustments Fair value
=X
BUEARZ
RESE ATERE AYLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
THEL TET THEL
Net assets acquired: i EESE:
Property, plant and equipment (Nots) MmE-BEREE (i) 2,907,597 102,228 3,009,825
Prepaid lease payments (Note) BNEETE (Hit) 48,515 170,324 218,839
Intangible assets EREE 4,179 - 4,179
Mining rights WER 149,796 - 149,796
Loan receivables ERER 129,950 - 129,950
Inventories #E 142,993 - 142,993
Prepayments, deposits and other BRFE RS
receivables e 54,020 - 54,020
Trade receivables Y E 5 ER 431,199 - 431,199
Cash and bank balances RERBITES 174,931 - 174,931
Trade payables B EHER (11,592) - (11,592)
Other payables and accrued liabilities HthEfIRERETAE (365,269) - (365,269)
Bank loans RITER (2,251,676) - (2,251,676)
Amount due to immediate holding company B B A a8 (21,840) - (21,840)
Deferred tax liabilities BERERE - (68,137) (68,137)
1,392,803 204,415 1,597,218
Goodwil Bk 794,052
Total consideration BRE 2,391,270
Total consideration satisfied by: BREZERAA:
Issuance of non-redesmable convertible BOOATBEEERE LR
preference shares (note 34) (H13£34) 2,383,282
Direct expenses paid in connection RBERBRAZNZ
with acquisition of subsidiaries BERHAY 7,988
Total consideration BRE 2,391,270
Cash and bank balances acquired FEERe RETES 174,931
Direct expenses paid in connection RBERBRAZNZ
with acquisition of subsidiaries EERAX (7,988)
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition WEEREA RS
MATHE 166,943
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(i

TCC International Holdings Limited

(Continued)

Note: The fair value of the property, plant and equipment
and prepaid lease payments of TCCIl (Guangxi) were
determined by an independent appraiser, Vigers

Appraisal & Consulting Limited, at the acquisition date.

As the consideration for the acquisition of TCCI
(Guangxi), 651,170,000 non-redeemable convertible
preference shares with par value of HK$0.1 each were
issued. The fair value of the preference shares of the
Company, determined using the published price of the
ordinary shares of the Company available at the date of

the acquisition, amounted to HK$2,383,282,000.

Goodwill of approximately HK$794,052,000 had been
recognised from the acquisition due to the increase in
fair value of the preference shares issued at the date of

acquisition from the date of announcing the acquisition.

TCCI (Guangxi) contributed approximately HK$473.4
million to the Group’s revenue and approximately
HK$30 million to the Group’s profit for the period

between the date of acquisition and the end of 2009.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January
2009, the Group’s total revenue for the year of
2009 would have been approximately HK$4,928.9
million, and a loss for the year of 2009 would have
been approximately HK$9.1 million. The pro forma
information was for illustrative purposes only and was
not necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2009, nor was it intended to be a projection of

future results.

EREBREEERLF

2. BB A A ()

(i

(%)

H5t - TCCI (Guangxi)F 4 & H 23 2 )
¥ BB RREBAKRENEERE
Z N FAET B L (B AR AT E
EFGEMERQBEE -

EBUWHETCCI (Guangx)z KB 2
%% 17651,170,00008 & JR0. 178 T 2
A EE A ERELER AR FE
Rz ATFEZRKEBRARA#E
AeE@Rke ARAMNEBET S8E
2,383,282,00078 7T °

MR BREEEAMBEERNKER
HERTEERD 2 A TFEEM &
B WS £ 18 2 # R 49794,052,0007%
TLZTEE

BRBRHEE S NFFRIH
& TCCl (Guangxi)& AN &£ B & 5k 4
473,400,000 Tz W m Rk /A EE
#5 3k #730,000,0007%8 7T 2 i A ©

WKBEEENR _ETZNF—A—H
TR ZETNFFEAEELY
#HH#) 54,928,900,0008 7 —FF
NEFFE BB 43E9,100,0007% 7T ©
HEERDEHRNA A BTAE
AHBEBEHEER=-_ZTAF—A—
HIEK  AEBERAEGZ W&
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33. SHARE CAPITAL - ORDINARY SHARES B HRAEA—HER

Number of

ordinary shares

EBERHUE
‘000 HK$’000
Tk FHET
Authorised: EERA
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREECI10B L il

At 1 January 2009 RZEENFE—HR—H 2,000,000 200,000
Increased during the year (Note 1) REREN (HiF1) 348,830 34,883
At 31 December 2009 and RZETNF+_A=1t—-HK

1 January 2010 —E-TF—-H—H 2,348,830 234,883
Increased during the year (Note 2) RERIEI (A eE2) 2,651,170 265,117
At 31 December 2010 R-_E-ZF+-_HA=+—H 5,000,000 500,000

Issued and fully paid: BEITERARRKRA:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREECI10B L Eidk
At 1 January 2009 RZZEZNF—HA—H 1,282,450 128,245
Exercise of share options (Note 3) TR RE (A1223) 6,600 660
At 31 December 2009 and R-ZETNF+_A=1t—-HK

1 January 2010 —E-TF—-H—H 1,289,050 128,905

Issued under placing (Note 4) BEREEEEBTRM
(Hfit4) 256,568 25,657
Conversion of non-redeemable B A] Bl ] SR B SR R

convertible preference shares (Ht5)

(Note &) 651,170 65,117
Exercise of share options (Note 6) IR R E (M ite) 300 30
Issued under rights issue (Note 7) RIBEHARE BTG (Hi7) 1,098,544 109,854
At 31 December 2010 R-Z2-ZF+-A=+—-H 3,295,632 329,563
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-FA=+—HIFE

33. SHARE CAPITAL - ORDINARY SHARES
(Continued)

Notes:

1.

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 27 July 2009, the authorised share capital of
the Company was increased from HK$200,000,000 divided
into 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each to
HK$300,000,000 divided into 2,348,830,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each and 651,170,000 convertible preference
shares of HK$0.10 each by the creation of an additional
348,830,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each and
651,170,000 new convertible preference shares of HK$0.10

each.

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 23 February 2010, the authorised share
capital of the Company was increased from HK$300,000,000
divided into 2,348,830,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
and 651,170,000 convertible preference shares of HK$0.10
each to HK$565,117,000 divided into 5,000,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each and 651,170,000 convertible
preference shares of HK$0.10 each by the creation of an
additional 2,651,170,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.10

each.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, Mr. Koo, Cheng-
Yun, Leslie and Mr. Wu Yih Chin, Directors of the Company,
and other employees exercised share options amounting to
4,040,000, 450,000 and 2,110,000 shares, respectively, at a
subscription price of HK$1.266 per share.

TCC International Holdings Limited & E B £ BB R A 7

3. RAEA—EBR (£)

Byt

BER_ZTAFELAZZTERAET
CREFINAE BB RAER B
% &8 91N348,830,0000% & % 1 1E0.107%8
JL 2 E A% %651,170,0000% & % ®
BEO10B T2 A BRELER AR
7] 2 7k E B AN $1200,000,0007% 7T ( 5
#2,000,000,000/% &F i E {50.10% 7T
2 @ A% ) ¥ £300,000,00078 7T (9 A
2,348,830,000% & IR EI{H0. 10780 2 L i@
% }651,170,0004% & % E {E0.107% 7T 2
AEBRELR) o

BER-_ZT—ZTF_AZF+=BRITZR
RRAIAE F@BIRER FILREHN
2,651,170,0000 B AR E{E0.10/8 7T 2 37 &
AR - AN A A2 A E R ZN 83300,000,000
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0.10% T 2 ¥ i@ Mk }2651,170,000/k &
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BEBRBMEOI10B T X MK R
651,170,000/ & Iz H fE0.10/8 T 2 7] 8
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N AAFREEERATERRERLE
PAK BoAt e B IR BE S .266/8 L5 7l
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33. SHARE CAPITAL - ORDINARY SHARES
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

4.

Reference was made to the two announcements of the
Company dated 14 January 2010 and 22 January 2010, the
controlling shareholder of the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent and the Company entered
into a subscription agreement with its controlling shareholder
in relation to a top-up placing, on a best effort basis, of
256,568,000 ordinary shares of the Company were placed
with independent investors at the placing price of HK$3.30 per
share, approximate to the market value at the announcement
date. Completion of the transaction took place on 22
January 2010 and the Company raised total net proceeds of
approximately HK$825.4 million, which were applied towards

funding the acquisition of Upper Value (note 32(j)).

On 22 January 2010, 651,170,000 ordinary shares have
been allotted and issued to the controlling shareholder of the
Company upon the exercise of the convertible preferences

shares.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, employees of the
Company exercised share options amounting 300,000 shares
at a subscription price of HK$1.266 per share.

On 23 June 2010, the Company issued 1,098,544,023
ordinary shares, on the basis of one rights share for every two
existing shares at the issue price of HK$2.10 per share. The
net proceeds of approximately HK$2,286.0 million were raised
by the Company, which were applied towards repayment
of the debt financing incurred by the Group to fund the
acquisition of Upper Value (note 32(i)). The new shares issued
during the year rank pari passu in all respects with the existing

shares in issue.

3. RAEA—EBR (£)

Byt

(%)

BURMAARAYPA-T-—TF—A
THAR=ZZE-—ZTF-A-+t-B2ZMH
DA AR B PR AR IR R R AR IR ET LB
B MALD R EEZERIRE R RAE
g NAER RN ELENREETR
3.30% 7T CGALARMAMZ TE) AEE
18 %1 77 2 B & A A §]256,568,0008% 3 i@
BRTIBIBEE ZXHER T —TF
—AZ+ZARK ARAKEMMERIEA
#F X £825,400,0007 7T B AEA K
8% Upper Value (B 5E32() ) I2 & & -

RZZE—ZF—-H=-+=H" 651,170,000
P B SR AR O 70 R B A (B O R AT (R B G B
REBITTARRB ZEREER -

REBZEZ-Z—ZF+-_A=+—HILtFE
N AREIZREZRRBESR.2667 T
771#300,0000% I% 17 2 BE A% 4 -

e

NH

—ZTFANAZF=H XRAM
BIEER2A0B T TIEEHBEMK
RERMNEE —RERKR D 2 EEHEHT
1,098,544,023K L @R - N R A & & FT
S FI8F 5 #) A2,286,000,00078 7T+ B A
e B8 AN @ A U BB Upper Value (M &E
32()) RFEEEMELEZEBKRE - RFR
BETZHRMAMAFERESETRE
RHOZERZEESR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-FA=+—HIFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL - NON-REDEEMABLE

34. A - A EE A EHRE LR

CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES ([BEKR])
(“PREFERENCE SHARES”)
Number of
convertible
preference
shares
TERELERHA
‘000 HK$’000
Fh& FHET
Authorised: EERA
Preference Shares of HK$0.10 each BREMEBCI0ETZEEK
At 1 January 2009 RZEZNF—A—H - -
Increased during the year (note 33) REF RN (H15£33) 651,170 65,117
At 31 December 2009 and RZFZEAF+-A=1—8BR
31 December 2010 —E-TFEFT-A=1—H 651,170 65,117
Issued and fullly paid: BEITREERA:
Preference Shares of HK$0.10 each BREECI0B T ZBER
At 1 January 2009 N_ETNF—-F—H - -
Issued in consideration for acquisition RZEZNFIERWE
of the issued share capital of TCCI TCCI (Guangxi)Z B B 1T A
(Guangxi) in 2009 (note 1) ZREMmET (A1) 651,170 65,117
At 31 December 2009 and RIZEZNF+_A=+—HK
1 January 2010 —T-T¥—-A—H 651,170 65,117
Conversion of Preference Shares ERE LR (H2)
(note 2) (651,170) (65,117)

At 31 December 2010

R-ZE-FF+-A=+-H -

BRI R AAIER - THERERE B9
RETREMNKHEBRS -REBR-

The Preference Shares are non-redeemable, carry no voting
right and each of the Preference Share is convertible into

one ordinary share any time after issue.

154

TCC International Holdings Limited & E B £ BB R A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HV—F

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z_—Z

34.

35.

BB Hm KM

—FFEF =1 HIFE

SHARE CAPITAL - NON-REDEEMABLE
CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES
(“PREFERENCE SHARES”) (continued)

Notes:

(1) In the acquisition of TCCI (Guangxi), 651,170,000 Preference
Shares of HK$0.1 each (note 32(ii)) were issued for the
acquisition of 100% of issued capital of TCCl (Guangxi). The

transaction was completed on 24 September 2009.

(2) On 22 January 2010, 651,170,000 Preference Shares had
been converted into same number of ordinary shares by the
subscription and the full exercise of the conversion rights

attaching to the Preference Shares.

SHARE BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equity settled share option schemes

Old share option schemes

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Old
Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the Old Share Option Scheme
include directors, independent non-executive Directors,
and employees of the Company and any of its subsidiaries
and associates. The Old Share Option Scheme became
effective upon the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange on 5 October 1997 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date. The Old Share Option Scheme was cancelled on

23 May 2006.

As at 31 December 2010, all the granted share options

under the Old Share Option Scheme were exercised.

34.

35.

RA-FaBETERE LR
(ExkR]) &)
Hiit -

(1) WHEETCCI (Guangxi)Bi2rh » AR A E %17
651,170,000/ & R EEO0. 1 T 2 E KK
(Bt 5E32(ii) ) + LAUKEETCCI (Guangxi)Z &
BEBHTRA - ZXIN_ZZNFNA
—+MAEMK-

—ZF—-A=+=A 651,170,000
BIBREERREHITEES

DR XNAREZRS
BUBR A 45 3 2 8 IR AT
EHR g

ARRREBRERS ([ERBESTE )
%’*%%&Eﬁ]&@ﬁaﬁzﬁﬁz}ﬁkwﬁ%%ﬁﬂj
BRlzaERSEE ERREMEZA
ER2EERRARTREEMANMERT

LEMERRCEE BUFNTEELE
B -BERREFEN-NNAEFETARR
BIAR QAR REBE R Fr EH B IEARA
R BRIFBUB SR B RIE RS2
BAEMBET TFDEBRS - EBBIE
FEER —_EEREAR -+ =RBUK"

RZE-TFF+_A=+—B EBRE
FEET MBS REBRESEITE -
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35. SHARE BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 35. U@ XA REZ2RS (&)
(Continued)
Equity settled share option schemes (Continued) URAEEZBRESE (&)
Old share option schemes (Continued) EERETE (E)
Details of specific category of the share option under the Old EERETSIETRBEMNBIRE 2B
Share Option Scheme are as follows: (N

Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price

BEHEBH B 1TfEH TEE
31 March 2006 6 months 1 October 2006 to HK$1.266
—EERFZHA=+—H ~ME A 30 March 2011 1.26678 7T

“2EAFHA-AE
—E-——F=A=+A

T%&%EA¢W$ZET%$&++$1EEFﬁ
REBREAEETEREZEDIT

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s
share options under the Old Share Option Scheme held by

the Directors and certain employees during the year:

At At At Date of Exercise
Name or category 1 January Exercised 31 December Exercised 31 December  grant of price of
of participant 2009 during 2009 2009 during 2010 2010  share options share options
RZBEAE RIBEAF RIBBEAF RIZ-ZTF RZB-ZF BRE
SREREAER -A-H WEffE t=A=+-H REffE tZA=Z+-B BRESLAH 1EE
HK$
BT
Directors
8%
KOO, Cheng-Yun, Leslie 4,040,000 (4,040,000 - - - 31 March 2006 1.266
i “EEAFZASTA
WU Yih Chin 450,000 (450,000) - - - 31 March 2006 1.266
REN —EERFZA=1+-A
4,490,000 (4,490,000) - - -
Other employees 2,410,000 (2,110,000) 300,000 (300,000) - 31 March 2006 1.266
EEE e G e
Total 6,900,000 (6,600,000) 300,000 (300,000) -

ek

The market price of the shares on the date of which options

RAFREBREETEARZBRNHES

BR2.71EBT(ZETNF:
BILE3.698 L2 ME) °

were exercised during the year was HK$2.71 per share NF&H1.85

(2009: range from HK$1.85 to HK$3.69 per share).
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35.

BB Hm KM

—FFEF =1 HIFE

SHARE BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity settled share option schemes (Continued)

New share option schemes

On 23 May 2006, the Old Share Option Scheme was
cancelled and a New Share Option Scheme (the “New Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted. The purpose of the New
Share Option Scheme is to enable the Directors to grant
options to selected Eligible Persons as incentives or rewards
for their contribution or potential contribution to the Group.
The basis of eligibility of any of the Eligible Persons to the
grant of options shall be determined by the Directors from
time to time on the basis of the Directors’ opinion as to his
contribution or potential contribution to the development and
growth of the Group. Eligible Persons means any person

falling within one of the following classes:

() any Director or proposed Director (whether executive

or non-executive, including any independent non-
executive Director), employee of any member of the
Group or any controlling shareholder, a person who
controls the Company or any company controlled by a
controlling shareholder (a “Category A Eligible Person”);

or

(i) any holder of any securities issued by any member
of the Group or any controlling shareholder or any
company controlled by a controlling shareholder (a

“Category B Eligible Person”);

and, for the purposes of the New Share Option Scheme,
shall include any company controlled by one or more

persons belonging to any of the above classes of persons.

35.

LR NRE RS (4)
URASEE 2BRESS (F)
HiER g 2
RZZERNFRAZ+T=0 EBERET
I BUR - TR &) ([ ARt
81N F B &R - B R 81 5 £
TESRN BBERERTEEAERA
T ERNEHAKEMEZERMIER
BRI REH B - EAEEMALER
BREZER HHAEFSITHREESY
W AEEBERIERMEZAERMAER
BRzcEAMEE - AERALTIREMNES
RIFEP—EZ AL

() AEBEMKE QR SHERZERKRE
S (A B PR AR AR Rl 2 R RER 2
EREZREEER (THRAATH
FERTT BREMRBILIFNTES) -
BE (AEARERMAL]) &

(i) ANEEEMKE R R SHAE AR R
AR IR R 2 AT #ETZ
EAEFZEAFAEA (BEAER
AL

M BRESEIM S AREB LT

M—Rz—BHZBALENZEAR
E_JO
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35. SHARE BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 35. RGP XARIEBEZRX S (#)

158

(Continued)

Equity settled share option schemes (Continued)

New share option schemes (Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the New Share Option Scheme is
not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at
the date of adoption of the New Share Option Scheme.
The Company can grant share options to subscribe upto
77,292,200 shares of the Company under the New Share
Option Scheme. The 10% limit may be refreshed with the

approval of shareholders of the Company.

The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of
which options granted and may be granted to any individual
in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Any option
to be granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company (or any of their respective
associates) must be approved by the independent non-
executive Directors (excluding any independent non-

executive Director who is the grantee of the options).

If a grant of options to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive Director (or any of their
respective associates) will result in the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
already granted and to be granted to such person under
the New Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) in any 12-month period up to
and including the date of grant representing in aggregate
over 0.1% of the shares in issue; and in excess of HK$5
million, such further grant of options is required to be

approved by shareholders.

TCC International Holdings Limited &k B &£ B B R A A

URAEE BRETE (&)
FRERENE (E)

EAITR R IR R B AR R 8l 2 BB AR A T
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X B P AR BR R R AR R S B L B AR AE - A
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RAEA R BRI - AE ] A £ MEAT —
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35. SHARE BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 35. RGP XARIEBEZRX S (#)

(Continued)

Equity settled share option schemes (Continued)

New share option schemes (Continued)

The option period commences on the Commencement Date
(the date upon which the options are deemed to be granted
and accepted) of such options and ends on the close
of business on the day immediately preceding the tenth

anniversary thereof.

The exercise price per share shall be determined by the
Board, being at least the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares on the date on which an option is offered to an
Eligible Person, which must be a business day (“‘Offer Date”);
(ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the offer date, and (iii) the

nominal value of one share.

The New Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years commencing on the adoption date
of 23 May 2006. As at 31 December 2010, no option had
been granted under the New Share Option Scheme since its

adoption.

Share options do not counter rights on the holders to

dividends or vote at shareholders meetings.

URASEE 2BRESS (F)
HERESE ()
BRERRNZEFEREZERA (BK
BERACRERCEZAZ B MG -
YHREEE+HAFEHA—EEXAE
By JEE A ©

BREOHITFEEEHESZSET NED
HERUT=ZEhzH&5E: ((EMEE
BATREEREERB (LEREHER)
(TZRBEEB Z2RHEHE: WBEEQ
BHAIAERZS B 2RO FHKRTE: &
(i) — A AR 1D E &~

MBREASZAEMBA T HEAE
B(ANZZZXFRAA-T=R)EER-
RIE-TF+-_A=+—B BRAH
78 ISCAE BT 3 DA R L 4 92 b R (AR BB R
-

FE AR WA R A A E IR B SRR
TR LREZEN-
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36. RESERVES 36. & 1&

160

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the fair value of the combined net
assets value of the subsidiaries involved in the Group
reorganisation in September 1997 and the assets, liabilities
and undertakings which relate to the import and distribution
of cement carried out by Hong Kong Cement Manufacturing
Company Limited prior to the Group reorganisation (the
“Relevant Business”), as if they were acquired by the
Group when the subsidiaries and the Relevant Business
commenced operations, and the nominal value of the

Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations applicable
to wholly-foreign owned enterprises, certain PRC
subsidiaries are required to appropriate an amount of not
less than 10% of its annual after tax profit to the statutory
reserve fund, which may be used to increase the paid-up

capital of the PRC subsidiary.

TCC International Holdings Limited & E B £ BB R A 7
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37.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
benefits scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) for employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries with maximum of HK$1,000 per employee per
month and are charged to the profit and loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme,
except for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions,
which are refunded to the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in

accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of state-managed retirement benefit plans
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a specified percentage of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit schemes to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit plan is to make the specified

contributions.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income of approximately HK$16,637,000
(2009: HK$7,499,000) represents contributions payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of

the plans.

37. R @A &
AEBRBERHMEAES T BEY BE
B2 HNESH B 2 B E R EER
RIVERIE B ([TSEB)) - BBHK
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—BRERESHEEL  BBESME
MW AN SR B 2 B B 78 7] 2 BRUCER ¢ 5K AT Bk
BRAAEEEX8BEEFEREARE
S ERARE T AREE -

JiE]
EF
e
+
=
=

BRRIZEERTE
TemrBRERRABMNGTEZ&
ZEMBARAREEH © 2 X EE
TE A DL AR RAE A A BIE L 5K B1E
FIETBIIR B & - N E A R IKE G
|2~ B ERIEREEMRR-

Pt
e

IS

129

0

\
A

SH

ok

[t

REEZAE ZHRAEE 2L EENZE
A&l 2 R ABEE L) 216,637,000 7T (=
T NF 17,499,000 ) - ZEBER
RETHEWREREBALR-

Annual Report 2010 F 3§

161




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R e B 7% 3R 3k MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-FA=+—HIFE

38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. EXRAMERE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in AEBZEAEENBRAEBEANSER
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern BAUBERFANLE RAKEREETE
while maximising the return to shareholders through the BEHERAEREESRETRREALD
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s WoBTFEASEERERBRIETE -
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, REBZERNGEBOEELFHE (BFR
which includes bank loans, senior notes and amount due TEFR BEEBERENEBERRA AR
to immediate holding company, and equity attributable to H) RARRHEE AEGER (BED T
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, B EERIREB G, RETEE) - AR
reserves and retained profits/accumulated losses. The REESTFHIRTEANEE -1EALLIE
Directors of the Company review the capital structure on an Rl —E  EEEERERKA KM
annual basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider EREABEBEZREB AEEKBE RSN
the cost of capital and the risks associates with each class BB BITH AR ) B B AR 1 - DA R 3 B
of capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure TEHIELRBEEBR FHEEBEARE

through the payment of dividends, new share issues and e
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the

redemption of existing debts.

1 62 TCC International Holdings Limited & E B £ BB R A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-F=+—HIFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 39. 2T HE
Categories of financial instruments SRIAZER
31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
—E-EF —TENF —EENF
+=A=+-8A +tZA=+—4 —A—AH
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TER FET FET
Financial assets THEE
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) &R AFE:t AfE%
- held-for-trading investments —-RBERSGAB KA 327,100 267,943 257,810
Loans and receivables (including cash EFH MERZE (REEE R
and cash equivalents) ReEE) 5,419,848 1,915,265 1,344,186
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 59,772 54,509 58,713
Financial liabilities tRMEasE
Amortised cost B 51 Y A 15,264,834 8,045,013 4,308,702

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
investments, trade and other receivables, loan receivables,
bank deposits and balances, trade and other payables,
bank borrowings, senior notes, amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders and amount due to immediate
holding company. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include credit risk, interest rate
risk, currency risk, other price risk and liquidity risk and the
policies applied by the Group to mitigate these risks are set
out below. Management monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and

effective manner.

BEERERBRERE
FEBEZFZ2RIABRERARE &
Y 5 BR RN E A FE MR - FEIRE SR iR
ThEALESR BUNEZERALEMENS
IR RITEFR BERE  BMNIFERK
RABLENEBERARRIE -ZFE
BMIAZHBERBHZMERE - TX
FIEZEcRMTAFHEZAR (B E
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-FA=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

At 31 December 2010, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk, which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties,
is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s credit

risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the

counterparties are banks with high credit-standing.

The Group mainly trades on terms based on prepayments
and letters of credits in most of the transactions and as at
31 December 2010 the Group’s accounts receivable spread
over a number of counterparties. Thus, the management
considers that the risk is adequately monitored and does not

expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

EREBREEERLF
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. €/ T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for all loan
receivables (31.12.2009: 100%) and 96.9% (31.12.2009:
93.8%) of the trade receivables as at 31 December 2010.

The Group has also concentration of credit risk as the loan
receivables were due from four (2009: three) borrowers

within the government sector in the PRC.

In order to minimise the credit risk on the loan receivables,
the management of the Group closely monitor the follow-
up action taken to recover any overdue loans. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each borrower
at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the Directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk on the loan receivables is significantly

reduced.

Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to the pledged bank deposits, time deposits
and fixed rate senior notes. The Group is also exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to floating-
rate bank loans, loan receivables, amount due to an
immediate holding company and bank balances. The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise. The fair value
interest rate risk on bank deposits is insignificant as the

fixed deposits are short-term.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

()

TCC International Holdings Limited

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR, LIBOR and
benchmark loan rates of financial institutions set by
The People’s Bank of China arising from the Group’s

borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to variable interest rates for
financial instruments at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the loan receivables
and bank balances in the PRC net of bank loans in the
PRC at the end of the reporting period and net balance
was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the

reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2010 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$18,802,000 (2009: HK$13,921,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on

its variable-rate bank loans.
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30.¢FTH %)
ERREEAERKE (£)

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued) mEEE (&)
(i) Currency risk (i) EHE R

The Group is mainly exposed to United States Dollars REBXFZ P RETRABTER -

(“USD”) and HKD.

AEEZzETEERNBER RITE
BORTERXRREEREUINETD
B-AEERBUMABINEERZ

Certain inter-group balances, bank balances, bank
loans and senior notes of the Group are denominated

in foreign currencies. The Group currently does not

have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of
foreign currency loan. However, management monitors
the related foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change of 5% in exchange rate of
USD and HKD against relevant functional currency of
RMB, while all other variables are held constant. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign

currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their

SNSRI IRER - AT - B TR R B A
MERSNE R - XA F EREEY
HERINERR

BRE DT
TRANAEERETRETH AR
N EBARBE ZERAIGEAS%LZA
BEEPHoBRE ABMEEMES
TE-WERESMERERRH KRGS
ZINEHIEERIRE X REBREZ
SNEM 5% BB HEELE -

translation at the end of the reporting period for a 5%

change in foreign currency rates.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. €@ T H (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies HERKREEBEEBEK (£)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) w5 ()
(i) Currency risk (Continued) (i) EEERE (&)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BREEDN (&)
2010
—z-%F
HK$’000
FERT
Decrease (increase) in post-tax profit REFE BT SR (3n)
for the year
- if RMB weakens against USD —MARBHETIHE (37,265)
- if RMB strengthens against USD —MARBHEETRE 37,265
- if RMB weakens against HKD — (M AREE N BT (17,912)
— if RMB strengthens against HKD —MARBEABTRE 17,912
2009
—ZTENEF
HK$’000
FAET
Decrease (increase) in post-tax profit NEEBRBEERRD (EM)
for the year
— if RMB weakens against USD —MARMBHEETISE (32,265)
— if RMB strengthens against USD —WARMHETRS 32,265
- if RMB weakens against HKD — AR ETLIEE (14,550
— if RMB strengthens against HKD —MARBEBTRE 14,550
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

30.¢FTH %)
ERREERERRE (£)

(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) mEEE (&)
(i) Other price risk (i) B aEE R R

The Group’s equity investments at the end of the
reporting period exposed the Group to equity security
price risk. The management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risk profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly

concentrated on equity securities listed in Taiwan.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks in respect

of held-for-trading investments at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective held-for-trading
investments had been 20% higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December 2010 would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$65,420,000
(2009: HK$53,589,000) as a result of the changes in

fair value of held-for-trading investments.

AEERBERRZBARESAE
BRZBEAEFERE R -EEES
BBREFAEATRERERE 2KEM
BRER AR AEEZRERR
TEEPREE LT IRAES -

BRRE DT
ATHRED T IRERREBHE
BRER S RG2REZBRERRM

BE-

MREBERFERIRB2REZ B
ERH S TR20%AMBEMATERE
BRTE ABERBERSARZE
BEATEEY BWEAEEHE_ZT
—ZFF+ZA=+—HILFEZERH
1& 5 A 38 0 R 4> 965,420,000/
JL (ZZFZ N4 : 53,589,000/ L) °
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. €/ T A (&)

170

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank

loans and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank loans as a significant source
of liquidity. As at 31 December 2010, the Group has
available unutilised bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$2,490,308,000 (31.12.2009: HK$2,006,686,000).

Details of which are set out in note 27.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment
on demand clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at

the end of the reporting period.

TCC International Holdings Limited &k B &£ B B R A A

BREBEERRERE (&)

HEBEE R

FREERDESRARMNE AEEERR
RHEEEERRARKFIZRAEEAEHF
B URAEEEERHESLRERS
MERB B - EREBEEFRITERZ
BRABN LERTEERZHZHE -

AEBERERITEREARDESZFE
KR-RZZT—TFF+=-RA=+—RH 4%
BHEABAmMERSAZRITEREEL
#42,490,308,000/8 7T (ZEFNF+ = A
=+ —H:2,006,686,000/8 7T) - 15
27 o

TERAVAEESRABEZHBRAREH
BR-BIETESMBENE - ZKRIIRIE
AEEANRZ&ZFARZEMBED K
FRACRERR - FHIR  ABRERE
BEFAVRTESCATARERER (EH
RITEDAAREEBITHEERN) - Hfb3E
TESRABENIHANREREEER
HET BERMNERATREERE - WAE
MAFBNE ARBEBRSEBRIERS
MR Z M R ARFT &
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

39.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z—F—

eI A (2

BHEBEEERERE (£)

mEBEZEE (E

B E T RFE R &

Repayable Total
on 1-3 3 months undiscounted Carrying
demand months to1year 1-5years 5+years  cash flows amount
RERK =fiRZ AER
#E -Z=fA - 5t EENE  BERAE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHT T FiEr FET T
31.12.2010 —B-2%+ZH
=t+-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiTESRERE
Trade and other payables EREFERR
HthERFE 3,834 1,618,062 449,200 - - 2,071,096 2,071,096
Bank loans RITER - 428,416 3,594,386 7,999,465 792,292 12,814,559 12,019,024
Senior notes BERE - 8,010 142,724 - - 150,734 139,396
Amounts due to non-controlling FER JEFERR R R 50R
shareholders 93,785 - - - - 93,785 93,785
Amount due to immediate ERERERDAFNE
holding company - 2,687 8,062 943,149 - 953,898 932,400
Long term payable REERTE - 130 264 9,264 - 9,658 9,133
97,619 2,057,305 4,194,636 8,951,878 792,292 16,093,730 15,264,834
31.12.2009 (Restated) “EEAETZA
=t+—-H(&KE3)
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTESRER
Trade and other payables ERESERR
AR %A - 786,295 28,652 - - 814,947 814,947
Bank loans BAER 3,839,155 329,610 1,172,017 1,762,165 1,257 7,104,204 6,809,947
Amounts due to non-controling R ERRIRR B
shareholders 14,619 - - - - 14,619 14,619
Amount due to immediate EREBERAAFE
holding company - 2,416 412,747 - - 415,163 405,500
3,853,774 1,118,321 1,613,416 1,762,165 1,257 8,348,933 8,045,013
1.1.2009 (Restated) “BENE-F-H
(EE3)
Non-derivative financial liabilities E T 5L
Trade and other payables ERESERR
AR A - 462,593 12,471 - - 475,064 475,064
Bank loans BIER 150,000 78,166 1,399,064 2,368,692 - 3,995,922 3,550,519
Amounts due to non-controling R FERRIRR B
shareholders 17,619 - - - - 17,619 17,619
Amounts due to immediate EREBERAARE
holding company - 1,991 5,974 269,483 - 277,448 265,500
167,619 542,750 1,417,509 2,638,175 - 4,766,053 4,308,702
The amounts included above for variable interest rate WE FEF RSB IR EBIRE E 2 F &

instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject

to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those

estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the

reporting period.

et TR EXAEZIFTESR AR
FEANERTAGREAERE-
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39.¢WMIT A (&)

172

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “repayable on demand “ time band in the
above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2009 and
1 January 2009, the aggregate undiscounted principal
amounts of these bank loans amounted to HK$96,500,000
and HK$150,000,000, respectively. Taking into account the
Group’s financial position, the Directors do not believe that
it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The Directors
believe that such bank loans will be repaid in two years
after the reporting date in accordance with the scheduled

repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined as follows:

° the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
with standard terms and conditions and traded on
active liquid markets are determined with reference to

quoted market bid prices; and

o the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash

flow analysis.

TCC International Holdings Limited & E B £ BB R A 7

BHEBEEERERE (£)

HEBELERE (&)
REBEERFIERE R (&)
REMFEBBESTH BEREREEER
BRZRITER DT ATRERERE]
REAR R_TThF+_A=+—
ERZTTAFE—A—RB ZFRITERZ
ANALIR AR & #8589 7l 796,500,0007% 7T K&
150,000,000/ JT * & & B A& B 2 B AR
Rig ERMEE RITTARATREGTEAR
BT Z RN ER - EFMEE ZFRT
ERBRBEER B R EIERE AR®R
EHMEMFERNER-

B

m N

TREERERAGEZATE
TREERERBEIAFEEENT:

o ABFREGRERE RINERRBT
LEBZEREENERBEZAT
BN2EMEMBEAEBEE &

e HieBMEERETRABZAFEDD
MHFRREREIMB/EREZ —RA
REBRAEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-F=+—HIFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. €/ T A (&)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, loan
receivables, pledged bank deposits, time deposits, cash and
bank balances, trade and other payables, amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders and senior notes approximate
their respective fair values due to the relatively short maturity
of these financial instruments. The Directors considered
that the fair value of the loan to an associate at the end
of the reporting period is not significantly different from
its carrying amount. The Group’s bank loans and amount
due to immediate holding company are mainly variable-
rate borrowings which are carrying at prevailing market
rate. The carrying amount is approximate to their fair value.
The fair values of other classes of financial assets and
financial liabilities are disclosed in the respective notes to

consolidated financial statements.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 based on the
degree to which the fair value is observable. Level 1 fair
value measurements are those derived from quoted prices

(unadjusted) in active market for identical assets.

EHEEREMEBEZQTE (F)

JE W 5 B 3R Mo EL A FE MR IR~ IEMRE K
EEMRTER EMER R RIRITE
BN E PR R H A B R B
FEEBERFERBARRZEEERE
FEREZAVTERSE RRARZELMTA
LERHME - BEERR/BERTNERZ
NPERGERREEFRTMELBEEAE
R-AKBZRTERRENEBZERA
AREEERERITMENRFAEZED
BREE FREEEQFERS - EiME
AZEREEREMABZAFEREGR
M mRZEMERE-

REERHBEMRREER 2L FETE

TREHDT AR FEERRAGFEZS
BIASN EEABERAFERES S
— e F-—RAFEAENECHIEE
REBHSPAERAEERSE -
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 3.2 T H (%)
Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities tRMEERSMEBEZATE (£)
(Continued)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated RESHBERTEEZBRZ X FHEHE
statement of financial position (Continued) (%)
31.12.2010 31.12.2009
—2-FF ZEEAF
+=ZB=+—H +=ZH=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER THER
Held-for-trading investments BERZABZIRE
Listed equity securities RS 271,855 217,975
Quoted investment fund EEREES 55,245 49,968
Total CEn 327,100 267,943
There were no transfers between Levels in the current year. RAFERNSH2BEL EEE-
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40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 40. B R & IE
2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of BEIHERREEE M BHE
acquisition of property, plant and BiE2BEME BEX
equipment contracted for but not BB ERTZ T
provided in the consolidated financial
statements 1,903,017 527,964
Capital expenditure in respect of ERTRERNEGE P BRE
acquisition of subsidiaries contracted BEZIWEBHNBARZE
for but not provided in the consolidated A H
financial statements - 3,000,000
1,903,017 3,527,964
41. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 4. BEMYERE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RBERR AEER T RBE 2 L&ER
outstanding commitments for future minimum lease Wz BREERAERIERE HRETZE
payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall E-HEWBOT
due as follows:
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETAEF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FERT FHET
Within one year —F R 6,123 6,202
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEERERF
(BREEMTE) 24,490 21,754
Over five years BBAF 66,828 70,724
97,441 98,680
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by KEROHESEASESRESE THEDE
the Group for certain of its rented premises. Leases are Nz BmTHYNTFHRE=F-

negotiated for an average term of three years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-FA=+—HIFE

42. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31 December 2010, assets with the following carrying
amounts have been pledged to secure borrowings of the

Group (note 27) or comply with relevant sale contracts.

42. EEKH
RZE—ZEF+—A=+—B ' UTE@
BrzEERER UERAEBZEE (W
fo7)sETERIEE S -

2010 2009

—E-%F —ETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FHET

Property, plant and equipment W BB k& 3,753,974 1,537,066
Prepaid lease payments A EERE 1,001,340 606,322
Pledged bank deposits BEHERRITHER 29,454 36,913
4,784,768 2,180,301

43. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION
During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Company
issued 651,170,000 Preference Shares for the acquisition
of TCCI (Guangxi) and its subsidiary. The fair value as at the
date of acquisition was HK$3.66 per share and thus the
total consideration was amounting to HK$2,383,282,000.

TCC International Holdings Limited & E B £ BB R A 7

43.XTEHFBRERS
REBEE—ZTZAF+-A=+—BLFE
A AR B FLUEETCCI (Guangxi) & E i B
A BB #17651,170,000% 18 58 I o AU EE
ERZAFEAFIRI66EIITEEBR
{8 52,383,282,0007% JT °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= A
o=

B % R AR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-F=+—HIFE

44. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances set out in
notes 9, 20, 24, 26, 29 and 30, the Group entered into the

44.BEALTRS

M5O -20 - 24 - 26 - 20 30T i 2 X
BRAMI  NAFR  AEEEET TSI

following material related party transactions during the year: EABFEALTRS:
2010 2009
—B-ZBF ZZETNEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Wiz FTER FET
()  Rental expenses payable to () EN—HBRREWNBAFGzZHES
a fellow subsidiary EH (@) 4,320 4,320
(i) Rental expenses payable to (iy EN—2BEEALzHSEAR
a related party (Note 1) (Bfett1) (a) 1,115 1,054
(i) Purchases of cement and clinker (i) AIHZEER DA R FF
from the ultimate holding B EEE KR RAR
company and a fellow subsidiary (@) 82,135 329,411
(v) Sales of cement to a related party  (iv) [[—&EEATHEKE
(Note 2) (Hfit2) (b) 5,611 11,771
(v)  Purchases of clinker from arelated (v) H—Z@EALTESZHE
party (Note 3) (H1i23) (b) 59,164 101,828
(v Transportation and management  (vi) ENRZRWERR ZEH K
services fee payable to fellow EERKE
subsidiaries (a) 173,593 27,966
(vl Maintenance service fee of (vii) FERRRNIEAE MG
a computer software system R EREE
payable to fellow subsidiaries (a) 5,473 4,521
(vii) Implementation service fee of (viily FERTRRMIEAE 2 B
a computer software system RRCEHRREE
payable to fellow subsidiaries (@) - 7177
(x) Management fee payable to (ix) BN—2HEATZERE
a related party (Note 4) (Hit4) (@) 7,776 -
(x)  Trademark fee payable to X EN—2EEALZEEZ
a related party (Note 4) CRE(Hita) (@) 4,355 -
(x)) Sales of raw materials to x) M—ABEQRHEERME
an associate (b) 6,484 -
(xii) Purchases of raw materials (xii) MA—fEHERFEERME
from an associate b) 7,222 -
(xiii) Sales of cement to an associate (xiii) [1— 2N R HEKE (b) 59,301 39,168
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44. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 44. BEANLTRF (&)
(Continued)
Notes: Kt it -
(1) The related party is an associate of the ultimate holding (1) ZABATDREIERAR 2B ERF -
company.
(2) The related party is the subsidiary of the substantial 2 HBEALTDHEIEREZHBAG-

shareholder.

(38) The related party is a subsidiary of the non-controlling (3) ZBEATAARAR—MEMMEBEARZIEE
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company. (g e Prd 1) MNGID

(4)  The related party is the holding company of the non-controlling 4) ZBAEATAEXRT—FEMHEBARZIEE
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company. [ P 2 /NI

(@) The prices of these transactions were determined between the (a) ZEXRGHZERAINEFILECDEHIZ
parties with reference to the agreements signed. hREETE ©

(b)  The prices of these transactions were determined between the b) ZERGZERBITNEFTREMHER
parties with reference to market prices. B

During the year the remuneration of key management WM E1RE - RERN TEEEA

personnel which represents the short-term benefits of BrHM(BESEHE 28 HENHNAR

Directors remunerations is approximately HK$5,586,000 5,586,000/ 7T ( —ZZZ 14 : 7,882,000/5

(2009: HK$7,882,000) as set out in note 11. JC) °
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45. SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation and

Nominal value
of issued
ordinary shares/

Proportion of

45. 1B A A
KRN _BE—ZFER_ZTZTNF+_H
=+ —HZFEWBRARZHFBHOT:

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
BRAEER
HEARERE SR AR 3L R EE it B HERRAEE EEEERERLA TEEH
Directly Indirectly
B %

Anhui King Bridge Cement The PRC Registered capital - 60%  Manufacture and
Company Limited* H US$15,000,000 distribution of slag

ZEARBKEERAR Rl powder

15,000,000% 7 SERDHERED

Chiefolk Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - 70%  Investment holding

EE HK$1,000,000 REER
EiEk
1,000,000/ 7T

Chongging Changxing The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Manufacture and
Cement Co., Ltd*! H USs$65,000,000 distribution of cement and
(acquired in 2010) (renamed to ERUTES clinker
TCC Chongging Cement Company 65,000,000% 7T B3 R #ACR kAR
Limited with effective from
24 January 2011)

BEEEKRERAF
(RZZE-ZFRB) (BZ2F—

E-AZtHARSER
R (EEB)KEARAR)

Guangan Changxing Cement The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Not yet commenced
Co., Ltd*" H US$29,990,000 business
(acquired in 2010) AR A EENGEEI=E

EZEFKRERAFM 29,990,000% 7t

(RZZ-2FYHE)

179
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-FA=+—HIFE

45. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation and

Nominal value
of issued
ordinary shares/

45. B DT (&)

Proportion of

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
BRTEER
MWEARER ALK E K HERAEE EEEERRLA TEXEH
Directly Indirectly
B i
Guizhou Anshun Changxing The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Not yet commenced
Cement Co., Ltd*! H US$29,990,000 business
(acquired in 2010) TN ENGET=ES
EMZIEEEAORBREERA 29,990,000% 7T
(RZZ-ZUWE)
HKC Investments Limited Taiwan Ordinary - 100%  Investment holding
BRRERNDBERAF = NT$695,000,000 REER
gl
695,000,000%7 & ¥
Hong Kong Cement Hong Kong Ordinary - 100%  Import and distribution of
Company Limited N HK$10,000 cement
gl EO RS HEKR
10,0007 7T
Jiangsu TCC Investment The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Investment holding
Co., Limited*" H US$100,000,000 REER
TIHARKRERRRA" A AR A
100,000,000% 7T
Jingyang Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - 100%  Investment holding
THEEERAR EE HK$24,000,000 REER
Bl
24,000,000/% 7T
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45. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation and

—FFEF =1 HIFE

Nominal value
of issued
ordinary shares/

45. 1B~ TF (&)

Proportion of

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
BRTEER
MWEARER EIUANEE S HEfMRAEE EiEEERERLLH TEXY
Directly Indirectly
B i
Jurong TCC Cement The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Mining of limestone and
Co., Limited*' H US$203,000,000 production and sales
ARBRKEERRAM o AR A of cement and cement
203,000,000 7T products
REARAREEREE
KR RAORE @
Koning Concrete Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 - 100%  Investment holding
EE E@AR100/8 T REER
Liaoning Changging Cement The PRC Registered capital - 75%  Manufacture and
Co., Ltd* H US$35,274,100 distribution of cement and
(acquired in 2010) AR AR clinker
EES FMEEB& ] 35,274,100% 1T RER S HEACE R
(EC —TFKE)
TCC Fuzhou Cement Co., Limited*"  The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Manufacture and
BMARARERRRN h US$16,250,000 distribution of cement
A AR A SUER D KR
16,250,000 71T
TCC Fuzhou Yangyu Port The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Provision of port facility
Co., Limited*! H US$5,000,000 services
BMAERFEFEER A A AT A A RIS R M RS
5,000,000 71T
TCC (Guigang) Cement The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Manufacture and
Limited*! H US$217,875,900 distribution of cement and
B (BB)IORERARN AR A clinker
217,875,900% 7t BERDHAR R
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+=-FA=+—HIFE

45. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 45. ¥ B A B ()

Place of
incorporation and

Nominal value
of issued
ordinary shares/

Proportion of

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
BRTLER
MWEARER EIUANEE S HERAEE EEEERRLA TEXY
Directly Indirectly
B i
TCC Hong Kong Cement British Virgin Island Ordinary - 100%  Property holding
Development Limited (“BVI")/Hong Kong Us$10 BEWE
RERRHE Deferred***
(RBREZES]) US$90
S EE ERBI0ET
B
90% T
TCC Liuzhou Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - 70%  Investment holding
ARIMBRLF EE HK$10,000 REER
L @A%10,000/ 7T
TCC Liuzhou Construction The PRC Registered capital - 42%*  Manufacture and
Materials Company Limited* H US$13,500,000 distribution of
MMaRTREMBRAR" Rl slag powder
18,500,000% 7T BUER D HRBH
TCC Yingde Cement The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Manufacture and
Co., Limited*’ H US$209,400,000 distribution of cement and
A (EE)KRERAR T A A clinker
209,400,000% 7T FER S AR R A
Ulexite Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$200 100% - Investment holding
KBRRHS/ER L@ IR200E T REER
Upper Value Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary - 100%  Investment holding
(acquired in 2010) ERRLHE/BE US$10,100 REZR

(R=F-ZFYE)

TCC International Holdings Limited & E B £ BB R A 7
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45. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 45. B A7) (&)

Nominal value

Place of
incorporation and

of issued
ordinary shares/

Proportion of

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
BRTEER
WELRERE EIUANEE S HEfMRAEE EiEEERERLLH TEEH
Directly Indirectly
B il
Yingde Dragon Mountain The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Manufacture and
Cement Co., Ltd*' H RMB428,110,000 distribution of cement and
(acquired in 2010) AMRBEARARE clinker
F%m*%ﬁmiﬁ a 428,110,0007T SHE R AR R EH

(R=F-FFYE)

*

Registered as equity joint venture registered under the PRC

law.

* Registered as wholly foreign owned enterprise registered

under the PRC law.

*x

A subsidiary of TCC Liuzhou Company Limited, a non
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and, the effective

shareholding of the Group is 42%.

***  The deferred shares of TCC Hong Kong Cement Development
Limited are non-voting, carry no rights to dividends and are
only entitled to a return of capital when the surplus exceeds
US$1,000,000,000,000,000,000,000.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected
the results, assets, or liabilities of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.

Apart from the senior notes as disclosed in note 28, none
of the subsidiaries had in issue any debt securities at 31
December 2010.

Y BRARBHBDAMGEMZEERT -

O BRRBREBEREEMEMZIIEBEE D
o,

* ARMMERAT (KARZ KR EHE
AR RAEEZ BRRER2%) 2 1B
AT

*** TCC Hong Kong Cement Development
Limited 2 #& JE IR 30 T B3R Z= 4 - IR A
MAEERKRSEZEN BEERKRER
1,000,000,000,000,000,000,0003% 7t i -
FERERERK -

ERIANEZARIEFEAKEES
BESRBZARFMBAR -EFRA-
HINEMHBLARZFHE SERBRIT
EO

W o8 HE 2 B AERS R =T —
TFE+-A=t+—8 BEWNEATES
a3
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Financial Summary

%8 E
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
ZTERE  ZTTEF ZTENF ZTTNF CZBE-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHAT FHT FHT TERT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&575) (&E7)) (&&E75) (&E75)
Results ES
Revenue Wz 980,418 1,829,168 2,822,827 3,953,940 8,125,854
Profit (loss) for the year, before ~ RNRAEIHEE AER
impairment loss on intangible BEREEREBE
assets and impairment k% BE R
loss of property, plant and HEREBER
equipment, attributable to AEE % 7
owners of the Company (E8E) (9,915) 215,994 (126,956) 120,254 784,053
Profit (loss) for the year, RREHEB AEEE
attributable to owners of FEEF (BE)
the Company (18,303)  (3,506,645) (155,523) 120,254 784,053
Assets iE
Property, plant and equipment 1% R kR E 1,611,004 3,873,850 5,053,368 8,815,063 12,816,206
Prepaid lease payments ERNEERE 64,728 714,897 702,429 907,934 1,599,818
Intangible assets BYEE 206 39,447 7,839 812,578 2,648,561
Mining rights RiRE 18,396 56,273 55,990 205,512 398,562
Interests in associates and RN
loan to an associate BEA T“ ER 130,584 130,199 133,085 131,208 1,416,976
Long term deposits REES 1,756 720 720 720 720
Long term loan receivables EWREER - - - 84,750 109,740
Deposits for acquisition of et ER S
property, plant and equipment R EMEEZ:] 4
and other assets 157,715 645,713 302,561 245,969 712,127
Deposits for acquisition of WENB AR 2 &
subsidiaries - - - 804,410 -
Available-for-sale investments  AJ i HH &R E 71,564 71,564 58,713 54,509 59,772
Deferred tax assets BEREWBEE 42 33 33 - 1,275
Pledged bank deposits EEARTER - - - - 2,360
Current assets MBEE 1,121,333 1,943,076 2,104,941 3,017,279 7,263,395
Total assets BEE 3,177,328 7,475,772 8,419,679 15,079,932 27,029,512
Liabilities &%
Current liabilities neEE 965,705 1,441,178 2,188,968 6,804,239 6,325,390
Other non-current liabilities Hip3EmenaE 891,426 1,967,728 2,225,499 1,560,867 9,431,101
Deferred tax liabilities ERHIERE 2,834 147,885 143,748 202,634 364,091
Total liabilities BafE 1,859,965 3,556,791 4,558,215 8,567,740 16,120,582

TCC International Holdings Limited

EREBREEERLF
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